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Financial Summary

EXERE
SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BE12B31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

ARBTR AREBTR ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(GeS==l))
(Restated)
(H5E)
(Note)
i Revenue 25,230,613 22,761,822 22,019,737 21,772,240 20,821,949
E Gross profit 8,218,910 8,065,931 7,918,290 7,288,599 6,576,938
BRFTSR AR Profit before income tax 2,141,842 2,326,459 1,971,360 1,639,774 1,276,824
FrigiiBE s Income tax expense (641,127) (700,756) (605,148) (510,070) (398,608)
FE&HN Profit for the year 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216
/NI p Profit attributable to
A AEGEER the equity holders of
the Company 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216
RE Dividends 1,800,859 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 614,751
ARES ARES ARES AEED ARE&S
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
REARRF] Basic earnings per share 34.74 37.64 31.63 23.84 20.33
MisE : Note:

AEEPR S - N\FRENEERFRSZEASE  The Group adopted HKFRS 15 in 2018. Comparatives for year ended 31
155 - BE_T—+tHF+_H=+—HIHEEHKN December 2017 have been restated accordingly. The financial results prior
ERBFEAEEY  E_S—tFUAHMFE  to 2017 have not been restated.

HEN BT o
"12A31H
As at 31 December

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
AR®Fx AREBFT ARBFT AREBFT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 22,065,346 22,104,371 21,757,042 21,732,558 20,036,552
maml Total liabilities 8,300,045 8,217,838 8,124,112 8,510,251 7,221,075
e EE Total equity 13,765,301 13,886,533 13,632,930 13,222,307 12,815,477
HEKIRLZLB/Y  Cash and cash equivalents 285,573 486,300 1,056,780 1,563,945 2,356,350
nE (BR) 28 Net current (Liabilities) (19,164)  (1,504,978) (623,190) (439,236) (475,101)
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HEESEHEBET > U RFREYE -
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H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

ERESE

Chairman’s Statement

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our” or
“us”) adheres to the corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence GRE )&~ BIFTK#)” and upholds
the principle of “Value Marketing (B{E&#H)”. With a focus on
operation, we are dedicated to creating brand value, pursuing
steady development and striving for progressive advancement
by “Healthy Practice (ERE#%1E)”, with an aim to evolve into an
enterprise boasting “Integrity (§248) ", “Brand (f&h%)” and “Taste
(GRER) .

In 2021, as the novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) continued to disrupt the normal daily routine
of social life, the Group put itself in the place of another and
continued to donate emergency instant noodles and beverages to
healthcare staff and residents in regions stricken by the pandemic,
demonstrating the Group’s philosophy of serving society and
caring for life with concrete actions. To respond to possible severe
pandemic challenges, we have developed various contingent
measures which aimed to maintain the stable operation of the
Group, better fulfill our social responsibilities and obligations, and
overcome future challenges.

In 2021, the Group achieved a record high of RMB25,230.6
million in revenue, representing an increase of 10.8% as compared
with that of the corresponding period last year, achieving a new
milestone of the Group. With the advancement of consumption
upgrading and the development of the Internet, consumer needs
became more diversified. History shows that only the corporation
that upholds value marketing and attaches importance to consumer
needs and satisfaction can go steady and far. Brand power
building requires the corporation to have deeper understanding of
the market, consumers, and its own characteristics. The Group
maintained the focus on operation and implemented stringent
management on product freshness. The Group’s operation of
health management produced remarkable results.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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Chairman’s Statement

KERE2021FREFBEARE1,500.788
TTOREFE TR I% TESEFRP—X
M E R AREYRER ERERaEE.
BEREENGEREBEER NBEAIBEET
B = A T BB AL TR FES
AWMBEE BN B2 W15 E A 8Ug
B THR—HBFXIFERESRENTFRENHE
BENEBER M— R EBNR I EEER
TG A E (] 0

2022F A EERFHER IR BEHREMEMS
SROHEBE PEPNHEEDHEADL
BHEE2TURNMKETHNRES T ER
HME2RHEMEZTENBE BTG
YU CEEAmEEREIEENTES
N BENEMHBENGGRRB &R
REBREINERKBERERBOMR
FER - ZRHEEERARRINERR
MoRBERHEESRABMES

RIS

ERAEBEIFEBENRRE Z25%
FRF ERVBERIL URBEALTHSE
rABEE (TEF) G (TEEHE)) &N
RRFRRBITZEFREAERRERIK
BEEHE2021F12B31HIEEERBRER
EERARE41.690 (HREARKELY
1,800.98 8 7T) ©

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The Group recorded profits after tax of RMB1,500.7 million in 2021,
representing a decrease of 7.7% as compared with that of last year.
The decrease was mainly due to one-off gain in the corresponding
period of last year and rise in the price of raw materials. The food
business registered a positive growth in revenue. “Soup Daren (35
#Z A\)” became the leader of the high-end nourishing soup noodles
market, and “Kai Xiao Zao (F3/)\kt)” was well recognized by the
market as before. The beverages business achieved a double-
digit growth in revenue. “Uni Green Tea (4 —#%%%)” continued to
improve brand favourability and consumer recognition, and “Uni
Assam Milk Tea (M —FIFEIWEIHEL)” maintained the lead of the
market.

In 2022, the Group will continue to pay attention to changes in
consumer spending in the whole society brought by the Pandemic.
Driven by changes in the population structure and society and
technological advancement, the consumption market is becoming
more complex and diversified in the mainland China. Offline
terminals and digital channels become the main ways to reach
consumers, and they work together to create comprehensive
experiences for consumers. The Group seeks to build a long-term
competitive barrier of brands through the building of brand power,
and carry out operations through product innovation driven by
consumer demand insight and centering on consumer scenarios
and contacts.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Based on the Group’s overall performance in 2021, and having
accounted for, including but not limited to, the Group’s surplus,
overall financial condition and capital expenditures, the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company will propose
to declare a final cash dividend of RMB41.69 cents per share
(amounting to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,800.9 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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ERESE

Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECT

The uncertainties of the Pandemic and the general economic
situation will continue to pose a challenge to the Group in the
short term. However, the consumption market is expected to
gradually recover and grow. The economy in the mainland China
is expected to achieve progress while maintaining stability in 2022.
Consumption will remain the most important driver in the national
economic circulation, consumption grading will be the general
trend of the era, and products with both quality and convenience
are likely to become even more popular among consumers. With a
focus on operation and upholding the operating strategy of being
“quick, stable and fresh (R~#2~##)", the Group will continue
to strengthen product power and brand power, improve channel
strength and business strength, and engage itself deeper in key
markets and brand bases. The Group will continue to provide
consumers with safe, tasty and healthy products and strive for
higher operating performance and maximum profit for shareholders.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

7 March 2022
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BIRIBE D

REE AREME (THED) 2021FERNEE
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ANALYSIS ON ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2021,
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) recorded a year-on-

the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of the People’s

year increase of 8.1%, and total retail sales of consumer goods
grew by 12.5% year on year. In the face of the complex and grim
international environment and COVID-19 outbreaks in the mainland
China, the PRC government promoted market recovery and
people’s daily consumption by carrying out COVID-19 prevention
and control and pursuing economic and social development in a
scientifically coordinated way. As a result, the national economy
continued to recover steadily in 2021. As residents’ per capita
disposable income increased and their consumption concept
changed, the food industry maintained stable growth amid both
challenges and opportunities.

As the prices of raw materials, transportation, energy, etc. rose
sharply in 2021, the world is under greater inflation pressure. The
Group will continue to pay close attention to major changes in
the external environment, adjust the structure of sales channels,
optimise product content, and improve productivity to ease the
increasing cost pressure.

In the post-pandemic era, as consumers become more aware
of their health, going healthy and going high-end have become
a trend. New consumer channels such as e-commerce, live
streaming and O20 are in the ascendant, online consumption
maintains an upward trend, and young people composed of
Generation Z, the new generation and young white-collar workers
become the main force in consumer spending. The maturity
of online channels means that brands have broken out of the
channel-driven sales model and can directly reach consumers,
thus expanding the brand’s development space. Under the
general trend that consumer spending is recovering, some new
characteristics have emerged in the market, and domestic brands
“Guochao (B1i#)” is
becoming the latest wind vane of consumption and is the new

are receiving more and more attention.

engine driving the growth in domestic consumer spending. The
Group focuses on operation, sticks to the value marketing strategy,
and aims to build a national brand that can meet consumers’
diversified needs in the new consumption era.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the Group continued to focus on its operation by
improving brand building and insisting on the value marketing
strategy. Committed to “Healthy Practice (f2EZ3R1E)”, we
strengthened freshness control over our products, maintained
stable market prices, emphasised development of brand
assets and optimised product mix to realise sound operation.
We maintained our sharp edges and our style. With deeper
interpretation of the core of brands, we returned to the market and
attracted more consumers. In terms of digitalization, believing that
target groups’ awareness of the core value of brands is one of the
keys to building of brand value, the Group employed digital tools.
For example, Alibaba’s TMall Innovation Center can locate target
groups and find market opportunities for products. Digital means
were also used to assist brands. For example, “One Code for One
Product (—#¥)—7H5) " was adopted in branding campaigns to reach
and communicate with consumers. By building a private-domain
platform with Tencent, we further diversified our purchase contacts.
Through fine management and “direct-to-consumer (B 12 E ¥4
&) platforms, we improved operation quality. Meanwhile, we
strengthened cooperation between online and offline operation
management teams and provided complete private-domain
interactive experience. With the aforementioned efforts, we have
won recognition among the young generation consumers.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB25,230.6 million in 2021,
representing an increase of 10.8% as compared with that of last
year. Performances of the Group’s core businesses is as follows:

Food Business

With an aim to satisfy the needs of consumers, the Group strived
to diversify consumption scenarios by providing products to be
enjoyed by consumers in different occasions and stayed focused
on brand value to enhance the brand loyalty. We also kept refining
the process techniques and innovating new tastes to enhance
product strengths and cater for the diverse needs of consumers.
The Group recorded a revenue of RMB9,524.9 million in 2021 from
the food business, representing an increase of 1.1% as compared
with that of the corresponding period last year.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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Instant Noodles Business

In 2021, in the instant noodles business, in terms of product,
we adhered to the product innovation strategy and worked to
create perfect consumer experience for consumers. As a result,
consumer satisfaction continued to improve. In terms of channel,
we conveyed our brand value and enhanced brand awareness
via online sales channels. With the help of the complete data
closed-loop of e-commerce platforms, the Group was able to
adjust products and marketing strategies promptly and use big
data to reach target consumers. The Group recorded a revenue
of RMB9,007.2 million in 2021 from the instant noodles business,
and the key brands under the business achieved a significant
improvement in brand power.

“Soup Daren GE3EN)”,
which has maintained
double-digit growth in
the compound growth
rate of revenue for the
last five years, was
highly recognised by the
market and consumers.

7T
=
i
=

-
e

In 2021, we actively
engaged in the high-
end packaged cooking
noodles market. We
launched the “Gourmet’s
Selection (BB EE) "
series to meet household consumption needs against the backdrop
of Pandemic prevention and control. The series became popular
among mid-end and high-end consumers and its sales grew
steadily. “Soup Daren (5# A)” was committed to the building of
a young brand as always. In 2021, we created a TV commercial
(“TVC”) of the brand with Generation Z and spokesperson Wang
Junkai, to enhance user loyalty and expand the target groups of
the brand. While improving products in the nourishing soup noodles
market, “Soup Daren (5% A)” promoted the brand concept of
“Soup Makes Good Noodles ({F&H;% R )", which was well-
received by consumers, consolidating the brand’s leading position
in the nourishing soup noodles market.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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“Uni-President The King of Tomato (#—#H&)”

e
SHHEHREMFWEE ﬁ s rolled out Tomato Beef Noodles in March 2021,

82 3 70 % | | Y AL 5R
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forming a strong combination with Tomato Egg
Noodles and further enriching the connotation of the

TREEE 1EBT -—RiEEin —HmIARAE brand. By setting the flavour standard of using “One
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Xinjiang Tomato (—EEHTEEZE M) " in every portion,
we completed product upgrading to provide
consumers with natural flavour and rich sourness
and sweetness. In the second half of the year,
we introduced the heartwarming activity “Double
Kindnesses in One King of Tomato (—HfE M
&) ”. While helping the sales of tomatoes from
Xinjiang, the activity paid attention to the lunch issue
of children in mountainous villages and continued to
donate to the “Free Lunch for Children Foundation
of the China Social Welfare Foundation” in the
mainland China. Thanks to the word of mouth and
good reputation of the brand, “Uni-President The
ANV (ing of Tomato (%—7#i2)" achieved a multi-fold
increase in revenue in 2021 as compared with that of last year.

As the pioneer of Lao Tan pickled
cabbage noodles, “Uni-President
Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and
Beef Noodles (#i—EEBEEIE4 W
§H)”, centering on its core concept
of “Sourness and Crunchiness (%
)", has enhanced product power
and created new standard, bringing
consumers a pleasant sour and
crunchy eating experience with
excellent quality and reasonable price.
In brand communication, we focused
on new consumer groups, choosing
communication contents and media
that are popular among young people. Based on the creative idea
of “Sour and Crunchy Looks (B£3&Z%15)” and the fun jobs that
Generation Z are interested in, we made a China-chic TVC and a
series of short videos and social topics, which became popular
among young consumers. The survey on brand assets shows that
“Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles (45—
EEESIA4 A" maintains clear advantages in various aspects
such as flavour preference, consumer loyalty.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ,I /I
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Upholding the strategy of turning the product into
a brand, “Teng Jiao (B13)" focuses on the stable
operation of the vine pepper taste. The uniqueness
of the vine pepper taste is recognised by consumers
extensively. In 2021, by teaming up with NetEase
Cloud Music, “Teng Jiao (B&4&) " conveyed the brand
identity of “Electric Shock (#88)” through music
interaction and established emotional connection with
young people using NetEase Cloud user generated
content (User Generated Content) to spark social communication.

Focusing on consumers who want to
have meat and a big meal, “Imperial Big
Meal GfiEAR%E)” constantly improves
cooking techniques to provide consumers
with high-end, plentiful “Chinese
Private Kitchen” experience which
inherit Chinese culture and make daily-
consumed noodles a quality meal and
a ritual. In 2021, “Imperial Big Meal G
BEAE)” invited Mr. Xiao Zhan to be its
spokesperson. Through the omnimedia
matrix including Weibo, Douyin and Bilibili,
we further opened up the high-end daily-
consumed noodles market.

Other Food

“Kai Xiao Zao (F8/)\}t)” continued to be well recognized by the
market and achieved a double-digit growth in revenue in 2021. In
terms of communication, with “Premium Meal, Special Treat ({F
Y2 8RB/ k)" as the core brand concept, “Kai Xiao Zao (B
/)" continued to cooperate with Mr. Xiao Zhan and achieved

,I 2 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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remarkable results in expanding consumer groups
and conveying the brand concept of a “cozy
countryside CRBEHE)". In terms of product
research and development, “Kai Xiao Zao (B/\
¥1)” entered into a new track and launched the
breakfast scenario product “Wonton Series (&
A %%) ", meeting consumers’ needs for three
meals in a day, together with the rice series for
the lunch scenario and the hotpot series for the
dinner scenario. “Wonton Series (BREE & %1))"
continuously topped many online lists and was
well received among consumers. It has become
a growth product of the brand with the greatest
potential.

Looking forward to 2022, the future trend in food innovation and
development is to create products that are healthy, safe, and
unique. Innovative products in the new era not only have to be
outstanding in their appearance and quality, but also healthy
and nutritious. The food business of the Group will make use of
technologies to work harder on diversity and expand the path of
innovation. We will not only carry forward the profound Chinese
food culture but also absorb foreign food cultures and add healthy
ingredients into national taste, to inject vitality into the food
business. We will follow the development trends of the industry,
adhere to the consumer-centric approach, and leverage our
advantages to launch more differentiated innovative products. We
will maintain quality, make good noodles with our heart, and strive
to become an indispensable companion of consumers.

Beverages Business

Consumer need is the core of the beverages business of the
Group. By focusing on freshness management of products,
adhering to value marketing, focusing on brand building and
accumulating brand assets, we actively expanded consumption
channels and consumption scenarios. The annual revenue of our
beverages business amounted to RMB14,737.8 million in 2021,
representing a year-on-year increase of 17.3%. The business
performance of our major beverages in 2021 is as follows:

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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Tea Drinks

Revenue from the tea drinks amounted to RMB6,271.8 million in
2021, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.2%. Adhering to
value marketing, the tea drinks business of the Group further built
up brand assets through marketing campaigns. In the meantime,
conforming to new consumption trends, the business actively
sought diversity in state and specification and intensified input in
online e-commerce platforms to meet the experience and drinking
needs of consumers under different scenarios.

“Uni Green Tea (#i—#%%%)” continued to
build a brand recognised by young people
across the nation. In 2021, we engaged Da
Zhang Wei as the new youth ambassador.
On “May Fourth Youth Day (E P& F#m)”,
through the long video “Go For It, Young
People! (&#T & EMH) " and the collective
appeal of key opinion leaders (KOLs) and key
opinion consumers (KOCs), we encouraged
full community involvement, communicated
with and reached young people, and
improved brand favourability and recognition
among consumers. Moreover, we carried
out the public welfare campaign “Send
coolness to delivery riders (Z&/NSHERMN
f3) " for the second year straight. With the
support of communication by mainstream
media, livestreaming via new media and 020
platforms and offline “coolness delivery stations G& R INERI4) ”, we
provided low-sugar, healthy “Uni Green Tea (4 —#%%%)” to delivery
riders who work under high temperature, building a highly socially
responsible brand image.

“Uni lce Tea (B—K#I%5) " continued to focus on the new
generation consumer group and convey the brand spirit of “Stay
Young for Ever (E&HEELR) ”. In 2021, we engaged the young idol
Dilraba Dilmurat (8 REZE) as the brand’s spokesperson to refresh
the brand image. With an accurate understanding of the favourite
games culture of the new generation, we tapped into eSports
by establishing in-depth cooperation with the popular mobile
game “Game for Peace (F1F#52%) ", Leveraging the benefits of
the spokesperson and the game’s IP image and using the joint

o Annual Report 2021 £
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packaging with the spokesperson and the
custom packaging for “Game for Peace
(FNEHEHE)”, we were able to accurately
target consumers in the eSports circle
through synergetic cooperation with
multiple online and offline platforms at
marketing nodes. By air-dropping “ice tea
Pop-up Shops GK/NEREJIE)” in “Game
for Peace (F1F#528)” in June 2021, we
combined in-game advertising with offline
interaction. By holding online livestreaming
with the spokesperson in September
2021, we leveraged the fan economy
and attracted more new generation
consumers. At the same time, together
with “Game for Peace (FIF#EH)”, we
co-organised gaming competitions at city
and college levels, and rolled out extensive
promotions to target gamers to enhance
brand favourability and accumulate brand
assets.

Conforming to the popular trend of the plum flavour, “Uni Plum
Green Tea (4 — B M84%2%) " was fully upgraded and launched in
2021 to seize the market opportunity. The product is sourced from
“Grade A plums (AZRENFSZ ARIEE)” in Puning, Guangdong, the
“Home of Plums”, which are thick, juicy and not puckery. It is aimed
to build a unique plum taste and create differentiated benefits of the
brand. Meanwhile, the good-looking packaging design was highly

appreciated by Generation
Z consumers. In terms
of marketing, we worked
with mainstream social
media to spark topics
and spread discussions
among target groups. We
quickly improved brand
awareness, built the
differentiated recognition
of “Grade A plums (A&Rk&x
A HIAE) ", and occupied
a position in consumers’
mind.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§ ,I 6
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“Classmate Xiaoming (‘/N\ZE2)” achieved a steady recovery.
We created “Mixed Tea CER¥EZL)” that understands young people
better in 2021. Through crossover of multiple fields, we enhanced
the “mixed feature CE¥&RL) " of the brand, with a focus on the
segment in the tea drinks market. Product power was further
strengthened. Through cooperation with “Darlie Toothpaste (2 A ZF
&) ", we launched the limited-edition crossover product “Mingjituo
(ZEH) ", a different new flavour, a bold crossover attempt and
an ingenious mix. Meanwhile, in cooperation with online celebrities
with a huge fan base, we created a new theme song for “Classmate
Xiaoming VNEE1E2)”, to enhance freshness, boost sales, recover
lost sales, and further help “Classmate Xiaoming (/\EZ[E£)” build

the unique brand concept of “mixed”.

As the health awareness
increased in the post-
pandemic era, “Chai Li
Won (XZET)” captured
consumers’ desire for
healthy good tea and
quality life. In 2021, by
using “a sip of sweetness
came after, the road to
kingship (—HEH —
EFET)” as its tagline,
and leveraging on the
influence of its brand
spokesperson and their majestic image and portraying the secret
of its sweet taste, the brand strengthened its positioning of a “The
King of tea (33dr £ &) ”. During the second half of the year, “Chai
Li Won (22 F)” took title sponsorship of the variety show “Play!
Fridge (FE5E 7 7k#8) "to create new drinking scenarios and reasons
for drinking. It attracted more young consumers by interacting with
different fan circles with the aid of celebrity influence. Meanwhile,
the brand placed outdoor media advertisements in key cities,
actively expanded the convenience store system (CVS) and online
platforms, to expand consumer purchase channels. In 2022, in line
with the health trend, “Chai Li Won (22 )" will actively target
white-collar workers in cities, build the brand positioning of making
good tea, output tea knowledge and stories by creating the “Good
Tea Identification System ((FZEERIEEZ)” to provide purchasing
reasons for consumers. In the meantime, we will conduct precision
marketing on direct-to-consumer (DTC) platforms to further
increase benefits.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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Juice

In 2021, revenue from the juice business of the Group amounted
to RMB2,219.4 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
40.6%. In terms of product portfolio, we added more flavours
that can better meet young consumers’ needs in our low
concentration juice line, while continuing to expand the portfolio of
high concentration juice to meet consumers’ needs for healthier
juice. In terms of channel operation, we continued to focus on the
expansion of the restaurant scenario and the family scenario to
meet consumers’ demand for convenient access to healthy juice.

“Uni Kumquat Lemon Beverage (#f—&i51E1)”
registered multifold growth in revenue in 2021. We
optimised and upgraded both product formula
and packaging. In physical indicators, we provided
consumers with a perfect “sweet and sour (B
EH) " experience, and on the psychological level, we
fully highlighted the new brand spirit of “becoming
more outstanding (88 H111) ", which new white-collar
workers and blue-collar workers in cities desire to
achieve. In core markets, we launched a sensational
promotion campaign targeting young consumers,
bringing them a sweet and sour, moist and refreshing
A iy s | 21\() experience and conveying the brand value of
“Becoming More Outstanding with Sweet and Sourness (F& B &H &H

B .

Centering on its core value of “More Vitamin C,
More Fiber, More Beauty (Z#ZCZZ5)", “Uni
Orangeate (88 —#£#5%)" continued to strengthen
product power by enriching its dietary fiber and
vitamin C contents to meet nutrition standards,
to satisfy consumers’ increasing demand for
healthiness. Meanwhile, we focused on the operation
of sales channels and used canned orange juice as
our featured product for dinning. More resources
were allocated to assist in increasing the brand’s
penetration in catering sales channels, and combined
with outdoor media advertising and online promotion
of food solutions, to continuously promote the brand
as “go-to beverage”. “Uni Orangeate (4 —&£15%)"
recorded a double-digit growth in revenue in 2021.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 /I 7
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“Haizhiyan (B2 &)
in 2021. The brand permeated the sweating scenario in an

registered a double-digit growth in revenue

orderly manner and continued to strengthen its association with
“the sea (K38)" to accentuate the benefit that “The perfect ratio
of Mediterranean Sea salt, lemon and fruit juice can promptly
supplement the lost salt and body water (e 558 EE K
KENTERL REMTSRBMANES ~K3)”, and to
communicate the key appeal of “Replenish salt after sweating and
refresh instantly CR7T# 88 B#fE753%) " to consumers. In 2022,
“Haizhiyan G822 =) " will maintain its growth drivers, ride on the
momentum, and achieve new results in sales.

= v With the key appeal of “Moisten and Soothe Your
Heart (— 8.0 B8) ", “Uni Crystal Sugar Pear Drink
(#r—k#EEZEY)” continued to promote its core
value of “Moist ()" among young consumers. We
intensified promotion on our official accounts online,
concentrated resources to increase outdoor media

k- exposure offline, and increased output in key cities.
S In winter, we displayed products in cabinets and
p—

adopted scene recognition to strengthen consumer
experience.

“A-Ha” entered into the carbonated drinks market in 2021.
After locating target consumers, we continuously strengthened
awareness among apple vinegar consumers and always focused
on consumer needs. In 2022, “A-Ha” will adhere to the principle of
going ahead steadily and strive for greater benefits.

“Uni Tomato Juice (#—&#i;1+) " utilised the product
benefit of lycopene to continuously create scenarios
for a high-quality life characterised by “Double Vitality
& Health CE7I&EEFEENMS)". Through the extensive
development of contactless e-commerce platforms and
multiple scenarios to attract purchases, we continued to
cultivate target consumers’ knowledge of lycopene and
their habit of drinking “Uni Tomato Juice (4t —3&#n71) .

o Annual Report 2021 £
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—_ “Vitality Awakening (Gtf&%8)” launched
E._ its new packaging in October 2021. The
UANLES streamlined bottle with a sense of fashion

adoleh and the appetite-provoking packaging design

attracted much attention among consumers
and were much loved. The 900ml family-
sized product launched in December 2021
= expanded the family consumption scenario,
.4 satisfying consumers’ needs for healthiness

. in diversified scenarios. “Vitality Awakening

T

GtREEE)” will continue to focus on major
cities to cultivate the 100% juice market and
concentrate efforts on the convenience store
system and e-commerce platforms.

In 2022, the Group’s juice business will continue to capture the
consumption tendency and changes in consumer demand. With
the benefits of healthy juice products as the focus, we will continue
to invest more resources in the restaurant scenario and the family
scenario to form a spillover effect with the ready-to-drink scenario,
thus expanding the market share of the Group’s juice business.
Our juice business will stay attached to the business strategy of
value marketing and focus on developing and optimising product
strength, in order to provide consumers with healthy and tasty
juices with different concentrations and temperatures to satisfy their
diversifying demands.

Milk Tea

Revenue from the Group’s milk tea business was RMB5,743.4
million in 2021, representing a year-on-year increase of 13.3%,
maintaining the lead in the market. In response to the improvement
in social economy and consumption attitudes, we continued to
perfect the portfolio of our milk tea brands and established a brand
management system that acts as a powerful support to our milk tea
products.

“Uni Assam Milk Tea (& —PalfEERYHES) " is committed to bringing
optimism to people who love their life and good mood offered by
the smooth taste of Assam. In 2021, the revenue of the brand
registered a double-digit growth. We continued to implement the
operating strategy of being “stable, fresh, and quick (&~ &£~ 1R) ",
Insisting that product quality is our core competitive strength, we

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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ensured the stability of our product strength by
having strict control on raw materials, production
process and quality. We continued to perfect
our freshness management and made efforts
to provide better product experience to our
consumers. We promoted the brand centering
on its core value of “Smooth and Good Mood
(854700 1B) ", During the Spring Festival,
we focused on the scenario of sharing drinks
during meals, and continued to uphold our
image as a caring brand through a themed activity called “Picking
a Good Fortune Stick for a Year of Good Luck (J#E)E%: - 3BE/E
)", Through in-depth cooperation with the music show on Bilibili
“The Next Banger (B;f9 = 4(REBME) ", we communicated in ways
favoured by the young generation to attract their attention and
convey the core value of the brand. We will also collaborate with
key opinion consumers (KOCs) of our brand, focus on our brand
appeal of “Good Mood (#F:10)B)”, to deliver our brand values
through activities featuring themes such as “A Special Blend of Milk
Tea for Good Mood (F558%f 0\ 18) " “Sharing of Good Mood (5=
¥ I0VE) ", ete., in order to expand drinking scenarios and achieve
stronger brand association among consumers.

“Pure and Noble Milk Tea (52 %L%%) ", a mellow milk tea product
symbolizing quality life, targets college students and young white-
collars who enjoy life, gourmet, afternoon tea and aspire to lead
a wonderful and fruitful life. The core value of the brand is to let
; consumers relax in fast-paced life and enjoy a happy
E. moment from drinking the mellow milk tea at any time
and any place, and its brand positioning is “60% Milk,
Savor the Pure Richness (—# 4%, #Z4{F)". In

May 2021, the brand was first launched in convenience

stores in major cities and e-commerce channels.
@L@@ We advertised the brand under the theme revolving
around “Full-flavoured, Extra Rich Milk Tea (5% & >
E751E) ", and leveraged on celebrity endorsement and promotion
by Key Opinion Leaders (KOLs) and Key Opinion Consumers
(KOGCs) on various platforms and scenarios. We also recruited “100
Pure and Noble Milk Tea Girls (10017555 FLE % )" on social
platforms to interact with consumers, and our communication was
further expanded with the spread of food bloggers. Moreover, we
promoted the winter hot drink concept, created a new concept of
“thick milk tea”, and established brand awareness for middle to
high priced milk tea in no time.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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In 2022, “Uni Assam Milk Tea (4 —PaIBEITH %) " will continue to
implement the operating strategy of being “quick, stable and fresh
(BR~FB~%)”. With freshness management as the foundation,
we will continue to focus on “Smooth and Good Mood (IIB7& 41
15) ", make the brand more popular among young people, develop
more restaurant and family scenarios and occasions suitable for hot
drinks, and expand sales channels.

Coffee

In respect of our coffee business, the Group continued to focus on
“A-Ha Iced Coffee (FEMKIIBE) ", put forth effort to create target
places of business, and we steadily expanded our consumer base
by exploring opportunities to effectively move our business down
to lower tier markets in target cities. Meanwhile, in response to the
market trend of consumption upgrading, we firmly maintained our
product display in refrigerated storage. “La Rive Gauche de la Seine
(fe =WNBEEE) " completed product optimization and upgrading
and was widely recognised by young white-collar workers and Gen
Z consumers.

In 2022, the Group’s coffee business will continue to focus on “A-
Ha Iced Coffee (P& 7KINEE) ”. With the vision of a “refreshing
nationally recognised coffee drink”, we will target urban blue-
collar workers and young white-collar workers through integrated
marketing that sparks emotional resonance and printed
advertisements to achieve total exposure of over 200 million
audiences, improve brand awareness, and promote the brand
proposition of providing dream chasers with the source of vitality
and help them start a refreshing day. In terms of sales channel, we
will continue to expand our markets in cities to seek high growth
and new breakthroughs. “La Rive Gauche de la Seine (£ =MNHE
g8)”
stores in first-tier cities and cultivate and consolidate local

will continue to focus on channels like quality convenience

consumer groups.
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Bottled Water

With COVID-19 persisting during 2021, shopping for health
and safety reasons has become a normality. The Group
continued to focus on the operations of mid-to-high-
priced natural mineral water brand “ALKAQUA (E58)” to
provide consumers with healthy and safe water choices.
We communicated with consumers through our brand
proposition of “ALKAQUA, simple appearance with unusual
properties (B FEHER » {EAFFE)” — our water is unusual
because it is sourced from the deep underground water
of the Changbai Mountains; our craftsmanship is unusual
because we utilise an EU-certified membrane separation
technology to prevent the generation of bromate; and
our ingredients are unusual because our “H2Si0s (fRFY

)" content is twice the national standard. Focusing
on core cities, we conveyed our brand proposition to
white-collar workers, who are our core target audience, through
media such as office buildings and subway stations, calling for
healthy and safe drinking water. During the water drinking season,
in collaboration with the office sharing platform, Wework, we
organised an offline activity called “Unconventional Pantries (& =5
B RIZEIKRE) ", which, together with online livestreaming and other
forms of promotion, enabled us to further convey our brand value.
Meanwhile, we devoted our efforts on the target places of business
of the brand, and consolidated our core markets by focusing on the
expansion of points-of-sale (POSs), the performance improvement
of quality POSs, and the addition of temperature-controlled
cabinets on modernised channels etc.

In 2022, “ALKAQUA (25%)”
internally and enhance product strengthen externally, and improve

will continue to consolidate quality

brand value and consumers’ awareness of “ALKAQUA Equals
Good Mineral Water (B =& %) ". On the communication level,
we will focus on target groups who purse a high quality life such
as young white-collar workers and senior middle class, continue to
convey the brand’s core of “There is more than it looks (Rf§E8) ”,
and explore stories that are of “Simple appearance with unusual

properties (FIEEH & RIE) " to promote the brand proposition
and accumulate brand assets.

o Annual Report 2021 £



EEE W RO

Management Discussion & Analysis

2 #E % (Bottle Can)Bl i3

rEBFEMBERERESHNMAR
Fle MERCF I UEBRM® MENHE
BIERE O 3 M NS HEH -
EREKIDTH TERARTE
TERENRR  ISYMEBER T WRF
HRERHBORK AR HEEM
MEEREBX EBRAFRBHK

Bottle Can Drinks

The Group continued to develop high-end bottle can drinks.
With the Cantonese dessert “Mango & Pomelo Sweet Soup
(B HE)” as the first flavour and “Classic Dessert, Taste
of Happiness” as the main axis, “Keep Sweet (IFZ H4F)”

i‘ skillfully restored the freshly made flavour while continuously
g

refining the taste, which effectively increased consumer
loyalty and product repurchase rate and was well received by
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consumers.

E-commerce

The Group’s online business entered into the rapid growth stage.
Market and channel sales were combined to build product
strength and provide consistent experience to consumers. We
conducted business management throughout the full lifecycle of
consumption from interested to purchase to repeated purchase.
Fans of direct-sale stores and cooperative KOLs/KOCs not only
provided convenience and safe shopping choices for consumers
but also provided new marketing fronts for the Group’s brands. In
response to new changes in online traffic flow, the Group opened
three flagship stores and eight livestreaming rooms on interest
e-commerce platforms, and set the shopping applet “Uni Happy
Planet (#i—1R%2¥K)” on the private-domain e-commerce, to
turn brand volume into brand efficiency.

By leveraging the Group’s core strengths and
cooperating with quality supply chains, “That
Street That Lane (BB HBE) " is committed to
provide consumers with the “street food never
vanish (FEH#MHEEER)". Since 2019,
we have introduced fresh rice noodles and
semi-dry noodles, launched city impression
series represented by “Guilin Rice Noodles (i
MKHD) " and “Lanzhou Beef Noodles (B
4 %) ", and focused on online sales. Since
it was launched in July 2020, “Lanzhou Beef
Noodles (B4 A%H) " has received a positive
review from millions of consumers.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s Research and Development (“R&D”) Centre always
adheres to the philosophy of developing products that consumers
will “be comfortable and happy to eat (118 %10y IZ12B90)) " and
creates value for consumers. Through empowerment of existing
featured products and development of new products (categories),
we have met consumers’ diversified needs, helped increase
corporate performance, and strengthened support to the Group

with core technologies and intellectual property.

Market Innovation

The ability of bringing forth something new from the old has
decided the brand strength. The Group’s R&D Centre went to
streets and lanes to seek local delicacy. By innovating in traditional
markets and combining digital tools, the R&D Centre studied new
consumption scenarios and new consumption needs. By using
internal and external resources for collaborative innovation, the
R&D Centre launched new flavours and innovative products. It truly
“immersed itself in consumers GEEEIHEEHR L) "

“Soup Daren (%3 A)” has launched “Beef
Noodles in Golden Soup (54 W4E)" and
“Tomato and Pork Gristle Noodles (EB#ijEH S
£H)” under “Gourmet’s Selection ({RIKEE)”. They
feature a bone soup base made with stock cooking
techniques, adopt fresh-keeping technique on fresh
vegetables and chunks of mellow pork gristle and
beef brisket, restoring a bowl of freshly cooked
noodles.

“The King of Tomato (Jii2)” has successfully

launched the new flavour “The King of Tomato Beef
Noodles (Fi 24 A%E)". Inheriting the promotion
concept of the brand, each bowl uses one tomato
from Xinjiang to make the tomato soup and restores
the original taste of stewed beef with tomatoes. We
were the first to add upgraded large dried spiced
beef dices in the product. In addition to the chewy
egg noodles, consumers can enjoy the rich taste of

stewed beef with tomatoes with every mouthful.
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“Wonton Series (REAEZZ)” of “Kai Xiao Zao (BE/\M)” is an
innovative product in the industry. After nearly two years’ dedicated
research, the R&D team has finally developed the wontons that can
be fully rehydrated after being soaked in boiled water for 5 minutes
which taste like freshly made wontons in terms of wrapping,
stuffing and flavour. The product has met consumers’ needs and
provided a wholly new consumption experience for consumers.
We have independently developed key equipment, effectively built
up a technical barrier. The product was immediately sold out after
its first launch and was chased after by consumers and attracted
the attention of the industry. During the November 11 holiday, it
became the No. 1 wonton brand on TMall.

“Uni Plum Green Tea (#i— B 184:%%)” has selected “Grade A
plums” (ABR U AHIHE) from Puning, Guangdong and fermented
them with traditional techniques. Combining special green tea, the
brand has created a different flavour featuring a light fermented
plum taste and a refreshing tea taste that is not bitter or astringent.
It is seen by consumers as a healthy refreshing drink to cleanse the
palate.

Committed to providing consumers with street drinks loved by
consumers, “Uni Kumaquat Lemon Beverage (4 — = #51815) " has
worked to restore classic flavours through continuous optimization
of formula and process. The upgraded product which features a
refreshing, juicy taste, is much favoured by consumers.

“Pure and Noble Milk Tea (5 55%L%%) " has positioned
itself as a middle to high priced milk tea product and

SRS TR R

z
3

enriched the milk product matrix of the Group. With a

milk content as high as 50%, the product has provided
a stable taste of milk tea products with a high milk
content during shelved lives. With the golden match
of freshly extracted Ceylon black tea and rich milk, the
product has provided consumers with a rich, smooth,
sweet yet refreshing taste. The product is creamers and
preservatives free and can be enjoyed both cold and
hot.
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Development of Core Technologies and Intellectual
Property

To ensure long-term competitive advantages, the Group’s R&D
Centre continued to build the technology moat. In 2021, through
collaborative innovation between internal and external resources,
independent innovation and other means, the Group continued to
develop some ten core technologies. Among them, the tea leaves
roasting and flavour preservation process was successfully applied
in the making of “Chai Li Won (3322 F)” Taiwanese Oolong Tea
and Japanese Green Tea, “Chuan Qi Cold Brew Dancong (&]/%
EXE8E)", “Pure and Noble Milk Tea (f555%L%%) ", etc., and the fast
rehydration and shaping techniques were successfully used in the
making of “Kai Xiao Zao (B8/)\kt)” wontons.

Moreover, the Group has provided all-round protection of core
technologies and important products with intellectual property. For
example, we have obtained seven patents relating to “Kai Xiao Zao
(FA/\) " wontons; the Pearl Technical Solution has worked
from multiple perspectives and with various instances centering
on formula, process and equipment, to build the patent barrier. In
2021, the Group’s R&D Centre obtained 18 patents and applied for
23 new patents. As at the end of 2021, the Group had a total of
124 patents.

Looking forward to 2022, the Group R&D Centre will take it as its
mission to create value for consumers as always, focus on product
development and improvement, and strive to produce products that
consumers will “be comfortable and happy to eat (I218% 0 > 1518
B "
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FOOD SAFETY

We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness:
Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and Fair Price (Z#f—"2A
B BT ERT RBE BB, and with the mission of
producing products that consumers will “be comfortable and happy
to eat IZ18Z 0 12458 FA0)) 7, we offer safe, healthy and delicious
food to consumers. We have set up Food Safety Committee with
General Manager as its Director, as the organization of supreme
power to design and optimise the food safety and quality system.
The members of the Food Safety Committee cover all relevant
departments including the research institute, Procurement Centre,
the production management group, Food Safety Centre, etc. The
Committee holds a meeting periodically to discuss food safety
management matters. Besides, we have set up Food Safety Centre
as the food safety management department to build the food safety
assurance system, formulate and put in place food safety policies,
deepen food safety risk assessment, warning and monitoring, etc.

We have established three lines of defense for food safety, namely,
qualification review, field assessment, and food safety testing. By
managing suppliers’ food safety from multiple perspectives, we
have effectively controlled the food safety risk brought by suppliers
and ensured food safety on the supply chain.

We adhere to three controls to ensure quality and prevent
abnormity in quality: quality control of raw materials through
incoming acceptance check, control of production process, and
quality control of finished products. Our products strictly abide by
relevant laws and regulations such as the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China. Besides, the food safety solutions for
all products are monitored to ensure they comply with laws and

regulations and are “comfortable and happy to eat ((218% 0 1218
B .

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

2/



28

EEEs KR

Management Discussion & Analysis

FEERRLZEPOTREMEZ WA F
Lo RmBEmEEEREZRHERAE DR
o H2005FE P LEBFBBPHEG
BAEERDBAIEZEGEHKTE (CNASR
Al) s 2021 FEHE2IEBEM N AR BAE
R ESERBITAERAUESR ; BF
BAEZEBERMEBRRENRE EFBL
wAITEE 7008718 ; BaZ 2 TR B A EAI8E
NBHERE B KRINE SRR R
Mk EmiEe

AEEE LHIEEISO 22000B L2 &2
R \FSSC 22000EmEZ 2 BEEB R UK
BEDMEAREFIZ(HACCP)EERANEK
BURENERTE2EEREZ B ZE2021
FREEBBETHB25BMFRABEIBISO
22000EmZ 2 EERARE  ZE1BETF
NEEMBFSSC 2200005 > 4B F AR BB
HACCP:35E °

[m]
FRARXBEEERNEL AEERE
EFRREZEXENREIL EERB2HER
mZ2EE - FEERRENIFRE &
ERETRB2ERALERMHMNNET
B BIERRTGERERER WERSH
BEERA

EmZEEHMEEZM@ERER AGE
=l

FEFBERIKEBERINEEKREKE T
BRRABEGBERENRF A8 RERE
Hest -EAEE2021F12A318 1k
FEAEBRTLERSGEE A EBNOBKE
B CTTHERR  FR2ELAEEEMGN
(bEHEFEERSE) (TCSRIKEL) 47
FHRARSAES B M E 71 Ak
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) L R 75 /A T 48 ik
(http://www.uni-president.com.cn)#| & 5¢

Tio

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The Group’s Food Safety Centre has set up Food Safety Testing
Centre to provide strong support to food safety risk control.
Since 2005, the Centre has passed the annual China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS
accreditation). In 2021, two new packaging solvent testing
solutions were accredited. So far, 174 projects of the Group have
been approved. Meanwhile, the Group has a number of national
patents for utility models and more than 700 perennial independent
testing items. The Group’s testing capability of food safety items
include drinks, food, water, additives, grain and oil, and packaging
materials.

The Group’s plants have established a complete food safety
management system according to ISO 22000, FSSC 22000
and Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP). As of 2021,
25 subsidiaries of the Group were accredited with the ISO
22000 International Standard Food Safety Management System
Certification, one with the FSSC 22000 certification, and four with
the HACCP certification.

Food safety is our commitment to customers and the brands and
is the foundation of the Group’s sustainable development. We
will continue to promote the development of a food safety culture
and a working environment that encourages food safety practices
and food safety culture where all employees could participate in
prevention and improvement works in respect of food safety so that
our products could meet the requirements of laws and regulations
and earn the recognition of consumers.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group follows the goal and strategy of “sustainable
development Gk#& 25 &) ", and while pursuing performance growth,
the Group always fulfills its social responsibilities. With respect
to the Group’s policies, measures, actions and achievements
in corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) for the year ended 31
December 2021, please refer to the CSR Report released by the
Group. The online edition of the report is available for view or
download on the website of HKEX news (http://www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company’s website (http://www.uni-president.com.cn).
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PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spared no effort in our operation, research and
development and innovation, aiming to meet different customer
needs. In order to balance the supply chain risk brought by the
Pandemic and to achieve synergistic effects in transportation cost,
production efficiency and operational support, the Group did not
solely rely on its own production resources. It also outsourced
its production to other professional beverages manufacturers
(including external independent third parties and related-party
companies). A strategic alliance was formed under long-term co-
operation with the external manufacturers, enabling the Group
to outsource production mode to adjust production capacity in
addition to the basic production capacity, providing the Group with
production flexibility. Thus, the Group was able to fully utilise its
resources on core operation and optimise its efficiency.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded revenue of RMB25,230.6 million, representing an increase
of 10.8% from RMB22,761.8 million for 2020. Revenue from the
food business amounted to RMB9,524.9 million, representing
a slight increase of 1.1% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, which accounted for 37.8% of the Group’s
total revenue, and revenue from the beverages business amounted
to RMB14,737.8 million, representing an increase of 17.3% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year, which
accounted for 58.4% of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year,
gross profit of the Group increased from RMB8,065.9 million for the
corresponding period last year to RMB8,218.9 million, representing
an increase of 1.9% while the gross profit margin decreased by 2.8
percentage points from 35.4% for the corresponding period last
year to 32.6%, which was mainly due to the effect of the increase in
the cost of bulk raw materials and promotion discounts.
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During the Year, the selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately RMB192.4 million to RMB5,542.8 million (2020:
RMB5,350.4 million) as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. The increase in selling and marketing expenses was
mainly due to the year-on-year increase in the number of sales
representatives and the transportation expense. During the Year,
administrative expenses amounted to RMB1,048.8 million (2020:
RMB957.9 million), representing an increase of approximately
RMB90.9 million as compared with the corresponding period of
last year. The increase in administrative expenses was due to the
downward adjustment of social insurance by the PRC government
during the COVID-19 pandemic in the corresponding period of last
year.

As a result of the combined effect of the increase in bulk raw
material prices and the one-off gain from the disposal of part of
the land occupied by a factory of the Group located in Hefei, the
PRC during the corresponding period last year, the temporary
reduction and exemption of social insurance premiums, the
decrease in income from subsidies and other factors, operating
profit was RMB1,905.8 million for the Year (2020: RMB2,108.3
million), representing a decrease of 9.6% as compared to the
corresponding period last year. The share of profits of investments
accounted for using the equity method amounted to RMB35.0
million (2020: RMB45.8 million) during the Year, mainly due to the
decline in the investment income from associates. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the Year was RMB1,500.7
million (2020: RMB1,625.7 million), representing a decrease of
7.7% as compared to the corresponding period last year. Earnings
per share during the Year were RMB34.74 cents (2020: RMB37.64
cents).
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash at bank and on
hand of RMB6,078.3 million (31 December 2020: RMB6,068.4
million), among which 99.96% was denominated in Renminbi and
0.08% was denominated in United States dollar. The Group mainly
financed its operation and capital expenditures with internally
generated cash flow. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total
financial liabilities amounted to RMB149.7 million (31 December
2020: RMB532.4 million), representing a decrease of 71.9%
as compared to the corresponding period last year, which was
attributable to the repayment of certain bank borrowings as short-
term working capital was relatively sufficient. 100% of borrowings of
the Group’s total financial liabilities was denominated in Renminbi.
As at 31 December 2021, all of the Group’s financial liabilities bore
floating interest rates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not
have any secured bank borrowing (31 December 2020: Nil).

Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. The
gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020

AREBTRT ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

wES (BEHEE® Total borrowings (including lease liabilities) 149,719 532,388
BRI RFERRE Less: cash at bank and on hand (6,078,271) (6,068,431)
RE358 Net cash (5,928,552) (5,536,043)
MR Total equity 13,765,301 13,886,533
BEREFELEER () Gearing ratio (Note) (43.07%) (39.87%)

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Note 1: As at 31 December 2021, cash at bank and on hand excluded
the Group’s purchase of financial products issued by commercial
banks. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of RMB1,715.4 million (31

December 2020: RMB1,621.6 million)

Note 2:  The gearing ratio is computed as net cash divided by total equity.

The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According
to the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximize
revenue for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind.
Capital structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in
the operational environment.

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB200.7 million,
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB2,421.4
million, net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB579.9
million and net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB2,042.0
million. The Group’s capital expenditure for the Year was RMB437.3
million (31 December 2020: RMB385.1 million).

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

The Group stringently controls and manages the levels of trade
receivables, trade payables and inventories. Sales to most
customers are made on a delivery on payment basis. Trade
receivables are generated from credit sales to credit customers
from modern channels and e-commerce business (including but not
limited to food and groceries stores, stalls and department stores)
with credit terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During the
Year, attributable to the growth in percentage of sales through
e-commerce channels and modern channels as well as the growth
in revenue, net trade receivables increased by RMB68.0 million to
RMB648.5 million (31 December 2020: RMB580.5 million).
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The Group’s inventories mainly comprised raw materials, packaging
materials, finished goods and low-value consumables. The
inventories turnover days increased by one day as compared
with 2020, which was attributable to the early preparation of
products for the Chinese New Year and the growth in cost of
bulk raw materials. As at 31 December 2021, the inventories
balance increased by RMB449.0 million to RMB2,392.5 million
(831 December 2020: RMB1,943.5 million) as compared to the
beginning of the Year. The Group’s trade payables mainly arise
from credit purchases of raw materials and finished goods.
During the Year, trade payables increased by RMB238.3 million
to RMB2,118.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB1,879.7 million),
which was attributable to the increase in goods and raw materials

SIHEFEFEFEXH - required in the early preparation for increased production and sales
during the Chinese New Year. The following table sets out the major
turnover days for the past two years ended 31 December.

HE12H31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020

FEWE SR BAEXH Trade receivables turnover days 9 9

FERAEXE Inventory turnover days 46 45

ENESRINBERH Trade payables turnover days 42 44

BUWEZRMBAERAFNERE 7R
WEN R EREHNTIIERUERE B
FIAFARRE

FEABRESINEVNRERFEEHRN
FHERUEEMA  BRUFARH

BNESERREABRUFNEVTEZERMR
B FE V) R R G RRBY T ERR IS & a4
BRUFARH-

FEBERDBROBYRERZBEXRE &
ERBRUKBENEZRRZBABRYEA
DAEERERREFEEHEENNYE HER
ReBA@BEH ZEERRINEF/EREE
RJE—PRAREBAIWE R EE
REND RAEENm-

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days were calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade payable balances as at the beginning and the end
of the year divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckoned that trade receivables turnover days, inventory
turnover days and trade payables turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle.
Through reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group
could improve its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going growth
for the sake of enhancing operational efficiency.
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Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It seeks
to control risk variables and moves forward prudently by moderately
adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according to market
conditions, and making appropriate capital expenditures to
optimise and expanding the infrastructure and marketing assets for
sales channels. The Group’s finance department has formulated
financial risk management policies based on the policies and
procedures approved by the Board and guided by the executive
Directors. These policies are reviewed by the Group’s internal audit
department and internal control department regularly. The Group’s
financial policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position,
as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralised financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group has maintained an automated
reconciliation system, which significantly improved capital efficiency
and accounting treatment effectiveness.

Treasury Policy

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product and
not to invest the working capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or similar
financial products. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management with no significant bank
borrowing during the Year. Most of the Group’s receipts and
payments were denominated in Renminbi since a majority of its
revenue was derived from operations in the PRC. The Group may
use foreign exchange forward contracts, when appropriate, for
risk aversion when it is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from assets or liabilities, such as cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings, which may be denominated in other currencies.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any significant
investments with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there
was no plan for any material investment or to acquire capital assets
other than those in the Group’s ordinary business of manufacturing
and sale of beverages and instant noodles.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of employees of
the Group was 32,765. The Group adhered to the policies of
focused and streamlined operation, and organisational structure
and staff structure were improved on a continuous basis to build
a stronger and efficient enterprise. In terms of recruitment, the
Group was streamlining its administration and progressing towards
meritocracy. The Group insisted on building a stable and robust
team through mechanisms including comprehensive training and
humane care. Internal training, regular position transfer, external
exchange and part-time study and other measures enhanced
our overall performance and provided talents for key positions
of the Group steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal
promotion over external recruitment, and performance appraisal
and other measures were implemented to keep the current
management team ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s
annual goals, the Group had performance bonuses and incentive
schemes in place to commend and encourage employees at all
levels to make outstanding contributions to the Group’s business.
Performance bonuses were distributed on the basis of the realised
earnings and profits objectives of individual business units and the
Group as a whole, as well as the performance appraisal.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB4,030.6 million (2020: RMB3,371.8 million).
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ESEHRS

Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd.
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial

(the “Company”) is pleased to

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 96 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB41.69 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,800.9 million. The
payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Further details relating to dividends are set out in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under which he/
she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 100 of the annual report and Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB8,047,520,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB10,526,275 (2020: RMB27,246,538).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Lo Peter will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each
of Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Lo Peter being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election. There is no service contract
entered into between each of Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony, Mr. Lo Peter, and the Company which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 60 to 64 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the associated
corporation

RH#R
Number of shares
F20214
18EUTFL 1283182
FELBREBERREZ R AR SEBzER AT Mzt FRESL
Percentage of
shareholding
Interest of as at
Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate 31 December
name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2021
(BE43)
(Approximate)
HF—OERM  Uni-President
BRAT Enterprises
Corporation
BEERYE Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,402,447 - 97,461,542 1.72%

B EXFriEEE SN ) 1220215128310 #f
BARNFESREIETHAEREZBEZ
MEBEALTHEETAZERN ARG RESK
HHERGIEIS2RRERTFTZ2ELMA > I
BREEETFABNEARARA MBI ZR
A NEFAEE ZE (EERFES K
B GIEXVED) WD - BEARGHNESZ
R TR A ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

o Annual Report 2021 £



EEBRERGAFFZEF

RAEFEERFRAFERNTAER ~0
EHEMERAR -WB AR KERKNE
REAMESREMLHF NLEFARSE
KEZHMBAL (BB LHRMAE ZH
R)IBBALRTREMNEMEANEERZ
R EESMmED

EENAORRBENZEDR

REFEUARBTIL—MRBE=FNR
BEMREER WA R REZEREME
s

FREAABT L ZRBENIEZERI
TEE ARAF HEFEZERAT MEQ
BAHFERNBAR N AFELERFHAF
ERNEAREMESIISRESZTNEAEES
HENBENHETERABRAEEEAR

mZERHMEESN X RZH-

e

ESNHmBEHZE

REFHENNEBH EF AT BETHE
AR ZEFHAREFEEZHBEATIHEE
FAEERBDREK B R EBBRGRF
WA R T (THmBERENER 2%
hHEAED (FREEK/HENBRATZ
EERKREEEZHMBALRIN - LAR
BLEMRAZRE T UME -

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

ESEHRS

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts or letters of appointment entered
into with the Company, during the Year, no other contracts of
significance, transaction and arrangement to which the Company,
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

TBE/ RKE Long positions/short positions
1420215
1283182
%18 S FRAREEREE FRESLE
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of as at
ordinary shares of 31 December
Name Capacity the Company 2021
(BE49)
(Approximate)
R—EERHBRAE (1) REREERED 3,114,783,983(L) 72.11%
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporations
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (FfzE1) ERBEEA 3,044,508,000(L) 70.49%

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1)

L RTRRERBEROBTHGFE -

AD 4i— %P EERAIRAT Uni-Pres

Beneficial owner

(L)  denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.
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Notes:

1. Out of 3,114,783,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (“UPE”), 22,155,983 Shares
were held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd.
(“President (BVI)”), which is indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%,
48,120,000 Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Kai Yu (BVI)"), which is indirect wholly-owned by UPE. Accordingly,
UPE was deemed to be interested in all the Shares respectively held
by Cayman President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu (BVI) by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other
substantial shareholder or person (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities and/or actions. During the Year and as at the date of this
annual report, permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9
of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of
the Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of
the Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not being exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the
Listing Rules are set out below:

(i) 2020 Framework Sales Agreements

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2020 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure members of the Group to agree to sell, on a non-
exclusive basis, to UPE Group, certain beverages, instant
noodles and bakery products and such other products, as
may be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group and/or
their respective members from time to time for a fixed term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both
days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms of the
sales transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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2020 Framework Purchase Agreements

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (“2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure members of the Group to
agree to purchase, on a non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group
certain raw materials, packaging materials, finished goods
and such other goods as may be agreed in writing by the
Group and UPE Group and/or their respective members from
time to time for a fixed term of three years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive). The pricing
basis and the other terms of the purchase transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to the Group by independent third parties
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 25 March 2020
and 22 May 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 7
May 2020.
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(iii) 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreements

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2020 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure members of UPE Group to
agree to provide, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group
transportation and logistics services (including, but not limited
to, storage services, design of, and the provision of technical
support service to, logistics systems) and such other
logistics-related ancillary and support services as may be
agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group and/or their
respective members from time to time for a fixed term from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive).
The pricing basis and the other terms of the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered by independent third parties suppliers to
the Group in comparable transactions of the same period.
Further details of the 2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(iv) 2020 Framework Technical Support Service

Agreements

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide or procure members
of the Group to agree to provide, on a non-exclusive
basis, to UPE Group technical support and management
services (including but not limited to the human resources
management services) and such other technical support
services as may be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE
Group from time to time for a fixed term of three years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive).
The pricing basis and the other terms of the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in the ordinary
course of business on normal commercial terms, negotiated
on arm’s length basis and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2020
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25
March 2020.
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The annual cap (the “Annual Cap”) as approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company (for 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement) or as set by the Company (for 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement, 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
and 2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement) and
the total actual transaction value in respect of each of the 2020
Framework Sales Agreement, the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement, the 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
and the 2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
(collectively, the “2020 CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out
below:

48

R 2020 1B RAE R 5 i BERRZEEE FELR
Actual
Transaction
Transaction 2020 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
ANRB¥BEETT) UAEBEET
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2020FEAEZREHERE 2020 Framework Sales Agreement
HIHEEE Total sales value 172.7 200.0
2020FEAE2RIREEE 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
IR EE Total purchase value 4,404 1 5,100.0
2020FEAEZRYIMARFS 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
& Total transaction value
wTZEE 0.3 30.0
2020 AEZRF M2 & 2020 Framework Technical Support
R & Service Agreement
WX FEE Total transaction value 62.9 100.0

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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When determining whether the above transactions have been
conducted in accordance with the pricing policies under the
relevant 2020 CCT Agreements, the management of the Company
would obtain sufficient market intelligence to ascertain the relevant
prevailing market rate, payment terms and practices, as well as
the latest market and independent third party information. For
example, the management would review quotations from at least
two independent suppliers or service providers and evaluate
them from a commercial perspective, so as to ensure that the
products or services to be procured from the UPE Group are of
comparable prices for such products or services being offered by
the independent third parties of the same period. Where there are
no sufficient comparable transactions available, the prices of such
products or services would be determined on arm’s length basis
with reference to historical prices and cost analysis. Likewise, the
management would also determine the prices of the products or
services to be provided to the UPE Group by reviewing market
information to ensure that they are of comparable prices for such
products or services being offered to independent third parties by
the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have provided
findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to the
interests of the Company and its minority shareholders, and that
appropriate internal control procedures were in place. In the opinion
of the independent non-executive Directors, the above transactions
conducted pursuant to the 2020 CCT Agreements were carried
out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with the relevant
2020 CCT Agreements and the pricing policies of the Company,
and on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above
have not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, such transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; or

- the transaction amount of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above have exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company or approved by the shareholders
of the Company (as the case may be).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 34(b) and Note
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of
future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
Those discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of factors which may affect the results and
business operations of the Group, some of which are inherent
to beverages and instant noodles business and some are from
external sources. Major risks are summarized below.

()  Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. The Company’s failure to
anticipate, identify or react to the changes in consumer
preferences could result in reduced demand for the Group’s
products, which would, in turn, lead to excessive inventory
levels and lower sales volume. The Group will continuously
introduce new products throughout the seasons and will
further shorten the product development cycle in order to
improve our portfolio of products to satisfy consumers’
changing preferences.
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(i)

(i)

Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes in
market conditions. Some of the competitors, which have
larger market shares in the PRC with respect to beverages
or instant noodles products, have operated their respective
businesses longer than the Group has and have wider
geographical coverage for their products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, therefore they may have
substantially greater financial and other resources than the
Group has and may have better established in the market.
Should the Group’s competitors manage to seize a larger
market share, the Group’s sales volume may be adversely
affected. To manage competition risks, the Group will
continue to conduct research and development on new
technology, introduce new products as well as maintain a high
level of quality of its existing products for a better competitive
edge.

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverage industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.
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Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third parties or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third parties
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable to reach agreement upon reasonable
terms with them in relation to such continued supply, the
Group may be unable to find a comparable substitute supplier
of packaging materials, which in turn may lead to delay in the
delivery of its products to customers. Such delivery delay may
affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group strives to
maintain stable and cooperative relationships with suppliers
in respect of the procurement of essential raw materials
and to develop long-term strategic partnerships as well as
productivity strategies with three or more suppliers to reduce
the risk on being over dependent on a single supplier.
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Key Relationships

The Group’s success also relies on the support from its key
relationships with employees, suppliers, distributors and customers.

()  Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages and
food products in the PRC, the Group has been recruiting
talented professionals from time to time. In respect of
the new low-level staff, the Group devotes considerable
resources in staff training and monitor their development
and progress in a timely manner in order to ensure the
employees possess the skills and capabilities to fulfill the
relevant job requirements. Meanwhile, the Group recognises
the value of its key personnel in maintaining team morale and
competitiveness. To promote career advancement and to
attract qualified candidates to join the Group, the Group fill in
vacant positions from time to time through internal promotion
and/or external recruitment with competitive remuneration. On
the other hand, the Group ensures the continuity of the senior
management by grooming management talents by offering
continuous internal training, appropriate job rotation as well as
external on-the-job training.

(i)  Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation and food safety
testing), through inviting quotations from suppliers to be
procured to the extent that those products are of comparable
nature, quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

ident China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%}



(iii)

(iv)

AEERBRE =S NEEAAREEP
HEEm -AEEHEDHEESE N
Mm—BNEHBH  FHERRSI
RiGEERUESHERR - AEH
EXRDEBRRDEBETHIERN
B BEBFARERNERTEE - HE
EB R ERAEEB RS

e

rEBRERNTFFREEZR -AF
BERENER - AEERHEER
22 RBERERVERE KT EEE -
FEBTRAZERREBKE  BBTR
RE (BHEATDML - -TRRE -TH
EERMRNER) REBEESHZ
Bl-RHEEKRRITE REFEA
HEER (BEEFEREREEE
NBURBERES) NEARERD
T HARIBIL - EIt > AEE W HAE L
FATBRmERBONEIBRER &
FHGIHAREREREERBENRASE
HIEEESRRINI—EHRIEENR
RO —Ke

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

(iii)

(iv)

EFEHRS
Report of the Directors

Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised
application of the Group’s system.

Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels including the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing promotion and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue. The
credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of operating
efficiency” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
31 December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company
and to facilitate its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors
to make informed investment decisions relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20%
of the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
Shareholders in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC while the shares of the Company are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by the respective
laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this annual
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC and Hong Kong that have significant impact on the
Group. In particular, as a food and beverage manufacturer, the
Group’s operations are regulated by the applicable food safety and
environmental protection laws and regulations in the PRC. During
the year under review, the Group did not have any material non-
compliance with such laws and regulations.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

To support environmental protection, the Group initiates and
strives to minimize environmental impact by using water-saving
facilities, conserving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other resources. The Group also requires factories
of an original equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary environmental-related permission and
approval from the PRC regulators. A further discussion of the
environmental policies of the Group is contained in the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report of the Company.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Taipei, Taiwan

7 March 2022
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (% %), aged 65, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 36 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (4% —i87a
A ABFR/AT), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. #i—EXRBRMNEREA
B]), TTET Union Corporation (K& @5 BRAR), Prince
Housing & Development Corp. (K FER KD AR AF)and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (BE#ZRMNAERAE), all of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (f=5C23%4T
BRPBFE/AT), a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (#i — 2 KRB BERAE) (“UPE"),
a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and the director of 102 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, a director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (BI# %), aged 51, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (#—12% (FE) LE B RAQED) (“Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 28 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and
beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (& #F— 1% &
sa A BR/A 8)) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University (FEF3 32 @ A 2) in the PRC.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (B554f), aged 64, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (#—8BmE M BRAE)and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (BEEERMHBRAT), all of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 23 members of UPE Group. He has
over 36 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa, the U.S.A..

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FRE]E) , aged 53, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011 as the
chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/or
supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in
the PRC. From February 2011 to July 2019, he was a director of
Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (8851 & 522
WEERRMHD B RAT) (the Group has disposed all equity interest
in December 2019). Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November
1997 to April 2011. He was appointed as an executive director of
the Company between August 2013 and June 2017. Since July
2017, Mr. Chen was re-designated as a non-executive director of
the Company and was re-designated as the chief financial officer of
UPE. He is currently a director or a supervisor of 5 wholly-owned
subsidiaries/joint ventures of the Group. Mr. Chen is also a director
of 4 members of UPE Group and a director of President Securities
Corp. which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
He has over 25 years of experience in financial management.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (BREE{E), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 38 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of Lion Travel
Services Co., Ltd. and a director of Fubon Financial Holdings.
Prior to that, Mr. Chen was an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation from March 2012 to July 2019, the president
of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater
China regions) between 2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding
Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003 and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the food
and beverage industry through dealing with clients in such industry.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration
from University of Missouri, the U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in
political science from National Chengchi University, Taiwan.
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (BfE %), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”)
in 2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February
2015 in multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific
region. His last position in Zurich was the chairman of the life
and general insurance business in China. Prior to joining Zurich,
Mr. Chen Johnny was an executive member of the Greater-
China Management Board and the Operating Committee of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), as well as a managing partner of
PwC'’s Beijing office. Mr. Chen Johnny is also an independent non-
executive director of Stella International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1836), Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (stock code: 1060)
and China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited (stock
code: 308), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny was the chairman of Convoy Global
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019) (“Convoy”) from December
2017 to March 2021, during which, he was also the executive
director of Convoy from December 2017 to December 2020 and
had been re-designated as an non-executive director of Convoy
from January 2021 to March 2021. From December 2015 to
November 2018, he was an independent non-executive director
of China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation Limited (now
known as China Vered Financial Holding Corporation Limited) (stock
code: 245) and China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code:
3818) from July 2017 to March 2019, all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2010 to February
2019, he was an independent non-executive director of Viva
China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode Island
and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson & Wales
University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony GE{Z#£), aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of Asialink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director
of Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (stock code: 563),
China Dili Group (formerly known as Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited) (stock code: 1387), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1205), China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1868), Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (stock code: 981). Mr. Fan had been the
independent non-executive director of Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 6868) (“Tenfu”) since August 2011
and was re-designated as an executive director of Tenfu in May
2021. Mr. Fan was an independent non-executive director of each
of Lerthai Group Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real
Estate Limited) (stock code: 112) from March 2013 to June 2017,
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
(stock code: 1296) from September 2011 to August 2017, CGN
New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1811) from September
2014 to June 2018 and Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code:
229) from December 1994 to May 2021. All of the said companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds
a master’s degree in business administration from the U.S.A..

Mr. LO Peter (B8E£), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 538), and from March
2011 to June 2018, he was the chairman and an executive director
of China Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo
has over 28 years of experience in the business field and holds a
bachelor's degree in mathematical economics and econometrics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science, the
United Kingdom.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2|$7%£), aged 51, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (%|F3&), aged 52, was appointed as
the chief financial officer of the Group since 1 July 2017. Mr. Liu
also acts as a supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr. Liu joined the Group in June 1998.
He has served as the manager and supervisor of the finance
department at Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd.
FrEsm—rERBARAT), Nanchang President Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (ME#H —1XBRAHE), Shenyang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BEHR— 1 X=ER A E), Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (R##H— X ERBEREA
@) and Zhengzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (EF4&HE—1
B RAT) between June 1998 and September 2014, all being
the subsidiaries of the Group. From August 2007 to May 2012, he
was also the administrative director of the Group in the Northeast
region and Southwest region of the PRC. From October 2014 to
June 2017, he has been the chief accountant of the Group. From
July 1994 to April 1998, Mr. Liu had served in UPE Group and has
over 28 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Liu holds
a bachelor degree in business administration from National Cheng
Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (#: &), aged 45, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BEWLFKE—T 2B RERAT)
from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as the
general manager of the bottled water business of the Group since
October 2006. He has been a general manager of the combined
drinks business of the Group since October 2014. From August
2021, he acted as a general manager of the marketing planning
office of the Group. He has more than 23 years of experience in
the food and beverages industry and holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Shanghai Maritime University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (E#f), aged 40, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (3t
RFE—BMmEM/ASE) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Lid. (EWL#H—BMBMRAE). From 2013 to 2014, he was
responsible for brand management of the Instant Food Department
of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed as the
general manager of the E-commerce Department of the Group
and concurrently served as the strategic development director
of the marketing strategy office. Since September 2017, he has
been the general manager of the business unit of the Life and
Food Business Department and the E-commerce Department of
the Group. He is currently the general manager of the Life and
Food Business Department. Mr. Huang holds a master degree in
business administration (MBA) from the School of Management,
Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (5R1%), aged 53, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(E#—1E¥AIR/AT), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CERR#R— 1A RAT))and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (E#—1xE2®mEME AT . In January
2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food
Department of the Group and was promoted to the position
of General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 27
years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang holds
a bachelor's degree of engineering from the Hankou College of
Huazhong Institute of Technology of the PRC (now renamed as
Huazhong University of Science and Technology) and a master’s
degree in EMBA from Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (BfI%%5), aged 49, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (EM#—112EBRAR), a subsidiary
of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for the
management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (BEM##—1EEBRAE]) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RE#H—TEXBRABERAT),
subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of
the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was promoted to
the position of general manager in July 2013. Before joining the
Group, she has engaged in marketing in various companies such
as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group
(TE#BEREE) and YFY Gk & E&R) and has 25 years of experience
in the food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006,
she started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (k2B m LERMBRRE) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TEFTEIFR £ E)and has since gained 16
years of work experience in Mainland China. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National
Chung Hsing University.

Mr. ZHAO Jinhui (£ #&), aged 44, joined the Group in August
1998. From 2001 to 2010, he successively served as the sales,
planning supervisor and marketing manager of Kunshan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. and Hefei President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd., and had been re-designated to the Marketing Planning
Supervisor of the Combined Drinks Business of the Group in
October 2014. From August 2021, he was appointed as a General
Manager of the Combined Drinks Business of the Group. He has
23 years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and
holds a university degree from Ludong University (formerly Yantai
Teachers College).
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhance
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) then in force during the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst
them (if any) are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profile” in
this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the
Company with their roles and functions is available on our website
and that of the Stock Exchange.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance were
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company.

o Annual Report 2021 £
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first

general meeting of the Company after the appointment.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors’ remunerations are determined with reference to
the Director Nomination Policy (as defined below) and the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), the Directors’ qualifications,
duties, responsibilities and experiences, and the prevailing market

conditions.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
“Investment,

committee (the Strategy and Development

Committee”). Each committee has its terms of reference and

reports to the Board regularly.
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The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”).
The roles of the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) and
the President are performed by separate persons. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties
properly and ensuring discussions on material matters take place
on a timely basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-
day operations and implementation of the strategies and directions
set by the Board are delegated to the management team of the
Company (the “Management”) which is led by the President. The
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the
operation of the Group.

Continuing updates in relation to the obligations of the Company
and the Directors under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on the applicable ordinances,
rules and regulations are provided to Directors from time to time.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of the minimum required number of independent non-
executive Directors which shall be at least one-third of the Board
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules: (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence, and
(b) if an independent non-executive Director has served for more
than nine years, such Director’s further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders
of the Company. Each of Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter has served as the independent non-
executive Directors for more than nine years since 2016, and the
shareholders of the Company have approved their respective
appointment under a separate resolution at the AGM held on 20
May 2016.
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13.
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny
and Mr. Lo Peter have in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, and since they are not involved in the
daily management of the Company nor are they in any relationships
or circumstance which would interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments, the Board is of the opinion that each of
them has the required integrity and independence to continue to
fulfil the role of an independent non-executive director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function including (i) developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, (i)
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company,
and (i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and the
disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they
are able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties
and responsibilities.
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Name of Directors

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Group.
They have also been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. A procedure has been approved by the
Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on continuous professional training. During the Year, all of the
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
in connection with their roles, duties and responsibilities in the
Company by attending seminars, in-house briefings, conferences,
forums, online trainings and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each
Director has provided relevant records of training to the Company
and is summarised as follows.

FREZEENER (D)

Topics on training covered (Note)

BEREE () Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) A B
BN E S Y (AEATIE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) A B, C
IR B )& St &= Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui A B
BREREE A Mr. Su Tsung-Ming A B
FRERTESL A Mr. Chen Sun-Te A B, C
RERASE Mr. Chen Johnny A B
SBERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony A B
BEE25E Mr. Lo Peter A B
M 5E - Note:

A EEER/EE

(B) %

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

(A)  Corporate governance/regulatory

(B)  Finance

(C)  Industry-specific
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at regular intervals. During the Year,
the Board has held four board meetings for, among other matters,
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance
of the Company; reviewing and approving non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year; reviewing and
approving the disclosures in the interim and annual reports and
the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and Corporate
Governance Code; reviewing the Company’s progress in
implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code; making recommendation of
the final dividends for Shareholders’ approval at the next annual
general meeting of the Company; and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the table below:

HE/ BIEERY (1)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

BE BRK
BRZEE RYEZEY HWZEEE BRZEE
EZE8E b & k] g2 RREEAT
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit Nomination Remuneration Development Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
HiTEE Executive Directors
BEREE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 4/4 - 3/3 3/3 2/2 11
b Mr. Liu Xinhua 4/4 - - - 2/2 11
HHITEE Non-executive Directors
REETE Mr. Ghen Kuo Hui 4/4 - - - 2/2 11
BE@ELE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 4/4 3/3 - - 2/2 il
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BRERTESL A Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/4 3/3 - 3/3 2/2 11
BERTE Mr. Chen Johnny 4/4 3/3 3/3 - 2/2 1
BLEEE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 4/4 3/3 - 3/3 2/2 11
BEELLE Mr. Lo Peter 4/4 3/3 3/3 - 2/2 11
MI5E - Note:
1. REFENEERE2BEESEMEMA 1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number

BITEBORH-
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of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.
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In addition, in compliance with code provision A.2.7 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Chairman of the Board held
an annual meeting with the independent non-executive Directors

without the presence of the other Directors in December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) comprised Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen
Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter, being independent non-
executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, being a non-executive
Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da,

Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the

respective website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness of
the internal control practices of the Group. All members of the Audit
Committee attended the meetings during the Year. A summary of
the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and for the Year respectively;

(i)  met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and

findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;
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(i) reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control

systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

(iv) approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2022;

(v)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

(vi)  reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) comprised two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter; and
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings.
All members of the Nomination Committee attended the meetings
during the Year. A summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed the size, composition and structure of the Board;
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(i)  assessed and reviewed of independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors and consideration was
given to independent non-executive Directors who have
served on the Board for more than nine years;

(i) reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

(iv) reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and director nomination policy of the
Company (the “Director Nomination Policy”);

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to cope with the
business demand, grasp opportunities, tackle challenges and/or to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination
Committee has adopted the Director Nomination Policy since 13
December 2018, which serves to improve the transparency of the
process and criteria in selecting and recommending candidates as
Directors for the Board's approval from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. The Directors and the Nomination
Committee will consider and nominate candidates, according to
the Director Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval. In identifying individuals
and making recommendations for nominations, the Nomination
Committee considers whether such individuals have the appropriate
qualifications, abilities and perspectives that would enable them
to effectively fulfil their roles and responsibilities as Directors. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as further set out
in its terms of reference) form the key part under the Director
Nomination Policy.
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Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed
in accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as
may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise for filing the office of an
independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (as amended on
14 December 2018) which aims to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, regional and industry experience. In forming
its perspectives on Board diversity, the Company will also take into
account its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. Please refer to the Company’s website for details of the Board
Diversity Policy.

In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills
on the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains core members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, and will propose
and recommend any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as
it thinks fit to the Board for consideration and approval.
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The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including
their roles as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management, to determine on behalf of the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
and to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available for inspection upon request
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
and on the respective website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the
Year. Al members of the Remuneration Committee attended the
meetings during the Year. A summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the non-executive Directors;

(i)  reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of the
Directors; and

(i) assessed the performance of senior management of the
Group.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

A

Number of

EENEEE Remuneration range persons
AR #1,000,0007c E A R #§1,499,9997T RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,499,999 2
AR #81,500,00075 F A K #2,000,0007T RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000 4
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INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Liu Xinhua,
being executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held
two meetings during the Year. All members of the Strategy and
Development Committee attended the meetings during the Year.

DIRECTORS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and therefore
have recommended the Board to re-appoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the fees paid or payable by
the Group to PwC in respect of the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group amounted to RMB5.5 million and RMB2.2
million respectively. No significant remuneration was paid to PwC
for the provision of non-audit related service to the Company during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE?”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the code for securities
dealing adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than
the Model Code, when dealing in the Company’s shares.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies
and to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with

relevant laws and regulations.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each

review covers a whole financial year.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and to achieve the
Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
considers them effective and adequate. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied
with the present risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During the
Year and as at the date of this annual report, nothing has been
found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if such event might
impact the price or trading volume of the shares of the Company.
Should public disclosure of inside information be required,
announcements in relation to inside information, being approved
by the executive Directors under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, would be published by the Company as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as
defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO”).
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The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may from
time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”"), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules which provide updated information
of the Group on the website of the Stock Exchange at “http://www.
hkexnews.hk”; and (iii) the provision of the latest information of the
Group and, if appropriate, press releases of the Company at the
Company’s website at “www.uni-president.com.cn”.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
21 May 2021. All members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-
Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present at the AGM to answer
questions raised by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM.
The Company’s external auditors and the Company Secretary also
attended the aforesaid AGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong a written requisition specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s)
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at a general
meeting of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of the deposit of the requisition
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.
Shareholders may send their enquiries in respect of other
matters to the Company Secretarial Office by post to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or
by fax to +852 2893 1150.

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at general meetings under
the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and
Articles of Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do so, they
may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above and
specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not amend its constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
Company’s external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the role of the Company Secretary was performed
by Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (“Mr. Fung”), who is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. In compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Fung has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the Year.
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To the shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 96 to 232, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
ALK at I E BT PR PR

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Mtk : +852 2289 8888 + fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

o Deferred income tax assets
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMEstRIErRR S EIE

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

W ai (BEE | B i &

Refer to Note 2.23 (Summary of significant
accounting policies) and Note 5 (Revenue
and segment information) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

F2hR BEEGAMBBmERME2.23 (£
BEHREME) RMES Kam kD EE
) o

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group recognised revenue from sales of
goods amounted to RMB25,231 million.
BE2021F12831HILEEE > SEEER
i E W m st AR 25,2318 & T o

Revenue is recognised when the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the control of promised good
or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for that
good or service.

E BEENTRRAEFEEERIRBE
GFENBEANEE BEFfEERR E5H
AR ZEFERNRBAERESHN
B 75 A FESBARRAAYEH & Wam o

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

EMEATIE—SFE TvEK SEEEXERN
FmifERXZ AR AMERZHNER
REUEZBER GEOMRIAMRNER
HRAALHR o

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group’s sales transactions. In addition, we tested the
general control environment of the Group’s information technology
systems and the automated controls that were related to revenue
recording.

BMTHR MG LEEEEEYN SEERmEERZ 2T -
tEoh > FHFTAE BEEEFEERMASK —REFIRE WA
BT sC A B 2 B BTl o

We conducted testing of revenue transactions on a sample basis by
examining the relevant supporting documents including customer
contracts and orders, goods delivery notes and good receipt
records. In addition, we circularised confirmations on a sample
basis on trade receivables balances as at the balance sheet date.
EMBEBETOREERENATE - REERRFENGEHTN
B8 A 28 BA S M4 S U P SR E AT A ORI Bl o LB SN RPN E B
R EERE W B 7 R AS R3S HEAs8 R o

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and good receipt records,
to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct reporting
periods.

IS M EESBERAABREEHEANNEERZETA
o B ERERE N EE ST i UL E BN E B S
FEE RS -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods being tested were supported by the evidences that
we obtained.
RBHPIPF I TR E st LIF > HPIR =
TmARERBEX -

EEEAGBRHEER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E st RIERE St EIE

Deferred income tax assets

BREFREREE

Refer to Note 2.20 (Summary of significant
Note 4.1 (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and

accounting policies),

Note 20 (Deferred income tax) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

w2k BEEGSUBBRRWT2.20 (FE
S ECREME) K541 BIREsHEE R
ER) K Bff5E20 GRIEFTISHR) ©

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax
assets of approximately RMB200 million were
recognised for tax losses that can be carried
forward in respect of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China, to the extent that, realisation
of the related tax benefits through the
availability of future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB160 million
in respect of tax losses that can be carried
forward but the availability of future taxable
profit is not probable.

1220215128310 BEERERKIAH
REFAEERNEMIGFTISEE Rl AR
ETHEB RS HHRRBEABRBEINZR
BEBEDRLEFSENEETROARSARE
20088 . BEELAEMAIGEEEL ER
7R HA [ FE 40 AR PR 15 88 2 R TE S 18 FR S0 AR IE P
BREENAREI0EE T
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors.

BT REREERSVELPISINE E S ERAER TS KRG8
12 WiRIEE Bk 5t N E 14 02 E e B At P9 7 R F R A K
AR IR B A SR PRI B9 I 7E ELBR ©

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias and assessed the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process.
ERBERTEN -0 RAULEBRAEEEREGHUFIEEZ
BRABR UNEBABRABRAFZARBRECFEEIERE
RRUTHERE T EBENE L

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross profit margin, by
comparing them to these entities’ historical operating results
and future operating plans, together with economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate. We also considered the potential
impact of reasonably possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.
EMTEREREEEHBERAMNBEENERTFATMEN
AREFBRAFBAZSEM EHRMANTEPERBIELETE
BRER GIMBAREXRNENZ T BEBLEBAERTFAA
NELEIERARSESS UESHKBERTEZEA (HE
) - B Mt F B EIER I EELEN T EBHEAE
EEFHRNBER EETIMb o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KB R IERRE T SIE

Significant judgement is required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether
future taxable profit will be available against
which the accumulative tax losses can be
utilised. Management prepared a 5-year profit
forecast to assess the probability of generating
sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future. The major assumptions involved were
revenue growth rate and gross profit margin.
FHUREPRISIR B EN RIS RE B H
EERIRKEZEHRELE EHNRMNIRFTE
LU AR RAMNBHEE - EEERED
FEAFBR AR I ER S RELEN
FEERIR AN B AT AEM - F B /RFZ W R 1g
EEREREo

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity of the model, and high degree of
uncertainty and subjectivity of the estimations
on the forecast of the availability and timing
of future taxable profits, including the key
assumption of revenue growth rates and gross
profit margin.

ZRIZEUARG +DEM > BHFERARRK
EMMPTISRER BIRM R HRBNGE (B
FHRALEZMNENEEHNARRSR
GESERREMEMEIHMN i ILEFARE
BETEE
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We have also verified the existence and amounts of tax losses,
together with their expiry dates, and the income tax rates applicable
to the entities by examining the tax returns submitted by the
relevant entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax
authorities.
BRPTEABZEFAIERFHREURBTENHRBEZE
o UBRENBEENGET SENERN SN FREARE R
BB AR

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to the
recognition of deferred tax assets in the context of HKFRSs.
BB BRERYHBREEN T EARERELENEBEEENIRERZ
BRE

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we obtained.

RIBHMFT TSRS LIF > RS EIEEH HWIREFRER
BERIZHAE RMEsTEA T EREBEFo
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R Rk 1

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement
HZE2021F12H31H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
M 5E ARBFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 5 25,230,613 22,761,822
THE AR Cost of goods sold 6 (17,011,703)  (14,695,891)
EH Gross profit 8,218,910 8,065,931
HFE—#% Other gains - net 7 78,007 106,695
HkA Other income 8 477,500 366,515
Hhfaxz Other expenses 6 (276,965) (122,599)
HERMIZEERS Selling and marketing expenses 6 (5,542,816) (5,350,387)
TERZ Administrative expenses 6 (1,048,801) (957,882)
BT Operating profit 1,905,835 2,108,273
RRE WA Finance income 232,752 229,626
B A Finance costs (31,715) (57,212)
MBI A—F2E Finance income — net 10 201,037 172,414
DEmEARZ Share of profits of investments
FE(E B iR T accounted for using the
equity method 18 34,970 45,772
MREREIRAIEF Profit before income tax 2,141,842 2,326,459
PR Income tax expenses 11 (641,127) (700,756)
ERATESZFEA Profit for the year attributable to
FE(EF EiEF the equity holders
of the Company 1,500,715 1,625,703
FEXAATESZFTEA Earnings per share for profit
FEhiEH 2 SREF attributable to the equity
MUEBR ARG holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—BERKEE — Basic and diluted 12 34.74%3cents  37.64%3cents

B103E22BE ZMEBA A FEEMBRE
Z—8B5e

The notes on pages 103 to 232 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
B ZE2021F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
B 5 AREBFTT AR®BTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEF Profit for the year 1,500,715 1,625,703
Htha2mEm=s (518 - Other comprehensive income/
(losses):
FEEFH FEEHEm ZIEH  Items that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
BN T EF AEMEEER Fair value gains/(losses) on financial
STRIBEEZ AT ERR assets at fair value through other
(B518) —BRT2ER comprehensive income, net of tax 19 23 (3,099)
BAREHNAEZENFE Remeasurements of post-mployment
benefit obligations 343 -
FEHMZ2EUE  (B518) Other comprehensive income/
— BRI IFEE (losses) for the year,
net of tax 366 (8,099)
TATREEFEARGZ Total comprehensive income
FEEINGELEEE for the year attributable
to the equity holders
of the Company 1,501,081 1,622,604

F103E22BH MBI ARS8 FEHE  The notes on pages 103 to 232 are an integral part of these

Z—®7e

consolidated financial statements.

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
72021512831 H As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
M5 AREBFTT AE®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
EREEE Non-current assets
MEE -~ B R E Property, plant and equipment 14 7,256,556 7,977,445
ERESE Right-of-use assets 15 1,691,168 1,759,218
=LY/ Investment properties 16 275,630 294,411
mEEE Intangible assets 17 6,702 8,756
MR ZARNKEE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 18 812,899 793,602
BT EFAEMEMm Financial assets at fair value through
WEMERMEE other comprehensive income 19 = 2,546
BRAFEFAERD Financial assets at fair value
THEE through profit or loss 25 300,120 -
RILFREME E Deferred income tax assets 20 391,539 371,517
HihfEWEIE—JERIHAEB>  Other receivables
— non-current portion 24 17,136 15,833
RIACBREM Long-term time deposits 26 3,950,000 4,720,000
14,701,750 15,943,328
REBEE Current assets
=78 Inventories 22 2,392,506 1,943,492
FE U B 7 BR A R ik Trade and bills receivables 23 648,531 580,509
BAHRIEBE -EE& Prepayments, deposits and
H g RIE other receivables 24 762,331 623,109
EHI W CI PSR IR R Current income tax recoverable 15,625 39,288
BAFEFAERD Financial assets at fair value
TMEE through profit or loss 25 1,415,328 1,621,634
RERIRITHERR Cash and bank balances 26 2,128,271 1,348,431
7,362,592 6,156,463
DEAREHENEE Assets classified as held for sale 1,004 4,580
7,363,596 6,161,043
HWEE Total assets 22,065,346 22,104,371
HE EQUITY
ERATESZFEA Equity attributable to equity
P& #E = holders of the Company
PRI Share capital 27 39,764 39,764
1= ERR Share premium account 27 4,829,899 4,829,899
HihE#E Other reserves 28 3,543,702 3,153,570
RE&BF Retained earnings 5,351,936 5,863,300
HarEn Total equity 13,765,301 13,886,533

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
12021FE12331H As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
IS AREFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
aE LIABILITIES
ERENER Non-current liabilities
FIEPTIEMEE Deferred income tax liability 20 331,021 297,996
HEaE—IJEREE D Lease liabilities — non-current portion 15 17,744 16,343
HEAFIE—IEBNEAEES  Other payables — non-current portion 30 268,400 237,478
617,165 551,817
mENaRE Current liabilities
FE{T B SR Trade payables 29 2,118,048 1,879,727
HMENHRIERESTER Other payables and accruals 30 2,068,417 2,721,287
aHaE Contract liabilities 5(b) 3,233,044 2,426,669
= Borrowings 31 112,300 487,072
fEas Lease liabilities 15 19,675 28,973
EHFERNaR Current income tax liabilities 131,396 122,293
7,682,880 7,666,021
=R Total liabilities 8,300,045 8,217,838
EERaEIEEE Total equity and liabilities 22,065,346 22,104,371

$5103E232B 2 i sE B A4 575K The notes on pages 103 to 232 are an integral part of these
Z—®7e consolidated financial statements.

%962’%2325\?&“@ B #53R R E 2022438  The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 232 were
HE&EEag g WH N ALTARKRESE approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2022 and were

%Eﬁ% ° signed on its behalf.
BEX EIEES
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HiTEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
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EARBEBR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2021F12H31H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

FAREEREAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R4 i iEE HithfE s RERF EH
Share Share Other Retained
R capital premium reserves earnings Total
Mz AREBTT ARBTn ARETx ARBTx ARBTn
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
14202051818 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2020 39,764 4,829,899 2,767,524 5995743 13,632,930
2EY%E Comprehensive income
FERF Profit for the year - - - 1,625,703 1,625,703
2 miiam Other comprehensive income
—BAFESAEMSE - Fair value losses on financial
WalerEEy assets at fair value through
NFEEE-FRFE other comprehensive income,
net of tax 19 - - (3,099) - (3,099
Hitt2 EARAE Total other comprehensive loss - - (3,099) - (3,009)
FEZZENGER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (3,099) 1,625,703 1,622,604
WHERATEARM  Transfer of losses on disposal of
2EBENRAZEN equity investments at fair value
BERERERERR through other comprehensive
income to retained earnings - - 3,035 (3,035) -
HEAANETZRS Transaction with owners
b Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(b) 386,110 (386,110) -
H019E B2 RE Dividends relating to 2019 - - Z (1,369.001)  (1,369,001)
R2020512B31H 248  Balance at 31 December 2020 39,764 4,829,899 3,163,570 5,863,300 13,886,533
R2021FE1B18 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2021 39,764 4,829,899 3,153,570 5,863,300 13,886,533
EEkE Comprehensive income
FEEN Profit for the year - - - 1,500,715 1,500,715
HtzElam Other comprehensive income
—RATESGIAHMEE - Fair value gains on financial

WENemHEE assets at fair value through

NEEWE R other comprehensive income,

o net of tax 19 - - 23 - 23
—BEHBENEBEN - Remeasurements of post-

EEE employment benefit obligations - - 343 - 343
Hth2mR A5 Total other comprehensive income - - 366 - 366
FEZZENGHEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 366 1,500,715 1,501,081
BHERATEAEM  Transfer of losses on disposal of
E2EKENREREN equity investments at fair value
BHRERERIRT through other comprehensive
income to retained earnings - - 24,859 (24,859) -
HBEFEANETZRE Transaction with owners
BUOELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(b) 364,907 (364,907) -
H0205 5/ BE Dividends relating to 2020 - (1,622313)  (1,622,313)
K2021F12B31H 248k  Balance at 31 December 2021 39,764 4,829,899 3,543,702 5,351,936 13,765,301

F103E232B 2B AIES
Z—E5 e

B # %X  The notes on pages 103 to 232 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B ZE2021F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
B 5 AREBFTT AR®BTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEHZRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
EEESXCIRS Cash generated from operations 32 3,048,598 3,885,530
BAMERE Interest expenses paid (31,794) (57,397)
EAT1ER Income tax paid (595,444) (612,906)
EEEPELEFIRS Net cash generated from
operating activities 2,421,360 3,215,227
KREEHZRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BEYE BMEKREELUKR  Purchases of property,
KREYE plant and equipment and
investment properties (377,980) (817,730)
EEETLEE Purchases of intangible assets (5,042) (4,605)
BEEATES AER Purchase of financial assets at
NEREE fair value through profit or loss (2,400,000) (2,626,483)
HECHAESE - *- Proceeds from disposal of right-of-
BB K 5% 2 FRiS 7038 use assets and property, plant and
equipment 32,327 308,296
HERAFEFAEMEE Proceeds from disposal of financial
W EMEEL assets at fair value through other
Frigs 18 comprehensive income 2,569 382
HERAFEFAEGDHN Proceeds from disposal of financial
ETMBEEZIEMIE assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2,363,120 1,062,469
HEGEPER Proceeds from disposal of
—EEHE QTN investments in joint ventures and
KRESHIA an associate = 7,178
ZIRAIIRITERN (Increase)/decrease in restricted bank
gm m deposits 26 (10,900) 500
FfBBE=EA Increase in time deposits with
EHREMRZ I8 maturity more than 3 months 26 (199,644) (155,911)
BeEh*ER Dividends received from
—REBEREINENZ KB joint ventures and an associate 18 15,673 25,110
REGEMAZ 2R Net cash used in investing activities (579,877) (1,700,794)

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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EARSRER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HZE2021F12H31H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
M AREBTT AE®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RMEEHZRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
IRITEEPERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 31 8,078,799 12,313,727
BERTEE Repayments of bank borrowings 31 (8,453,571)  (12,989,345)
HENMRAEHD Principal elements of lease payment (44,961) (39,315)
BAABEEFAA Dividends paid to equity holders
THRE of the Company (1,622,310) (1,369,030)
MEFHAZPRE Net cash used in financing activities (2,042,043) (2,083,963
HERREEEWHLVFEE Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (200,560) (569,530)
FYZzRERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year 486,300 1,056,780
ReERREEEYZ Exchange losses on cash
bE R 518 and cash equivalents (167) (950)
FRZ2BERIASEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 26 285,573 486,300

$£103E2328 Z s B &
Z—845 e

102

VPN

ZERMBE®E  The notes on pages 103 to 232 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of beverages and food in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Beverages
and Food Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

104

EEGTHERRE

A FINERFERZEFFEMBRE
RFIRMZ TB2EABR-BFRER
BRSN ZEHREBMERNRAZ25 2
PREFE-

2.1 MREEE

FEBZEAVHBRERDRES
AEAGHEMNEEMBHR
SR (EBMBREEN) K&
BB EFRE ) BIRE R E R
H-ZFEEMBRECRESE
PRARERR LA FEFERN
ETEMEERER (BETE
TH) SN ATEFENERR
FBRAKSEI 2 EMEEETERE
BIEERIN o

MUTEEBYBFREER M
BHREBEERE THRI MG
H-BENEEEEBTRALNE
B 5 BURBE T WA B o 5%
EHRBEIRSEHENSEEME
MR S REEEMHR
KBERZBRMGEE W EE4
REE) °

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies

adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to

all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value or revalued amount and plan
assets of defined benefit pension plans measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
mBEAE (B

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Bt ERKEZE

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@)  NEEERANEIFTET RASAEST (a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
EAY

ZIEM] AT ER R AR S
B HER AEERfRER
Mz EEEEH G BRI

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. The Group
did not change its accounting policies or make

8 EE 2 o

retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these

standards.

RUTRSS Effective for
WA (] annual periods
EEBELN beginning on
or after
BRMBRLGENR HEER4E WNEIRE HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark 1 January 2021
§oEBeHENE 2R 39 and HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
WEREEIRRS HKFRS 4 and
EAlETE FAY HKFRS 16
BREENESR (Amendments)
BRURRERE
168 (537

(b)  TFIBEMEMEF20214F1
B 1H BRI I E e R
0 BN B I FIRANIIHT
TR ZERNEST B 51155/

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to
standards, accounting guidance and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have

AR FE L not been early adopted:
RUTES Effective for
LR annual periods
EEBELN beginning on
or after
FEUBRLEN  Coi0BEES  J01EBIR HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related Rent 1 April 2021
F168% (:78) gk (Amendments) Concessions
TREHENZ6E  WE BRRZE plirzialzhle HKAS 16 Property, Plant and 1 January 2022
(:7%) Remeaz (Amendments) Equipment: Proceeds
e before intended use
BREHENETE  BEMAA-BT  AnEiAMA HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of 1 January 2022
(:7%) aHzHE (Amendments) Fulfiling a Contract
BANTREENZN WROERIRL AR HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
(BT (Amendments) Framework
EEEEE LEAHEHNE  A2EIAIE Accounting Merger Accounting for 1 January 2022
(1%) etk Guideline 5 Common Control
(Amendments) Combinations

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2]

R 75 3k R Mt X

EESHERE (8

RBLEE (B

21.1 B HERREZEE (8)

(b) A EBEMGEF20214F1
51H B35BT B 5 R A
X B IV K B FTHRANEIHT
TR ERNEST ~ & 51755

REEEE (&
RITEET
bA: Lol
EESREY
BEMERCEN  RRAR N3E1A1H
EilE
ERGEIRE  BEREAN®Y  AEAIR
(75) E3iE)
EESHEISINR  SHMKINE 23R8
BRUERLEY
ERERER
(1)
ERGHEIEE  giiiiies NBERIA
(75)
BEOHENENE  HE-QBMEL  BEIAIA
(B37%) LBERER
Bz ERE
BEpERSEN  REEEHER FE
B0ERERET  NFUnELE
ERZ0% (B510)  ZEZEEHE
TRA
ERRREg PRRRZEN-  dERRAEE
(2000%) EZ\HEAR  SHENSIER
ERENEIN il
THEINNE
H018E ZA0NE B NFIAIA
LERURREED
fEENE

A& B IE ST 2 B s ZRE
S gEtiESI B Z BTN E

=,
&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to
Standards, accounting guidance and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023
(Amendments) Current or Non-current
HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practise Policies
Statement 2
(Amendments)
HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting 1 January 2023
(Amendments) Estimates
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to 1 January 2023
(Amendments) Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of To be determined
HKAS 28 assets between an
(Amendments) investor and its associate
or joint venture
Hong Kong Presentation of Financial Applied when
Interpretation 5 Statements - an entity applies
(2020) Classification by the Amendments to
Borrower of a Term HKAS 1
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause
Annual 1 January 2022
Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018 - 2020

The Group is assessing the full impact of the new
standards and amendments to standards, accounting
guidance and interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

EEESBERME (8)

2.2 MBATE 2.2 Subsidiaries

221 F5RkE

MEAREAEEEREREZ
B (BREERER) A58
2HEZBRZIEMOHATER
WEAEF WAENBEHZ
BERZEENZERRAORE
AMBHZERAERE-NEA
SHREFREEEAEEEHR
BEEAR TRXEEREE
BRGIBEG AR

NEBZRBURRBREEZ
MER R AREBIRAGH T LUHE-
REREETTHE -NEATE
FRERTRERTEFLHAE
Dt REAEE 2 G 5t BUERRET

—Heo

@ FHaH

AEERBBEGHARERS
HAR - BB BLRDE
BIAEBRAEEEE -FREE
BERFTEBFMETRENAF
B-FFEEAEEEIRRNER
FMEEEREEREGBHNAT
B-REHBEHPUWBBI AR A
BEE -RENBERIRER
MPREBEBNAFEE-
AEBUAFERIFEGIE BT
BERBES IR FEENE
TS RZFERER
SR R I B 75 BY IRl
MR o
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2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@  Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9 either in the income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Principle of equity accounting

2.3.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.3.2 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are all entities over which the Group
has joint control but not solo control. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24

Principle of equity accounting (Continued)
2.3.3 Equity method (Continued)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.9.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.

117



4= A
777 g e |

R 75 E = MY 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BEGHERME (8@

25 JMNEBE

112

@ IERZEFIEE

FEBRBERZMBREMEE
BB DHRZBBEEEMEZ
TECERIREZEE (TEE
) HE-AEBKREDERZ
NEEB/ARE TARKEY o
HAEVBRRUAEABINESH
REAEBZ2HEBAREZ
Bl e

b) XZRAZEF

AEBRSEENIINERZHEAR
SREBENMFENGEBHRN
BT ERERBERINEER
BHILERZEENER RN
REHNESENEREENGR
UERERBBELENERERE
EREm R -

HEGNMERETRFEEEEYER
NEREBETERGXRANTRME
WA AR 25 Fr A HAth
EREBEERmRAN THMTA
B FEIRZEY-

FEBREMEE WHAFRAF
Bt ABRfhe2EWED ((HtEE
Wat)) 2@ 2 EREFEIT
AHMEERmRZAFERRE
Ao

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“BMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) are included in the fair
value reserves in other comprehensive income.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(¢) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance

with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:
Buildings
Machinery and factory equipment

Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%

20 years
10 years
3-5 years

5 years or shorter



2

EEESBERME (8)

2.6

2.7

iR e MR R M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.7

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’
in the income statement.
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2.10.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continueq)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the income
statement as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

211

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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212 KT T A 2.12 Offsetting financial instruments
THMEEREESFEREE > MK Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
BAER LT RGIBITEAIEHEE amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
MRATERERLUFREEESE a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
REANBREEREEERE amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
TEEBERIRZFEH EE net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
A fsmTEN T RARTH simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
BEHAMERKEREREREF be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
RRABSHEFHERNRIE & in the normal course of business and in the event of
TIE BB SR E BRF m] sR 01T o default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

213178 2.13 Inventories
GFEERAETEREEME T Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
2 RAEE S ER o A A E N F realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
A E - RmRkEH@mZEA average method. The cost of finished goods and work
BEERME-BEBS T REME in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
ERAREBBEEREMRS (% direct costs and related production overheads (based
HEEZRENS rFEEEE on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
AR FEREUNAEER costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
ZHESTEBREERCEEIHE in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
M2 BTS2 888 - variable selling expenses.

2.14 BN E 5 R EMERR 2.14 Trade and other receivables
FEWNEZRNATHE XHED Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
PR @I E AR HITMEU for merchandise sold or services performed in the
BERZFIBE -MEWE 5 K Hfh ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
IR Z W TEERE1E U A (10 other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
MEESK&EEAF ATRE the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
BE)  EWNBARSEE, & they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
BlZIERSBEEZT o presented as non-current assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.10.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 2.10.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EEIGHHBREE (8)

217 BB S REMERR 2.17 Trade and other payables
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SR BB 1 ERUA D
FESBKERBRAS AR B &E
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Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.20 EHARIRIEFRISIR (BB) 2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) BEEZFFFH
ATEEE

BIEFFERABEaEEIRIEE
MeBREREENGEEY
BREANRAENZEMEEN
BRMEER A HEEMRR
MREBERS (FEEEBEH)
PHEENRBNBES M
EXRGBAZEGHEHEHER
MAENEE FRSSERHE
B B9 FEER AR K B 40 R B 1 =
oA RNER IR - EBIEFT S IR X
BEGEANERHMRNEELE
B WHEABMOELRFRE
ERRWELEFMBRAREER
R EBERANRE (BEF)
HEE-

BIEFFSMNEERMBEAIEAR
RIERIRF MR LUL A (£ 8 B By
M= B AT o

SMEEE

s 25 X B BE 12 ) 5 [ B B 2 3R Y
REhZEERAUESNGRA
R EER A ERMIRHE R
BMERBREGELHNRE
WAREERREZ BT R EE
BIELERBEEEREE-

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ’] 25

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.21

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and where the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxed levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
Pension obligation - defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligation - defined contribution plan
(Continued)

@  Employees of the Group in the Mainland China

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations

in the Mainland China, employees of the Group in the

Mainland China participated in the central pension

scheme (“‘Scheme”), which is a defined contribution

plan administered by the Mainland China government,

whereby the Group is required to make contributions

to the Scheme based on certain percentages of the

eligible employees’ salaries. The local government

authorities are responsible for the entire pension

obligations payable to the retired employees.

Contributions made to the Scheme vest immediately.

(b)  Employees of the Group in Hong Kong

In compliance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws

of Hong Kong), employees of the Group in Hong Kong

are required to participate in the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme of the Group (“MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution plan administered

by an independent corporate trustee. Under the MPF

Scheme, each of the Group and the employees are

required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme

at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject

to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligation - defined contribution plan
(Continued)

(c)  Employees of the Group in Taiwan

Pursuant to the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan,
employees of the Group in Taiwan participated in the
Labour Pension Fund, which is a defined contribution
plan managed by the Bureau of Labour Funds as
governed by the Ministry of Labour in Taiwan (“Ministry
of Labour”). Under such plan, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the Bureau of Labour
Insurance, Ministry of Labour at 6.0% of the employees’
total monthly wages. Contributions made to such
pension fund vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned
defined contribution plans in the Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan are expensed as incurred and not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the defined contribution plans prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Pension obligation - defined benefit plan (Continued)

Certain Taiwan employees of the Group elected to
participate in a defined benefit plan in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan (“Defined
Benefit Plan”). Under the Defined Benefit Plan, pension
benefits are calculated based on the years of service
and average monthly salary of the six months preceding
retirement of the relevant employee, and the Group
is required to make monthly contributions of 2% to
15% of the total monthly wages of the employees to a
pension fund (“Pension Fund”). Pension contributions
are deposited into the Bank of Taiwan in the name of
the pension fund provision supervision committee of the
Group. Before the end of each financial year, the Group
will assess the balance in the Pension Fund. In the
event that the balance in the Pension Fund is insufficient
to pay out pension benefits to retiring employees in the
following financial year, the Group is required to pay up
such difference on its own account.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and food.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfiled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

EEESBERME (8)

2.23 Wiz kESR (48) 2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

7 £ [ 75 15 & 52 1 B B 20 B UK
> B 2 I B U (B 4L E B0 A2 ) 2
BIEHN AEEEREAES
2R o

FERFEEMERBANRIE
Emie R - AEERIHER
ERRERBERMGLSTBARERMR - E
EmREAREBREREBER
BOREBUAEKR - EREIBRR
Wiz EARERIBARRIER S E
EoEIE BIEMBRE VRN
BR-AEBERIBRSBHREN
P LR 2B W KRR
T RERY G ST o

HRmERMEHEZHNET
IR AEERAE PR MR
WA MRS Rt B HE
BB R

FEBEBEFSITIEEENEIRE
OB EM - HIt > AEBEL K
AEBREEEEEENEABEE
75 o

2.24 BT 4B

WA S EMREAEE RS ULE
i BY K A S B 73 & P B MY 75 1%
> RIEUF fBh I8 A T EREED

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 /] 81

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.

2.24 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.



4= A
777 g e |

R 75 E = MY 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BEGHERME (8@

2.24 BT HEEN (48)

BERABBZBNF@EEE
SIE - 37 7% 478 B 45 4 18 2 Bl A P 3%
FZHBRRED RN -

B ERERYE BERR
1A Bl 2 BUAT # B 5 7 1B SE LT
e AR ERERIEL
BT/ TRAEEEZ B
FHUE®ESt ABme

2.25 F| B A

ERABRANF A ZBIHNEFE
WEBREENFSWAEED
SRS EMB AN —E D -

FEWAZINAFHEREEER
BN ETREEFMBRNAOBRE R
A B2HETXHWEI1I0-EFE
fthF S WA ST AE MU A ©

226 flHE

132

HERIADEREEE  LEMH
EEEVMHAEREAZAER
HE&E-

HEEENEERBRMBUR
BEEEFE-HEEREEETE
TR (BEEEEEMNR NRE
FPRE

RECGEBRERAREZEMFLN
HENMIFt AR E-

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received.

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability, and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in the income statement. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal Group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal Group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in
the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from
other liabilities in the balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for
certain PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by Group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
] Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables (Note 23),
cash and bank balances (Note 26) and borrowings
(Note 31), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
approximately RMB277,000 lower/higher (2020:
RMB376,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

TR AEFANREAREE
AERSNEREE (UARET T

(@) Market risk (Continued)
0 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Exposure

The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,

FME) : was as follows:
SAE At
NETEHE WATEHE BEGtfE
Other
usb HKD currencies
denominated denominated denominated
12021%F12A31H As at 31 December 2021
Re Cash 1,559 712 24
FEWE 5 R Trade receivables 1,128 2,870 -
120205128311 As at 31 December 2020
Re Cash 2,224 1,962 27
YR E ZEREh Trade receivables 1,303 3,031 =
RIEmKRER &5 Amounts recognised in the income statement

FREREBERRED T ZIMNE

During the year, the following foreign-exchange related

MERERE amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2021 2020
ARBTT ARMFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB WA —F8A Finance income — net
—RHEEEIEERESE - Foreign exchange losses
on financing activities (165) (771)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to major equity securities price
risk because of its holding of listed equity investments
which are classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as financial assets at FVOCI (Note 19). The Group has
not hedged its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities financial assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.

The Group disposed all financial assets at FVOCI in
2021.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 31) with interest charges and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 25) with
expected return rate, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 26 and Note 31 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB44,745,000 (2020: RMB41,893,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL, and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables.

() Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2021, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk. The table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by

AEIRITIR T 4ERR counterparties:
2021 2020
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000

7Vl Counterparties

—AHEEBEAEITT - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 624,080 758,317
—4NEIRTT — Foreign owned banks 3,775,065 3,738,884
—HME R ERTT — Other domestic commercial banks 1,678,544 1,569,318
6,077,689 6,066,519

* MAFEEANETEERET
BIRTKROBRAR HEE
FRTROBRLE P EHIR
TRMHABRATB RPEERIER
TRHBIRAT -

Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
0 Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with bills receivables, all of which are bank
acceptance bills since they are substantially deposited
at or issued by state-owned banks and other medium
or large sized listed banks. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents and bills receivable are

also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS
9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

RO0OXA  91E180K 181E365%k  —EUE At
Within 91to 181 to Over
2021128318 31 December 2021 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
BB ELE Expected loss rate 0.41% 11.84% 64.60%  100.00%
BREE Gross carrying amount
—EWRE SR — trade receivables 595,300 48,181 6,526 2,993 653,000
EREE Loss allowance 2,437 5,705 4,216 2,993 15,351
POOKA  91E180K 181E365Kk  —ELE A5t
Within 91to 181 10 Over
2020F12H31H 31 December 2020 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
BB ELE Expected loss rate 0.89% 16.63% 77.34% 100.00%
BREE Gross carrying amount
—EWRE SR — trade receivables 541,309 42,021 2,290 1,239 587,359
EiREE Loss allowance 4,807 6,987 1,771 1,239 14,804
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueqd)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 are reconciled to the opening losses
allowances as follows:

2021 2020
AR®Tx ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1B1H B ¥ Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
B 14,804 13,304
FARBRRERD Increase in loss allowance recognised in
ESIE RN (Mi5E6)  the income statement during the year
(Note 6) 4,338 1,500
RERERFAER Receivables written off during
FRIE M EE BY FE WL AR TR the year as uncollectible (3,791) =
MR12831 B AYHAR Closing loss allowance as at
EE R 31 December 15,351 14,804

ERFEN KBNS ERRER
FEEEMHERWEZRR T
FEIKREIMNSERANERE
B EPEE GBABLELE
B2 A 1B TR 5T B R A BL AL BRI
BE0H E90H KIBRRIFH B XIS
= (ERE -

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was
no increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other receivables
within the Group mainly include interest receivables,
amounts due from related parties and customs
deposits.

o Interest receivables arise from time deposits
in state-owned banks and other medium or
large sized listed banks institutions which are
considered with low credit risk;
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueqd)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

° Amounts due from related parties are considered
as low credit risk which mainly arise from
the subsidiaries of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation, ultimate holding company of the
Group, which has A grade credit rating issued
by Taiwan Ratings Corp., a subsidiary of
internationally renowned credit rating agency S&P
Global Rating.

Historically, all other receivables were collected on
timely basis. Management assesses and concludes that
these receivables are considered to be low credit risk
where they have a low risk of default and have a strong
capacity to meet the contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. And thus, the identified impairment loss
is immaterial.

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in
the income statement

During the year, the following losses were recognised
in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement in
relation to impaired financial assets:

2021 2020
AR®BFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUR B 5 BRF Y Movement in loss allowance for
BEEEEES trade receivables 4,338 1,500

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

147



4= A
777 g e |

R 75 3k R Mt X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBRAKER (@

3.1

148

HEEREE (@)
b) EEEEGE
(i) B FEFFAB DL HEE

REBBAFEFABRZN SR
EEORERABRABRERENT
HSRITE R (RA) - EBEER
RREES AEBMEEERLRE
BIfE B aT 4R LIRS HIRE BB AL
(F5E25) °

) FEHEZEE

BRZADETRAREERTE
MBREAZRERREEFEY
BERBERBZERHEERE
BELUMFAIHRES ki

MHEBRITZEN - ZEEZBR
DB RRZE KA EERER
E - UEREAEREETHANE
mZETAHEA

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL are comprised
of term bank products (principal protected), structured
deposit and investment fund considered to be low risk
investments. The credit ratings of the investments are
monitored for credit deterioration (Note 25).

(¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3.1 Ed‘}&}—“; .% (nﬁ) 3.1

(c) TEEZEE (5B)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities

that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the

balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

HRBRRERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
PR-F —EmE WERE BBRLE st
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ABETR ARETE ABKTR ARETR ABKTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20215128310 As at 31 December 2021
B8 Borrowings 112,300 - - - 112,300
BEHERT Interest payments on borrowings 337 - - - 337
HEEE Lease liabilities 20,558 13,456 4,582 - 38,596
FE(TEZEN Trade payables 2,118,048 = = - 2,118,048
EERTIER Other payables and accruals,
B ER (excluding non-financial liabilities)
(FEEEEHERE) 1,510,290 - - - 1,510,290
HEMREFEMNTIE  Other long term payables - 267,763 - - 267,763
3,761,533 281,219 4,582 - 4,047,334
#2020F12831H  As at 31 December 2020
B8 Borrowings 487,072 = = = 487,072
BEN AR Interest payments on borrowings 10,479 = = = 10,479
HEaR Lease liabilities 30,078 13,696 2,037 = 46,711
BB ZERaT Trade payables 1,879,727 = = - 1,879,727
EMERTIER Other payables and accruals,
Jiap=t: (excluding non-financial liabilties)
(FaEEEHat) 2,226,326 - - - 222632
HtREE(FIE  Other long term payables = 237,478 = = 237,478
4,633,682 251,174 2,937 - 4,887,793
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net cash divided by total equity.

iH— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

EMF
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEsE Total borrowings
(BEEEAERE) (including lease liabilities)
(M E15R M 5E31) (Note 15 and Note 31) 149,719 532,388
B IRIT R FEIRE Less: cash at bank and on hand
(Fi5¥26) (Note 26) (6,078,271) (6,068,431)
RE/25R Net cash (5,928,552) (5,536,043)
R Total equity 13,765,301 13,886,533
BEARBBLEE Gearing ratio -43.07% -39.87%

HRAEEERFRER T &
EBEMN2021FE12H31HHE K

BELERAEH-

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was
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3 HMBREMEIE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AT EMHE 3.3 Fair value estimation
TERUGEED TR FET The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
BzEmMIHE - ZEEBXEARAEN fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
T been defined as follows:
e MHEEEFEEEEE™T e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
HHIRE CRE&HE) (51 identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
) -
e RTIF1EBEMBENRE e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
S ZEENEEBEZIRRE level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
ZHEM@m A R ERE (B either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
FlanE) EE (BRB is, derived from prices) (level 2).

B (B2 -

e EEFESBAULIFKRIEFEATR e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
RHIZEIE B A (BNIET on observable market data (that is, unobservable
BREA) (F3E) - inputs) (level 3).
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MBRERERE (8) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 ATEME (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TRETTAEEESEREEN The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
2021F K2020F12831H5t =2 that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2021
ZANFEAE and 2020.

20214 20204
12831H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR®BFT AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets

BATFESFAHMEEWE FVOCI (Note 19)

(F35E19)

— %1 — Level 1 - 2,546
BATFESABR FVPL (Note 25)

(Ft5E25)

— 55328 — Level 3 1,715,448 1,621,634
REZE2021F12B31HIEEE During the year ended 31 December 2021, there are no
HEERMTAEAFTEMERAYF transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
BEEABITEELEE BfE in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
REFEZEEEB N FERMN also no changes in the classification of financial assets
BEMEENDE- as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those

assets.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 /I 58



4= A
17177 g |

R 75 3k R Mt X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBRAKER (@
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3.3.1 [EF#HEFHELFlE
(E1/E)

AERBCEIBRETZORES
BMRFERLBRODZKRE
ZREZATEDRENREER
ZHIGWEMERE

3.3.2 [EFHEA T ATEZEHEHA (B
ERFE (F3E)

NEBEETEREETILHE
EHHEENWEMERGN  ZE
BHANRNEEEBBERARMER
NEEFABEGHEHREE-I
2021128318 KB R IEME
SmEEFEAENEE RIS
BE SEEBERFHIERERSE
REETE UEZESENEER
BMEMR-

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group enters into the wealth management products
contracts with relatively higher interest rates with
certain financial institutions. These are reflected as
financial assets at FVPL on the balance sheet. As at
31 December 2021, most of the wealth management
products are bought from the major financial institutions
in Mainland China and management has exercised due
care when make investment decision with focus only on
low risk wealth management products.
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3 MBRMEEIR (B) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 ATEME (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
332 FHEATTHEHA B 3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
BEXFE (B3E) (8B) unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)
TREVEHE2021F12831H The following table presents the changes in level 3
IFFEEMNEIB T AEF- instruments for the year ended 31 December 2021,
BATHE
FAEEN
EREE
Financial
assets
at FVPL
ARF T
RMB’000
HAA AL ER Opening balance 1,621,634
0 Additions 2,400,000
AT ESFABTHNHERE  Gains on disposal of financial assets at FVPL 44,289
BAFEFAEBEWNEREBZE Change in value of financial assets at FVPL
ZEEZH 12,645
U BRI PR S =008 Proceeds received (2,363,120)
BAR 45 6% Closing balance 1,715,448
FREBAZEENREBERKRT Total unrealised gains for the year recognised in the
MsR 25| HaF18 income statement for assets held at the end of the
—FEIETHNFER year, under ‘Other gains — net’
REIFFE 12,645

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3
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HEEEEIE (8) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 AT EME (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.2 RAEATAIBIEHA E1
BRFE (F3E) (B

BRIEHEAT BB B85
BATFEIEEEN (F3E)

20215
b 1231 AMATE (GERKIN
Fair value at Valuation
Description 31/12/2021 technique(s)
ARETTT
RMB’000
RETETH 1,715,448 BHIRBFEME
HIEREM E R
Wealth management 1,715,448 Discounted
products from cash flow
major financial
institutions
3.3.3 15 1E87E

AEBVMBEFIRE - Y
BHREENHBAFES ABD
NWERMEEETHE (BEEIE
AFE)NEEK - EEERGEEE
BRmMEEBERERELEN
BRET—RFH  BRERF
FHREHB 2

AEEEANIEEOEHAE
BEATEFABRSNEMEE
ZEHRE A RERTBHF
B & #0 7 9059 5138 2 3 LAt 5
TR o

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements

using significant unobservable inputs

RABRBAE §#E

Unobservable

input Range

JELEIEETES 1.5% - 4.7%

Expected return 1.5% - 4.7%
rate

3.3.3 Valuation processes

(Level 3)

R HRBAR
BATERRG
Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value

&= AHERE R E
NEEEMARE
1,083,0007T ; RIEFEH
EIRETREREATE
B AR 17,025,0007T
Highest expected return
rate would increase

FV by RMB1,083,000;
lowest expected return
rate would decrease FV
by RMB7,025,000

The finance department of the Group includes a team

that performs the valuations of financial assets at FVPL

required for financial reporting purposes, including level

3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and

results are held between the management and the

valuation team at least once every six months, in line

with the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are return

rates of the financial assets at FVPL which are derived

and evaluated based on the yield rate written in

contracts by the counterparties.
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4.1 BAREEEREBRR

FEBHRRFHEEREBR
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ERGRRAEHRERHEEZ
HERBRRBESFUOT

(@ FEREEEZFEREE
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Mo EREMSRZEBRAF
HEXRHE - RE2RXZREAEMR
BREREMBEECHLETETE
By o AEEAMG S RKE S AR
MESNRIE LU TR BB 1%
EFERINER - HMEFEEZLR
RRMBERRBENCHRARZE
BAR ZEZBEREXTEET
MEMBEZ EMRELEFRERNE
EREE-

ERETEREEERNEBEBE
ZIEEFISMIREEE TR
RR A EERE D% P G R KE
SR EA > BRI IR E
RMERNIREEGR-

WEBEFRETENEERRLE
Ry BRBREER
BIfEst10% @ B 74 & @ 1% F 1
m/ BLIRERBEBEE AR
24,300,0007T (20204 : AR
15,025,0007T) ©

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB24,300,000 (2020: RMB15,025,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use right and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance of
beverages, food, others and unallocated.

Others mainly includes the sales of bottled water, wine,
cosmetics products and other non-beverages or non-food
products. Unallocated mainly includes the cost centers of
the Group, such as corporate department, administration
department, group finance department, human resources
department and information technology department, which
support the whole Group’s activities.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on segment profit or loss. Other information
provided, except as noted below, to the executive directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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(a)

160

DEEH

(CONTINUED)

(a)

H E2021%F &2020F12831H

Segment information

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the year ended 31

FEFEZDHSERNT ! December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
2021
B B Hith KRE &
Beverages Food Others Unallocated Group
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
Wz Revenue 14,737,840 9,524,873 967,900 - 25,230,613
NEEH/ (8548 Segment profit/(loss) 2,028,382 151,021 46,755  (320,323) 1,905,835
MEWA—FEE Finance income - net - - - 201,037 201,037
MERENERZ Share of profit of investments
LR ERT accounted for using the equity
method 31,487 - - 3,483 34,970
FRETIEHATER Profit before income tax 2,141,842
FrEMES Income tax expense (641,127)
FEERF Profit for the year 1,500,715
MEREH Depreciation and amortisation 813,340 315,849 25,636 74,261 1,229,086
BE Assets 8,237,396 3,649,470 890,193 8,475,388 21,252,447
BRERENRNRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 624,733 - - 188,166 812,899
BEE Total assets 8,862,129 3,649,470 890,193 8,663,554 22,065,346
=L Liabilities 4,091,611 2,998,420 249,166 960,848 8,300,045
=N Total liabilities 8,300,045
REFRBEE Addition to non-current assets 65,855 196,536 29,849 145,059 437,299

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 WEKkDEBER (B) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(a) PIEN @) (a) Segment information (Continued)
2020
G BH Hith ROEC rEE
Beverages Food Others  Unallocated Group
AEBEFT ARETn AREBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'0O00O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
DEEE Segment results
Wz Revenue 12,560,400 9,424,487 776,935 - 22761,822
AEER/ (E518) Segment profit/(loss) 1,814,524 517,079 72,620 (295,950) 2,108,273
HEWMA— S Finance income - net - - - 172,414 172,414
LU REARZIEMSHE  Share of profit/(loss) of
&i5d,/ (58) investments accounted for
using the equity method 58,495 - - (12,723) 45,772
BRETIS IR AT A Profit before income tax 2,326,459
FrfgiRfs Income tax expense (700,756)
FEHF Profit for the year 1,625,703
EREHE Depreciation and amortisation 852,301 275,655 53,675 109,939 1,291,570
BE Assets 8,225,632 3,588,544 873447 8,623,146 21,310,769
BEGEARNRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 608,918 - - 184,684 793,602
BEE Total assets 8,834,550 3,588,544 873447 8,807,830 22,104,371
=L Liabilities 3823565 2,811,846 267,865 1,314,562 8,217,838
BwafR Total liabilities 8,217,838
REFRBEE Addition to non-current assets 10,835 173,932 43214 157,156 385,137

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(a)

DEVER} ()

BEARDEKANZEETED
EHELMSREE -BAFE
sFARMEEWE (MHEAFES
AHEMEEEE)) WE/MEE
BATES ABEm (MEAFES
AfBml) WEREE - RERIR
THBR RENEREBERE

BEARDEKANZERIED
RIEEFFSREAR  EHFER
BEKREE-

BEXAXHBERBEYE - BER
BB EAREE (BREIHER
) REMEURBREE-

URAERARZIFRBEEBLE
meE:

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Segment information (Continued)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”), financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), cash and banks, investment properties
and related right-of-use assets.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (including land
use rights), investment properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows:

2021 2020
ARBTT AR®EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE (FBIE The total of non-current assets other
T ERIELE than financial instruments and
FRSIEE) #2%8 deferred income tax assets
— K — Mainland China 10,039,717 10,822,018
— BN R & — Overseas countries and territories 3,238 11,414
ERTH Financial instruments 4,267,256 4,738,379
PIEPRISI B E Deferred income tax assets 391,539 371,517
14,701,750 15,043,328

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 WmkaEER (B) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) EERESHNERMZEE (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
AEEEBBRIATIEERSHNE The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
fzaE: to contracts with customers:

2021 2020

ARET ARMF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

aHaE—-gr Contract liabilities — Beverages 1,888,504 1,387,816

aHNEaE—BEm Contract liabilities — Food 1,220,514 1,021,763

sHaE-HM Contract liabilities — Others 124,026 17,090

3,233,044 2,426,669

() BHEEZEAL () Significant changes in contract liabilities

2021 FEMBEEBMIEAR The increase in contract liabilities in 2021 was due to
2022F W B EUIBIESE) 0 BEBUK several campaigns occuring at the beginning of 2022,
BEENEMRIEMe which caused the increase of the down payments from

the customers.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ,I 63
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R 3 EBE R (4R)
(b) BEEFENEMZAE @

(i) BRIEAE RETHES K o

TRITR ERTR S BB RS
P mPEEENENERE R
WHE URERBETEERERE]T
NENSEERBHE-

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

(Continued)

(i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current reporting period relates to

carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates

to performance obligations that were satisfied in the

prior year.

2021 2020
ARBTT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

SFAENEHEMBEER  Revenue recognised that was included

HERR W= in the contract liability balance
at the beginning of the year

ARl Beverages 1,387,816 1,162,607
Bm Food 1,021,763 880,946
HAth Others 17,090 60,451
2,426,669 2,104,004

(iii) KIEITHIEAIEIE

AEBREZERNATHNEES
FOAREBRBHBEBENEET R
HARFAHEBEOBRERS—FX
LR e

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

(i)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations

as all related contracts have a duration of one year or

less.
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BREEE D ZHRX

STAHENRAE HE R IGHERER
THRXARAEMBEX ZRAX 2N

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

T

expenses are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt AR R A7 ~ BLEEAL R Raw materials, packaging materials,
SEMKBENE D consumables and
purchased commodity used 15,222,818 12,740,627
a7 S &) Changes in inventories of finished goods (194,119) (128,339)
SINEEERRS Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 68,700 67,681
REMNESER Promotion and advertising expenses 1,312,950 1,743,963
BTHENES Employee benefit expenses, including
BEEEHM (E9) directors” emoluments (Note 9) 4,030,587 3,371,825
EmEA Transportation expenses 1,062,350 855,578
MZE BB RREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(MfF5E14) equipment (Note 14) 1,110,333 1,168,684
RS ERH (I5E15) Amortisation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15) 92,876 93,051
SEVZEITE (Y5E16) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 18,781 19,273
ERE ERE (IsE17) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 7,096 10,562
FRHAMERS Short-term rental expenses 72,788 49,373
MM ERR N MER & City construction tax, property tax and
HMREER other tax surcharges 243,104 229,502
EREEE BERE Provision for impairment of
(Mt5E15) right-of-use assets (Note 15) - 13,000
FENHIRFEEE Provision of inventories to net
(H35E22) realisable value (Note 22) 23,130 1,217
FEUR B IR 2 R E R Provision for impairment of
(M+5£3.1(0)) trade receivables (Note 3.1(b)) 4,338 1,500
ZEEMBN = Auditors’ remunerations
—IZHARF — Audit services 7,822 7,901
HAth Others 796,731 881,361
st Total 23,880,285 21,126,759

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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7 OTHER GAINS - NET

2021 2020
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT EFAERY Gains on disposal of financial assets
HETMEEZFE at FVPL 44,289 38,789
BT EFAERD Change in fair value of financial assets
THEBEEZ AT EEE at FVPL 12,645 18,831
HEFREEEZ Gains on disposal of right-of-use
K15 HRE assets, net 16,316 48,681
HEME - BEREEBZ Gains on disposal of property, plant and
F15 - H%E equipment, net 6,735 8,612
Hth Others (1,978) (8,218)
78,007 106,695
Hhig A 8 OTHER INCOME
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT+ Eh Government grants 102,972 142,694
THEYE BMERHBHLUKE  Rental income from lease of property,
KREYEZHBETWA plant and equipment and
investment properties 140,277 135,228
BRI (HI5E34(a)) Consultation service income (Note 34(a)) 65,521 60,023
Hh Others 168,730 28,570
477,500 366,515

BT A B W A 5 B B B 2 {3t 75 AT
WERR M B EmMmE FRAEBW
B A B H PR T & 6O K 3 R PR AF
BBIEIR - ZE BT EB B ERT
TEWNE AN BREMRB AL B
THERGEGEmRZ THitR AL R

A
=J]
it ©

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

i INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2021 2020

AR¥FT AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

T&ERFH® Wages and salaries 3,024,304 2,715,702
BRE R EMEEEFR Pension and other social welfare

(EREMHRETE)) (defined contribution plan) 580,923 303,148

ETEEREREF Staff quarters and housing benefit 198,625 131,756

HAEH Other benefits 226,735 221,219

4,030,587 3,371,825

HE2021F12B31HIEEE 2 KAER
hEEHMALTBERS (20204 :
M%) B HEFWERKFE36()T2
2D R -RERNESZNFFH
BR=4 (20204 | =%)

ZHBNE ST

AL

during the year are as follows:

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included two
(2020: two) directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36(a). The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2020: three) highest paid individuals

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

2021 2020
ARFT AE®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EXRFEEHEEM Basic salaries, housing allowances,
HMZA R B = other allowances and benefits
in kind 2,893 2,750
TEAL Bonuses 2,777 2,701
RIAEEEIER Contribution to pension scheme 149 136
5,819 5,587
Number Number
A¥L AE
#E - In the band of:
2,000,001 TE HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,500,000t (1BE (equivalent to RMB1,791,001 to
K AE®1,791,0017C RMB2,239,000)
Z= AR #2,239,0007T) 3 &

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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10 MEWA—FE 10 FINANCE INCOME - NET
2021 2020
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE WA Finance income
—IRERIRITHEFRZ — Interest income on cash and banks
A B WA 232,752 229,626
RE R AR Finance cost
—BEEZHERE - Interest expenses on borrowings (30,415) (54,779)
—HEaRZNERE — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (1,661) (1,861)
—EREEFE — Net foreign exchange losses (165) (771)
—B EBREEZERIL - Less: amounts capitalized on
£%E qualifying assets 526 199
(31,715) (57,212)
B UWA —FER Finance income — net 201,037 172,414
11 FiSHRAX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2021 2020
AREFT ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BPERFT1SIRAE T Current income tax expenses 628,210 658,877
IRIEFTISIRBESE (Fi5E20) Deferred income tax expenses (Note 20) 12,917 41,879
641,127 700,756

/I 68 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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11 FEREAX (@)

R A RE D 2RISR (TR ¥R
(=3ia))

i ==Y = e e e N = Ay A = o
B AT EIE25% (20204 : 25%)
TGN ERER -

BRI EE - EREE R ERE
EBMIWEIRR[2011]588% TR
EPNEY R N A =l
MWBEKEBEENER > RAES
&I BR R BB ARZ
ETEREEXERREKE
HEB15%EERE KEFED
PHENBARANRANMAEE
i R AFEE#EZR Lt
15%BEMRZEo

HFr1SR

TRBREBERAERERFEER
SHEEMRIAERRERA
8] UL > 75 A ) % A S B A B
EREMRSER-

TEEBEMAIIAEATA
BEMIBITIRE20% (20204 :
20%) BHFTISHE o

RIFNTE BB EB M ARG FIER
EoREBIMMLNKE LR
REZE2021F12H31BEEE
NE 8B TEIRFBHR
K A8.25% (20204 : 8.25%) o
FHENBB_E8BTHENR
FEE M ER16.5% (20204 :
16.5%) BITRZEREH o

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Mainland China corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to CIT at rate of 25% (2020: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice
on the tax policies of further implementation of the
western region development strategy issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Administration of Customs” (Bf78
[2011]585E B 1L 28 A B I 75 2B K B 35 8L BE 75 RBE AR IR
BRI ERIZEA"), companies set up in the western
region and falling into certain encouraged industry
catalogue promulgated by the PRC government will be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%. Some of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC set up in the western
development region are entitled to the above mentioned
preferential tax rate of 15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan are subject to
income tax at the prevailing rates of 20% (2020: 20%).

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong is subject to a tax rate of 8.25% during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 8.25%).
The remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million
will continue to be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%
(2020:16.5%)).
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11 FIERAX (&)

(b)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

HMPrEHR (@& (b) Other income tax (Continued)
2 B BRFT 19 10 A i A B2 #2 v [E) The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
BRARGHERGN ZEER= differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
25% (20204 : 25%) st & 2 Ewm using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2020:
MEEZENT 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2021 2020
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PRPAISIRATIEF] Profit before income tax 2,141,842 2,326,459
R EEERE Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
STEZIRIE in the PRC 535,461 581,615
THRIBEZNBFFE . Tax effects of:
BREETHEBEAR Preferential tax rates on the profits of
mAMZBERE certain subsidiaries (46,125) (19,244)
REESVRIEPAIEIR Tax losses for which no deferred
BEEZRIERIE income tax asset was recognized 73,742 27,693
RBERERZ Recognition of previously unrecognized
MIBEEEREM tax losses and other temporary
BHRMER differences (40,844) (19,409)
BEZRIR A Income not subject to tax (8,742) (11,443)
AEMNREX Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 22,865 26,541
Bt 35 B Sz A0 5T H0 R Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (9,830) (7,997)
FEMEATREEA  Withholding tax on profits retained by
Z AR PRC subsidiaries 114,600 123,000
FriSiRR Income tax expense 641,127 700,756

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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11 FEREAX (@)
(b) HMFrEH (&)

EMEMEEWERS D ZAERN

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b) Other income tax (Continued)

The income tax charge relating to components of other

RIS - comprehensive income is as follows:
2021 2020
Mital  MEXH R iRl MBEZH e
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax  Tax charge After tax
AREFRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR AREFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
HE2EE Other comprehensive income:
—ATESFAEM - Fair value gains/(losses)
2ENE S/ on financial assets at
BEZATERNSE fair value through other
/ (548) (319) comprehensive income,
net of tax (Note 19) 23 - 23 (3,099) . (3,099)
—EERAE AN - Actuarial gains on defined
REANSG benefit plans 429 (86) 343 - - -
FIEMES Income tax expense (86) -

12 SREF
B
SRESBADREEFATRE R

B AR FI B B 84T 8 B 0 1
T

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2021 2020
RATRTITFA AEGER]  Profit attributable to equity holders of
(ANR¥EFm) the Company (RMB’000) 1,500,715 1,625,703
BETEERMETEH Weighted average number of ordinary
(FR) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
SRELRRF] Basic earnings per share
(BRARME (RMB per share) 34.74% cents 37.643cents

HRARBDUEEEEREEER &
SRBERMNESKRELEN -

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
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13 BB 13 DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIKNRIAKRE Proposed final dividend of
SREBERARTE41.697 RMB41.69 cents
(20204 : AE137.649) (2020: RMB37.64 cents)
per ordinary share 1,800,859 1,625,703

172

R2021FEK2020%F > KRB HREE
2020 K%2019F12HB31HIEEED
TRBE B 2 A7 AR #1,622,310,000
TR AR #1,369,001,0007T ©

EEZR2022F387HRE T EEY
T L EFEIREERZE2021F12831H
IFFEZRESRARE41.699 (&
HIRE A AR#1,800,858,5217T) °
T iR2022F5827TH T 2R EE
FRGLREUFME ST HEIR
RAERMILEEGRE

The dividends paid by the Company in 2021 and 2020 for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB1,622,310,000 and RMB1,369,001,000
respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021
of RMB41.69 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB1,800,858,521 was proposed by the directors on the
board of directors meeting held on 7 March 2022 and is to
be proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to
be held on 27 May 2022. These financial statements do not
reflect this dividend payable.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HER ERIA Hfy
i Ed IBRME REREE HEIR CH
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures in progress Total
ARETT NS AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1#2020F181H At 1 January 2020
A Cost 7,342,462 7,802,921 3,568,852 287,301 19,001,536
SHTE Accumulated depreciation (2,304,706) (4,972,667) (2,821782) - (10,099,155)
RihAERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (269)
RETHE Net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 287,301 8,902,118
HE2020512831HLEE Year ended 31 December 2020
ERETE Opening net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 287,301 8,902,118
AE Additions 28,697 18,547 54,633 214,066 315,843
ERREA Transfer upon completion 143,422 88,954 57,18 (289,504) -
he Disposals (27,047) (38,132) (4.454) - (69,633)
PEAREHENEE Assets classified as held for sale (1839 (297) 69) - (2,199)
& (Fzto) Depreciation (Note 6) (325,419) (565,013) (278,252) - (1,168,68)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 211,773 7,977,445
1420205126318 At 31 December 2020
723 Cost 7,454,267 7,660,853 3,538,716 211,773 18,865,609
RithE Accumulated depreciation (2,598,691) (5,326,540) (2,962,670) - (10,887,901)
RithERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (269)
RETHE Net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 211,773 7,977,445
HE2021512831HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
ENREFE Opening net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 211,773 7,977,445
HE Additions 12,377 33,246 102,276 247,006 394,905
ERREA Transfer upon completion 78,764 140,358 85,004 (304,126) -
HE Disposals (2,218) (1,296) (1,887) - (5,461)
1TE (H36) Depreciation (Note 6) (326,297) (577,586) (206,450) = (1,110,333)
EXRREFE Closing net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
EA2021$12H 318 At 31 December 2021
Cost 7,543,130 7,833,161 3,724,109 154,653 19,255,053
Accumulated depreciation (2,924,988) (5,904,126) (3,169,120) - (11,998,234
Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (263)
RETE Net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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174

L

TEERCEARGEaRNBUT -

i

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2021 2020

AREEFT AR®FT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HE AR Cost of goods sold 780,615 805,512
HERMIGEERYS Selling and marketing expenses 199,111 228,538
THEEX Administrative expenses 130,607 134,634
1,110,333 1,168,684

AEBZEBFE2HBMANPE-

20214 2020512831 H i £ i #7
EAEBEREE-

REAERETEFHEZHBSWA
# N\ R #62,900,0007T (20204 : AR
#59,800,0007T) Bt AR & m KM
FE MU AL (FEE8) o

FROAEBERGERBEENEE
B A& A R #526,0007T (20204 @ AR
#199,0007t) BRE X - EEMATS
BRE-—REENMNEFEHFNZI.48%
(20204 : 3.52%) BT E Ao

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB62.9 million
(2020: RMB59.8 million) derived from lease of certain
buildings of the Group is included in ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement (Note 8).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing
costs amounting to RMB526,000 (2020: RMB199,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.48%
(2020: 3.52%) per annum.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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15 HE (B#FLMERE)

) NREERBEREIDIZEH

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2021 2020
AREFT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERAEEE Right-of-use assets
LY ES Properties 43,830 49,210
T+ AR Land use rights 1,647,338 1,710,008
1,691,168 1,759,218
HEaE Lease liabilities
LYES Properties
—BPEA - Current 19,675 28,973
—JERNEA — Non-current 17,744 16,343
37,419 45,316

R2021EZ2EREEERR
2020F 2 BEEEEE DN

Movements in right-of-use assets in 2021 and 2020 are
analysed as follows:

mr
EREEE
Right-of-use assets
2021 2020
nE TiERE @ E THfERE ot
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total
AEBTR AEBTR AEETR AREFT ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
*A18 At 1 January 49,210 1,710,008 1,759,218 50,873 1,781,668 1,832,541
HE Addttions 37,352 - 37,352 41,351 - 41,351
HE Disposals (282) (11,240) (11,522) (954) (5,288) 6,242)
NEAREHENEE Assets classified as held for sale - (1,004) (1,004) - (2.381) (2.381)
HERE (o) Impairment provision (Note 6) - - - S (13,000 (13,000
BHZH (Wite) Amortisation charges (Note 6) (42,450) (50,426) (92,876) (42,060) (60,991) (93,051)
128318 At 31 December 43,830 1,647,338 1,691,168 49210 1,710,008 1,759,218

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

(CONTINUED)
RIERRBERZEEHE (i) Amounts recognised in the income statement
2021 2020
nE THERR & nE THERE &t
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total
AEBFR AREFT ARBIR ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT (Hie) Amortisation charges (Note 6)
HERK Cost of goods sold 2,016 26,628 28,644 2,103 26,672 28775
HERTAEERS Seling and marketing expenses 34,148 3,715 37,863 33705 3,725 37,430
AHEY Administrative expenses 6,286 20,083 26,369 6,252 20,594 26,846
42,450 50,426 92,876 42,060 50,991 93,061
HSR% GIAMKRE) Interest expense (included in finance cost) (Note 10)
(Byzt10) 1,661 1,861
RHAERS (Hzk6) Short-term rental expenses (Note 6) 72,788 49373
Bakltes Total charges to income statement 167,325 144,285

R2021FE 2 ERE M HEE
A ANRBE117,749,0007T (2020
£ AR 1588,688,0007T) °

rEBZEEEHRAEMEH
ZARER

FEREZIMEREEEHER
HEAM - xEEHEZE
MAERRBE -HO—RUEE
HARR=@B E+F571 R
0T X (iv)F U R R 4 A o

HERZENBRER LES
BB EMRR AR - BRHAE A
FAZHEHEEETHNEFESR
4 > 70 & 1 5% M 5 0 AE I IR
HoEEEESARSAEEEN
Siasifie ©

FEHA R A% | E IR 1

AEBNETYERKFEHERES
FIEH R AR IR - A F IR
DARREESGOSKEEET
&= AE o PRFF A BY R BE 9 3E # &
RIEEZEREJHAERTE
MR SHEBEBATRE

(iii)

(iv)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was
RMB117,749,000 (2020: RMB88,688,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how they
are accounted for

The Group’s land use rights are all fully prepaid.
In addition, the Group leases various offices and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of three months to ten years, but may
have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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16 REWE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
AR®BFT ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MA1H At 1 January 294,411 313,609
B Addition - 75
iTEE (fy5E6) Depreciation (Note 6) (18,781) (19,273)
®12831H At 31 December 275,630 294,411
B12831B M A& Cost as at 31 December 494,296 494,296
REHTE Accumulated depreciation (218,666) (199,885)
M12831H At 31 December 275,630 294,411

REMEUNRTEN LB IS XM
NExRERES > LERBRB40EM
S0FER LM ko

FEERBENEZNECTHAREE
mARETEMFAR -

The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Sichuan and Guangdong Province of the PRC and erected on
land with lease periods of 40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement.

2021 2020

ARBTFT AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

HEWA Rental income 77,398 75,360
REEERSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property

EEKERE that generated rental income (17,762) (10,371)

59,636 64,989

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ,I 77
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16 REWE (@)

178

HEZH

REMEDRBEMNAESAEBANEEZ
KEHEmARMEL -

BEAEEENENEERERZF
HREEEFER EAEE RIS
UMEEEE RIS FEIRER
FIlERER ZEMRGEERD
BRRKRFGEEZRARREYE
ZRTFEER-

ERREMEEE RRSEEEN
MEEIE 0 A2 R EE33

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, please refer to Note 33.

KREMEZ AFEHNOT - The fair values of the investment properties are set out as
follows:
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NTE Fair value 755,402 316,702

2021 FE 2020F 12831 HZ A F1&E
ThEEBERUEARANTERG AR
B (3R AREETZHRRESRE
AL BT EERE -

The fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements (Continued)

unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

Information about fair value measurements using significant

Rl RBABE
Unobservable inputs
%2021
S 12A31BZAFE fH{E HLEES
Fair value at
31 December
Description 2021 Rental value  Discount rate
(AR F7T) (NR¥EFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
& EA 519,666
59,404 10%
Plant A 9,666 per annum
B EB 16,828
100,314 i 10%
Plant B 16,828 per annum
B EC 49,430
36,400 10%
Plant C 9,430 per annum
BED 12,309
L 73,331 8= 10%
Plant D 12,309 per annum
YN 29,126
,/_\ o 461,032 i 10%
Office building 29,126 per annum
JE & § 1,574
24,921 10%
Shops 1,574 per annum

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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16 KREMZE (B) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HEZH (@) Leasing arrangements (Continued)
NRIERE A BIE
Unobservable inputs
F220204F
ES 12B31HZ A& @ ARIR =
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2020 Rental value Discount rate
(ANR®BTF ) (ANRBETFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
2 = A § 149,665
e 43,738 = 10%
Plant A 9,665 per annum
BEB 16,658
i 68,676 5 10%
Plant B 16,658 per annum
EEC 6,478
BE 33,135 i 10%
Plant C 6,478 per annum
2 =0 49,232
e 46,522 o 10%
Plant D 9,232 per annum
mn 3,134
S 92,605 S 10%
Office building 3,134 per annum
_
= 32,026 i 10%
Shops — Per annum
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17 EFEE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERSER
Computer
software
ARFTT
RMB’000
%20205F181H At 1 January 2020
DS Cost 105,943
Kty Accumulated amortisation (91,230)
IRMEFRE Net book amount 14,713
HE2020F12831HILEEE Year ended 31 December 2020
FH AR FEE Opening net book amount 14,713
B Additions 4,605
iy (MIsEe) Amortisation (Note 6) (10,562)
FRIREFEE Closing net book amount 8,756
§£2020512H31H At 31 December 2020
D% Cost 110,548
Kty Accumulated amortisation (101,792)
IREFER Net book amount 8,756
HE2021F12831HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FHEREFER Opening net book amount 8,756
NE Additions 5,042
#iH (fste) Amortisation (Note 6) (7,096)
FREREFER Closing net book amount 6,702
20215128318 At 31 December 2021
DS Cost 115,590
RET#H Accumulated amortisation (108,888)
IREEER Net book amount 6,702

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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17 BREE (8)

B G #ES Rt ATTTERFESI &
MEERMBEERS > «BD D
ANE14,559,0007t &% AR #2,537,000
76 (20204 : AR #6,429,0007t R AR
#4.133,0007T) ©

18 EmZARKIKRE

AEEERREDHHERDT

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The amortisation of computer software has been charged
to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB4,559,000
and RMB2,537,000 (2020: RMB®6,429,000 and
RMB4,133,000), respectively.

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2021 2020

ARBTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—REBE QB 2B @) Interests in an associate (a) 385,938 371,232
REE D) Interests in joint ventures (b) 426,961 422 370
812,899 793,602

R2021512831 8 » ZEBE WP A B
ENAREGECERHAEEMS A
ST AERZRMEGBEEIE (X
EENBHERREELENGGIE
mRHERR) W

All the associate and the joint ventures of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are not significant to the Group. The
amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement of
the Group’s associate and joint ventures, attributable to the
shares of the Group and in aggregate, are as follows:

2021 2020

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FE{L B A B EF(a) Share of profit of the associate (a) 17,905 22,873

IS A BN EEE RS () Dilution gain of the associate (a) - 21,369
FEfE & & 2 EFF (D) Share of net of profits of

joint ventures (b) 17,065 1,530

HE12B31HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 34,970 45,772

182
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EARBKE (48) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
R—REME ARz R (@) Interests in an associate
R—EBRE AT 2 #EEm 2 E8N The movements in interests in an associate are as
o follows:
2021 2020
AREFT ARMEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1B1H At 1 January 371,232 326,990
FEAd i F) Share of profit 17,905 22,873
EHEHIE Dilution gain = 21,369
B E Dividends received (3,199) -
R12831H At 31 December 385,938 371,232

REEERZED

/

(b) Interests in joint ventures

The movements in interests in joint ventures are as

follows:

2021 2020

ARETT ARHFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

®1A18 At 1 January 422,370 453,128
FE(LmF 38R Share of net profits 17,065 1,530
B E Dividend received (12,474) (25,110)
wERD Decrease in investments - (7,178)
R12831H At 31 December 426,961 422,370

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 LU

184

(b)

EmEAARMNIRE () 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
REeghE#nE (@ (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
EEINAEBREZEFENA The Group accounts the particulars as joint ventures
BmE=iE %Hﬂ A EE S (G IE 18 Bl after taking into consideration that the Group jointly
EH) ZEHFR AEEREZSE controls not solo controls the particulars in accordance
HEAEEDRE. with the articles of association of the particulars.
R2021FE12831H  "EBSE The particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at
(2 EEHER EMBEUE 31 December 2021, all of which are unlisted and
HEFIER) ZFBE&HINMT accounted for using equity method, are set as follows:
EMAIER/
NSk HEARAH BHRES HEREGRE TEEH kA
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2021 2020 2021 2020
BNTXERERAEREER BB AE® 50% 50% BEEERERRS N AE#
BRAT (EREIXREER) 2008%7H18H 1,000,0007% 3,383,000 3,369,007
BN TZRRERAELEEE Suzhou, PRC, RVB Investment management and RMB RVB
BR/AE] (United Advisor Venture 18 July 2008 1,000,000 advisory services 3,383,000 3,369,000
Management Co., Ltd.") (“‘United
Advisor Venture Management”)
EREZRHEIEERAR hE 19,080,000%7% 42% 2% LERESH EKRB AEH N
(TERER)) 200975248 o RRMEE 53,506,0007T 53,506,000
BERERANTIEERAF Guilin, PRC, UsD Production of various types RMB RVB
(Guilin Ziguan Beverage Industries 24 July 2009 19,060,000 of beverage including fruit, 53,506,000 53,506,000
Co., Ltd’) (“Guilin Ziquan’) vegetable, tea and coffee efc.
Greater China F8B Capital Partners 22 10,700%7T 50% 50% REEE ARE AR
Ltd. (‘Greater China F&B") 200845 16H 3,112,00070 2,776,0007
Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RVB
16 April 2008 10,700 3,112,000 2,776,000
RERIA—CEERAF TERE AEE 50% 50% AEXRBEBER N AE#
(RERL) 201175298 232,000,007 1443740007 143,265,007
RERIR—TEERAF Wuhan, PRC, RVB Production of various types of RMB RVB
(Wuhan Zijiang President 29 July 2011 232,000,000 plastic products 144,374,000 143,265,000
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
("Wuhan Zijang’)
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. (*SMSCC’) HEHE 500,000%7% 50% 50% REEE ARE AR
20126115280 160,0007% 508,0007
Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RVB
28 November 500,000 160,000 508,000
2012

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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as S
18 LUEHZARNKRE (B) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(b) REEhXEZER B (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
HMERIER,
AR KBS HREX REMERE TEER REE
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2021 2020 2021 2020
SMS Investment Management HEHE 500,000%7T 50% 50% REEE N AEE
Co., Lid. (‘SMS Investment 20131828 1,331,0007% 8,466,0007%
Management’) Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RMB
2 January 500,000 1,331,000 8,466,000
2013
ERERAERECE (EReR) PEHN AEE 471.85% 785% REEE N1 AEHE
2009F48138  426,500,0007T 180,181,0007C 169,566,0007C
ERRRAERECE Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management RMB RMB
(China F&B Venture Investments®) 13 April 2009 426,500,000 180,181,000 169,566,000
(‘China F&8")
BEARANTIEBRAT FEEE 19,000,000%7¢ 35% 0% HERHEERE N1 AEHE
2013£7/8230 40,914,0007T 40,914,000t
HELRMBT$ARAF (@quan  Yichang, PRC, usD Manufacturing and sale of RMB RMB
Beverage industries Co., Ltd.") 23 July 2013 19,000,000 beverages 40,914,000 40,914,000
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. HEHE 14,720,000% 7% 23.44% 2344%  KEEE - -
("SMSfund’) 2012128188
Cayman Islands, usb Investment management
18 December 14,720,000

2012

* BX BB EAREE
P XAEEESH

BERN

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

*

The English name represents the best effort by

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

185



=Rk e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 LIEZZARNKE (8) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b)

186

REEEEZ#x ()

TXHEHINAEBTEHFESE

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the major

BrHBEENTE . jointly controlled entities of the Group is set out below:
EFRD China F&B
2021 2020
AREFT AE®TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEBEXREE . Summary of balance sheet:
ERENEE Non-current assets 346,559 325,276
MENEE Current assets 25,672 29,067
EEE Total assets 372,231 354,343
El =k Non-current liabilities = -
mEaE Current liabilities (156) 27)
MEE Total liabilities (156) (27)
FEE Net assets 372,387 354,370
KEBDEZEDLE The Group’s % share 47.85% 47.85%
KERB DML The Group’s share 180,181 169,566
2EBERBEE . Summary of comprehensive income:
g Revenue - -
FERMN (B18) Profit/(loss) for the year 22,182 (26,244)
KEE DG The Group’s share 10,614 (12,558)

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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ZFARNKE (8) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

EEET Wuhan Zijiang
2021 2020
ARBTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEAERBE . Summary of balance sheet:
ERFEE Non-current assets 48,285 54,339
MBEE Current assets 302,125 265,818
MEE Total assets 350,410 320,157
EIEIN=NE Non-current liabilities = -
nE;MaR Current liabilities 61,662 33,627
YN Total liabilities 61,662 33,627
BEE Net assets 288,748 286,530
KEBRDLZEDLEE The Group’s % share 50% 50%
KER DL The Group’s share 144,374 143,265
2EHBRERBE . Summary of comprehensive income:
Wz Revenue 251,648 206,562
FEIHF Profit for the year 27,165 28,506
REE DL The Group’s share 13,583 14,253

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3
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19 MAFEHAHMESEIE 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

(MRATEFAHMESEEK THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
H)HNEHEE INCOME (“FVOCI”)
AEBZEATFESAEMMEEEE Financial assets at FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value
HNEMEENAFEY R I E1FENU and include the following:
T&IE !
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B LrhmEs &F Listed securities, Hong Kong
BRI Haisheng Juice - 2,546
FRELATFEFAEMEEREZNE The movements in financial assets at FVOCI during the year
MEENESHWT are as follows:
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H8 At 1 January 2,546 6,027
FAREMEEKEZ Net fair value changes taken to other
NFEELEFEE (HF:528) comprehensive income (Note 28) 23 (3,099)
FRHE Disposal during the year (2,569) (382)
®12831H At 31 December - 2,546
EHRSEZATFERENGEERZT The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
HIREMEE ° on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
R2020F12B31H A&EBEFH B The Group held 33,612,000 shares in China Haisheng Juice
FARAEREBERAD (IEBHRT) Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng Juice”), representing 2.61%
33,612,000 Bz 17 > b /8 F+ Rt B of the shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December
192.61% > 2ER2021FE B - ZE R 2020, which was all disposed in 2021. The fair value of the
BENRATFTEAESARATNMGRE investment is the market quoted price of Haisheng Juice. The
REARANKEEUE T E investment in Haisheng Juice is denominated in HKD.

/I 88 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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20 RIEFRIFHE

EEFMSMEERELEFERNEESD

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred

I

income tax liabilities is as follows:

2021 2020
AREFT AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEFTISIRE E Deferred income tax assets
—& 128 B WUklelz — Deferred income tax assets to be
EEFREIREE recovered within 12 months 228,469 211,632
—Br12@ /& uklel 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RILFTSINE E recovered after more than
12 months 199,070 159,885
RIEFRSMEERE Total deferred income tax assets 427,539 371,517
B IRIEIRIEPR B IR B E Less: Set-off of deferred income tax
liabilities (36,000) -
FIEFTISMMEE > 358 Deferred income tax assets, net 391,539 371,517
EILFTEREE Deferred income tax liabilities
—Br12@BREE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
EEFREIRARE settled within 12 months 6,227 10,490
—BRiBB12@A%4EE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
IRILFTEMas settled after more than 12 months 360,794 287,506
IRIEFTISIR B B4R E Total deferred income tax liabilities 367,021 297,996
BRI IRIE TSI E E Less: Set-off of deferred income tax
assets (36,000) -
IRIEFTISRaE  B5E Deferred income tax liabilities, net 331,021 297,996

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 IRIEFRIFI (48) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
RIEFRISINIRE 2 EEW T - The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
»1B1H At 1 January 73,521 115,400
REM2EE =N Charged to other comprehensive income
(MFzE11) (Note 11) (86) -
RizE&8m KMk (MF5E11)  Charged to the consolidated income
statement (Note 11) (12,917) (41,879)
®128B31H At 31 December 60,518 73,521
FRIEEMESREEREAENED The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
(REt I [B— R UL 1 & 45 8f — 1K 1H) during the year, without taking into consideration the
mr offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
RIEFFSIREE Deferred income tax assets
FEIR R
#8 nE- BER e
HERE RENE FEsEI atbil fit
Impairment
provision of
accounts Depreciation
receivables of property,
and plant and Accrued Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses benefit Total
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
120201818 At 1 January 2020 6,141 20,053 190,703 127,291 344,188
RizBEERFA/ () Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statements 1,625 (380) 3,127 22,957 27,329
12020F 128318 At 31 December 2020 7,766 19,673 193,830 150,248 371,517
RiEaBaRifA Credited to the consolidated
income statements 4142 392 1,595 49,893 56,022
120216128318 At 31 December 2021 11,908 20,065 195,425 200,141 427,539
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

RIEFRSIREE Deferred income tax liabilities
REBME BB
biEingicA £BEH e BA&t EREEN @t
Accelerated Capitalization Post-
Withholding Business depreciation of borrowing employment
tax combination of equipment costs benefits Total
ARBTRE AREFTRT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1202051518 At 1 January 2020 59,664 116,723 35,141 17,260 - 228,788
RizERRERNE/ GIA) Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
income statements 51,000 (4,184) 28,698 (6,306) - 69,208
1$2020%F12831H At 31 December 2020 110,664 112,639 63,839 10,954 - 297,996
REME2ERERIDR (GtA) Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income statements - - - - 86 86
RiREBREERNR/ GtA) Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
income statements 28,500 (4,184) 46,666 (2,043) - 68,939
R2021E12831H At 31 December 2021 139,164 108,355 110,505 8,911 86 367,021

RIEFMEMEEEZERAUSESZBE
REZFR M BRBEMNEBEN @ E
MEEHZMNBEBBEETUER K&
B Rk F2021E12831H 8 B LUK
HEHBERNWAZREBIBOA
K 1640,884,0007T (20204 | AR
#741,451,0007t) FEBIRIEFTIS R
BEENARE160,221,00075t (2020
F: AR#167,227,0007T) ° F2022
FRAFAZFEERANMRBEERD
A A AR E89,353,00070 AR
112,771,0005c ~ AR #62,341,000
T - ARMS1,453,000c & AR
294,966,0007T °

R2021E12831 8 k& T K
BrEaREZNZRERLRBF A
NMNERELEFMESREBEARE
131,167,0007TC (20204 : AR
153,031,0007T) - AEEEEEB
AIEERTRERELZERF -1
2021F12631H ZEXELO R G
HAHARB22(ET (20205 1 AR

31fE7T) °

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB160,221,000 (2020: RMB167,227,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB640,884,000 (2020: RMB741,451,000) as at 31
December 2021 that can be carried forward against future

taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB89,353,000, RMB112,771,000, RMB62,341,000,
RMB81,453,000 and RMB294,966,000 will expire in each of

the five years starting from 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB131,167,000 (2020: RMB153,031,000) have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be

payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.

The management of the Group currently has no intention

to remit those earnings in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings totalled RMB2.2 billion (2020: RMBS.1

billion) as at 31 December 2021.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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21 HEHNBINERITAE 21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BRATEHA RATEHA
BiEms  HttemEks BE 4t
Amortised cost FVOCI FVPL Total
RRBEEER Assets as per
FRImNEE consolidated
balance sheet
12021128318 As at 31 December 2021
BB AHEN Financial assets at amortised
EHEE cost
EWEZESREE Trade and bills receivables
(UhE#4) (Note 23) 648,531 - - 648,531
HiE s Other receivables 481,204 = = 481,204
R&RRT4E (15526)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 26) 2,128,271 - - 2,128,271
EHEEES (f526)  Long-term time deposits
(Note 26) 3,950,000 - - 3,950,000
BATEABEN Financial assets at FVPL
SREE (M5125) (Note 25) - - 1,715,448 1,715,448
a5t Total 7,208,006 - 1,715,448 8,923,454
120205128311 As at 31 December 2020
BN EN Financial assets at amortised
EHEE cost
BB ZRARERE Trade and bills receivables
(Fiz£23) (Note 23) 580,509 - - 580,509
HAtREURIE Other receivables 355,514 - - 355,514
ReRRT4ER (15526)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 26) 1,348,431 - - 1,348,431
RHTEMED (f15526)  Long-term time deposits
(Note 26) 4,720,000 - - 4,720,000
BATES ABEN Financial assets at FVPL
TREE (525) (Note 25) - - 1,621,634 1,621,634
BATFEt AR 2 EWE Financial assets at FVOCI
MemMEE (His19) (Note 19) - 2,546 - 2,546
a5t Total 7,004,454 2,546 1,621,634 8,628,634
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BRENESNERMIA (B)

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

H{thiz 6 4
STENERAE
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

REEERBRRMATHNER

F22021F12H31H

e B SRR (HI5E29)

HHESE (F15)

HMEARIERET & A
(FBfEFEmEn)

B8 (ffEE31)

Hh R HAFE FRIE (MT5E30)

w5t

720205F12831H

FE(T & Z AR (Fi5E29)

HESE (:E15)

HMENRIERESTE R
FBfEFEmER)

B8 (fE31)

Htt RHAFEARIE (H5E30)

5 =.
HBst

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Liabilities as per consolidated balance

sheet

As at 31 December 2021

Trade payables (Note 29)

Lease liabilities (Note 15)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 31)

Other long-term payables (Note 30)

Total

As at 31 December 2020

Trade payables (Note 29)

Lease liabilities (Note 15)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 31)

Other long-term payables (Note 30)

Total

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

2,118,048
37,419

1,510,290
112,300
267,763

4,045,820

1,879,727
45,316

2,226,326
487,072
237,478

4,875,919
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22 8 INVENTORIES
2021 2020
AREFT AEB®TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 607,497 388,044
ER R Work in progress 143,213 122,157
[ Finished goods 1,361,382 1,183,902
SRS Consumables 280,414 249,389
2,392,506 1,943,492

194

B AR Tt ASHEM AR EME
T Z2HEERAENASANREE15,0208 8
7¢ (20204 : AR¥514,734F&E7T) ©

REE2021F12831 8 L FE rE#i8H
CFEZHBRFEMS  ~AEEE
REFEREBOA ART23,130,0007T
(20204 : MW AR ®1,217,0007T)
(M5t6) c ZEMEBEEF AB@REKRZ
MH & R A o

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
approximately RMB15,029 million (2020: RMB14,734 million).

The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
RMB23,130,000 (2020: recognised RMB1,217,000) (Note
6) for the year ended 31 December 2021 in respect of the
write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income
statement.
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23 BB ZEMRER 23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
ARBTFTT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEW B 5 BR R Trade receivables
—RBE=H — from third parties 635,669 574,249
— R BRI (MI5E34()) — from related parties (Note 34(b)) 17,331 13,110
653,000 587,359
B BB Less: provision for impairment (15,351) (14,804)
FEWE Z R 3 E Trade receivables, net 637,649 572,555
e 4% Bills receivables
—RBE=H — from third parties 10,882 7,954
FEWE ZREFREE Trade and bills receivables 648,531 580,509
KEBBERTERGOREIOKRZIE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FHR (20204 : 60K EQOK) c EWE usually 60 to 90 days (2020: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
SERTNERE W T - analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEW B ZERRR > 42%8 Trade receivables, gross
—90K LA — Within 90 days 595,300 541,809
—91&F180% — 91 to 180 days 48,181 42,021
—181&E365K% — 181 to 365 days 6,526 2,290
——&FE — Over one year 2,993 1,239
653,000 587,359

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ’] 95
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23 BWEZRMKERE (B)

196

KAEBEWEZIRFZEmENUTY
EsHE .

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
AREFT ABR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEUNE ZBRFN > 48%E Trade receivables, gross
— AR - RMB 649,002 583,025
—%7T - USD 1,128 1,303
—AB7T - HKD 2,870 3,031
653,000 587,359

REER BUREBZERERRZENER
HEZHAFERES-

REEAH AEERAKEZRSE
ERED LABBEZERARERZ
REE cEETEFAEAERR
PRI IR o

AEREREBYBRSERFER
MREER % ERMAERKE SRR
REMEENEMBHBERBEER
StEAMESRER M3 1(b) TR
st EEEHEE

K20215F &2020F12831H B4
EEANEREERARTRARER
DHRZEERREAERNEBIR
THREMBPEBIFRPNPERI K
B EERYT > S L AiR1T 84 1T > AHEE
FERZEENEERBERAME

ERBWEZRRBAERETEREFE
JEV B ~ S BE R B B F) KR B 2 B R
INGEERRE

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivables as mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation
of the allowance.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all bills receivables
within the Group are bank acceptance bills since they are
substantially deposited at or issued by state-owned banks
and other medium or large sized listed banks with maturity
dates within 1 year and the credit risks in respect of the bills
receivables are considered to be low.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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FARE - REMELK 24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
I RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
ARBFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE(TFRIE Prepayments
—TRIBER — Prepaid value added tax 151,064 180,815
— BN FHERZHIE — Advance payments to suppliers 147,199 102,613
298,263 283,428
HAE WIS Other receivables
—EYF] B — Interest receivables 284,710 150,827
— PR RA B 5 7B - Amounts due from related parties
(M3 5E34(0)) (Note 34(b)) 134,983 98,721
—BPREE — Customs deposits 9,527 9,805
—HAth — Other 51,984 96,161
481,204 355,514
B FERNERER 2 Less: non-current portion (17,136) (15,833)
BRHAER 3 Current portion 464,068 339,681
762,331 623,109

BARBMEAMRE B RHAEMER
MIEHRARESE RENKAE
HHPNMEEHZAFERE

Hth & U R TR BY R B B RS BB B

3.1(b)(ii)

approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

found in Note 3.1

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

(b)(ii).

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts

Information about the impairment of other receivables can be

197



=Rk e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 BMAF{ESTAE

198

it (TAF
st AR WEMEE

BAFESFAEGNEMEEISRT
NEBEER - BRRATESAEBGTN
NEEEH T AB@m TN EHMF)E -
HERE] ©

25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL”)

Financial assets at FVPL represented the structured deposits

at banks. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVPL

are recorded in “other gains — net” in the income statement.

EERATE
#HE20215 #E20215 StARRER
12A318H 12310 EMEELEN
SREEERN ARETT) ERBEYE REME AFE AL GHEEENEE  BHIESA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Categories of the Financial 31 December 31 December  Total Financial Weights to  Expected date
Financial Assets (RMB’000) Assets 2021 2021 assets at FVPL Total Assets of expiration
EIEER 13 1,400,000 1,412,564 82.34% 6.40%  202256H6HZE
2022F12H28H
Structured Deposit 06/06/2022-
28/12/2022
EARZEE 2 300,000 300,120 17.50% 1.36%  2023F12B27HE
2023%F12H28H
Structured Deposit 27/12/2023-
28/12/2023
REEE 1 2,803 2,764 0.16% 0.01% BERS AT RE[E]
Investment Fund Redeemable at any
time
st 16 1,702,803 1,715,448 100.00% 1.77%
Total
EERATE
HE20205F HE20205F FTABEN
1283188 12B31AN =HEELEN
SMEEBR AR¥TT) SHMEEHE BERA NEE B GEEENEE  BHIEA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Categories of the Financial 31 December 31 December Total Financial Weightsto  Expected date
Financial Assets (RMB’000) Assets 2020 2020 assets at FVPL Total Assets of expiration
ERRTER RE) 12 1,000,000 1,018,500 62.81% 461% 2021548290 Z
2021%8H31H
Term Bank Products (principal 29/04/2021-
protected) 31/08/2021
BERED 4 600,000 600,331 37.02% 272% 20215128240 %
2021128310
Structured Deposit 24/12/2021-
31/12/2021
REES 1 2,803 2,803 0.17% 0.01%  FERFrIEELD
Investment Fund Redeemable at any
time
st 17 1,602,803 1,621,634 100.00% 7.34%

Total

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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26 REAEHEMR RERRT

26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

4EER AND BANK BALANCES
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHTHER Long-term time deposits 3,950,000 4,720,000
B KM IRIT4E R Cash and bank balances 2,128,271 1,348,431
RIT A FEIRSMEST Total of cash at bank and on hand 6,078,271 6,068,431

MRERERENMS  RITRFE
REERSFEYZHIRWOT :

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as

follows:

2021 2020

ARETFT AR®BFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BT RFEIRE Cash at bank and on hand 6,078,271 6,068,431

B RAEEEABBE=MEAER Less: Long-term and short-term
R IGHREAE R time deposits with original

maturity over three months (5,781,275) (5,581,631)

ZREIRITER Restricted bank deposits (11,423) (500)
RERREZEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 285,573 486,300

R2021F12H31H » XEBRFRIETT
MEFSEMEFHENEXAE3.I1E
(20204 : 4.08) ©

2021F12831H » L RHIRITER
AER#10,900,0007t (20204 1 AR
WE) IEEAR TRERBEMET
HE BB ERIEFRAMERNIETE

=+
o

As at 31 December 2021, the effective weighted average
rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 3.91%
(2020: 4.08%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted bank deposits of
RMB10,900,000 (2020: nil) represented deposits at bank
pledged as security for issuance of letter of credit for the
purpose of purchase of equipments.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 ,I 99
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26 REIAEHIEM REKRIRT

200

W ER ()

12021F12831H » ZRBIIRITER
AR #523,0007c (20204 : AR
500,0007T) IEEA R EE R HiIK
HRTERNIRITER

R2021E12831H  IRITRFHERE
MWt LI TSR EHE -

26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted bank deposits of
RMB523,000 (2020: RMB500,000) represented deposits at
bank pledged as security for gas charge of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, total of cash at bank and on hand
were denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

AREFT AER¥F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

— AR - RMB 6,075,976 6,064,218
—%E7T - UsD 1,559 2,224
—&7T - HKD 712 1,962
—HAth - Others 24 27
6,078,271 6,068,431

AEBERNLIFRRAIRERTEB B
Rz ERE - RARBERBRBINER
AR E & R EIR SNE = T B R R
fEZ SNEEE HI R A K AR BIPRARIR

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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27 RERKRERREER 27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT
HE
Authorised
EER¥R (i REHE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
FET ARETT
HKD'000 RMB’000
R2021E1B1HE At 1 January 2021 ill
20215128310 31 December 2021 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BETRAR
Issued and fully paid
B g Kafe  ROEER Eh
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total

TEr  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R21E1B1EE At 1 January 2021 til
20214128310 31 December 2021 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
EE
Authorised
EERYR i BAiE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
FTET ARETT
HKD'000 RMB'000
20201 B1HE At 1 January 2020 till
20205128311 31 December 2020 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BEIRAR
Issued and fully paid
B HE g kafe ROEER EH
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
TEr  ARETr  ARETR  ARET:
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
120201 B1HE At 1 January 2020 il
20206128310 31 December 2020 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 20/1
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28 Hth{#f

28 OTHER RESERVES

AR

ATEEE EERE

[=N-1
Contribution Fair value Statutory
surplus reserves reserves Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2020F 1B 1B 2 & Balance at 1 January 2020 1,144,299 (24,818) 1,648,043 2,767,524
BATESAHM2EN G Fair value losses on financial
NeMBEEZ A TEEE assets at fair value through other
—BRiFE comprehensive income, net of tax
(FizE19) (Note 19) - (3,099) - (3,099)
BHERATEFAHMEE Transfer of loss on disposal of equity
Wi BB A B B IREE investments at fair value through
ERERAN other comprehensive income to
retained earnings - 3,035 - 3,035
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - 386,110 386,110
12020128318 Z &85 Balance at 31 December 2020 1,144,209 (24,882) 2,034,153 3,153,570
1202141810 245 Balance at 1 January 2021 1,144,299 (24,882) 2,034,153 3,153,570
BATESAEMZEREN Fair value gains on financial assets
AT ERE-RRTE at fair value through other
(M3%19) comprehensive income, net of tax
(Note 19) - 23 - 23
BHERATES AEMSE  Transfer of loss on disposal of equity
KaNRARENEEERE investments at fair value through
REEF other comprehensive income to
retained earnings - 24,859 - 24,859
BRELAERE Remeasurement on post-
employment benefit obligation - 343 - 343
BERERRNEBNENTE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 364,907 364,907
120215128318 2 4R Balance at 31 December 2021 1,144,299 343 2,399,060 3,543,702

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 Hthf##m (48)

(@

(b)

BARER

KRB BABFREBRIERAT
R EHmZAEARARRRFTAA
RIE LT EET ZEEFYR
Z A B KRB FF R DK B
FER e

RERERESEZREER ZF
BMARBRP] DR T AAT B Em
AN

EEB

oh B A 12 BOA AR B KT R 5
AR ZHEDZRA AEBR
DIKBINES B BAE M B IWAKFA
FRIEY S PR (EREUESE
ERRFEER) PRE—EMN
EERB-FIEEAERBIOME
EEMMmIER -

ERIIEBELEEMRELE
EMAZTENEAR EE
TEFERRB BN DIKE A
REEmA B Z10% R EEE
BRARE BEEAERBAR
EADRATZEMERS0%4
beoltih WERBDIERBE
EEHIBERE TR FRIRE E
MR TEA R IEAL R R E
EREBABES - FRAPIGEL
& 1 2 5 A 1L A9 P B B B A
B EHBEBAEFENERET
BRI EE RN B BN B AEE
it e

EEBBABRTREANBEA
ANBE - BERATANEELE
HIEMABEA -

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are appropriated from the net profit
as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distributions to equity
holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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29 BB ZIRM 29 TRADE PAYABLES
2021 2020
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FET B SRR Trade payables
—%5=5 — to third parties 1,656,116 1,455,650
— Al (fI5E34(0)) — to related parties (Note 34(b)) 461,932 424,077
2,118,048 1,879,727
HEBREFAERZERBEEREA30 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
KEQOK BB ZER ZERE DA 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
wr follows:
2021 2020
AREFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T B Z IR Trade payables
—30K LA — Within 30 days 1,650,360 1,511,910
—31&E90XK — 31-90 days 392,868 282,239
—91&E180% - 91-180 days 16,543 25,499
—181E365K% — 181 to 365 days 19,765 18,102
——Fl L - Over 1 year 38,512 41,977
2,118,048 1,879,727
FTERNEZEREUARBEE. All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
REZEEBERARGEEHZAFE amounts approximated their fair values as at the balance
- sheet dates.

204 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%



iR e MR R M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 HihEHREKRESER 30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020

AR¥FT ARF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Te8E MBS RS Accruals for promotion and

FEtE advertising expenses 640,592 1,389,736
B T & R AEF) Salary and welfare payables 412,353 376,231
EELZNEE Deposits from customers 435,191 516,715
REER B RN TUIE Payables for purchase of equipment 171,058 154,660
HthEA R IE R ESTE B Other payables and accruals 677,623 521,423
2,336,817 2,958,765
B : JEBNHBER 3 Less: non-current portion (268,400) (237,478)
BPER SR > Current portion 2,068,417 2,721,287

HihEMRIERESTEBR  Non-current portion of other payables

JERDEAER D and accruals:
EELZ NS Deposits from customers 267,763 235,041
BEEZEENE) Post-employment benefits (a) 637 2,437
268,400 237,478
BABHEMECSRIBERESERY Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
UARESFE - REZRABHAR dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximated
EEHZAFEWEE- their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 206
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30 HtEMNHRIERETER 30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(48) (CONTINUED)
(a) BEEBREF —TEEEEFEE (@) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan
TRETTNEBNMBERFTAE The table below outlines where the Group’s post-
BEl e SR TEPEE o employment amounts and activity are included in the

financial statements.

2021 2020
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MTHIEENEZEAEEK Balance sheet obligations for:
B85
—ERERARETEH — Defined pension benefits 637 2,437
EERERANEGR Liability in the balance sheet 637 2,437
MTHIEB N EERT Statement of profit or loss charge
BIERIEERN included in operating profit for:
THA:
—ERBRINSEF] - Defined pension benefits 3 238
3 238
MTIIEENEHE . Remeasurements for:
—TERERINESEF] — Defined pension benefits 429 494
429 494
HEEEERMNANWARR The income statement charge included within operating
THBERERB A FIE K profit includes current service cost, interest cost, past
KB ERB AU R EE 4 service costs and gains and losses on settlement and
AR S © curtailment.
AEBNTEERINBRARSTENE The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in
BEF - AEERZERIGEN Taiwan. The Group engaged independent valuer to carry
ETHEREENNEE HER out a valuation on post-employment benefits. Projected
ERETEBEMEERAE- unit credit cost method was applied in the valuation.

206 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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30 HtEMRIEREER
(%)

@

RER BB —ERREAEE (B

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan (Continued)

THEEMNaEFRAEREES The net defined benefit liabilities and fair value of the
EENAFEEHINMT : Pension Fund assets were as follows:
2021 2020
AR®BFT AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERREMNEFIIRE Present value of defined
benefit obligations 13,121 14,829
BARESEEMNAFE Fair value of Pension Fund assets (12,484) (12,392)
ERREH B EFEE Net defined benefit liabilities 637 2,437

BHRESKREEBNEBNIR
L2021 12B31BEFAEHES
ZHH REHRCEXEEEMRK
MARLT (BE) (FENE
UEEBERBEEN) 17T RE—
RBEEGE TEEMNEHTNIR
B~ 1ERIRY B AIAR 75 il A A2 8 1
RS A BB TEST BB (L BFAST
EoATZBEMEMBNEE
REUWT

() HRERFHIZERE

ATETHBEGE REE2021
F12B31BIEFEEMT0.65%
BIBLIRER (20204 : 0.27%) ° F&
ME—FTHRREE2021F128
STHWNEHATEEREERA2.00%
(20204 : 2.00%) °

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the Pension
Fund and present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out with 31 December 2021 as
the valuation reference date by ClientView Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Actuary”), an independent
qualified actuary in Taiwan. The present value of the
defined benefit obligations, and the related current
service cost and past service cost were measured
using the projected unit credit method. The principal
assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:

()  Discount rate and expected rate of salary
increase

For the purpose of actuarial valuation, a discount rate
of 0.65% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
0.27%) was adopted. It was further assumed that the
expected rate of salary increase for the year ended 31
December 2021 was 2.00% (2020: 2.00%).
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30 HitEMRIEREER
(%)

208

@)

BB REN —EEEERNEE (@)

(i) ERBIGRLE
U=

BENRRTEEREGLETR
T BRI EmR

@ EEREE

BERAETEANERTZEBRS
EREEBENEBCERER
BMBYE K ERETE ©

3 EHE

REAERBENERRE -8
THREFREZMIEE RS
B RENE EEEGEETF
T THIRKE

BRZABEEEERFOERSE
i KRB E65mERNAESR

ZHRE8E IR K o

Fis BARE
VA 15%
Z+1R E64BR 3%
655% 100%

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Post-employment benefits - defined benefit
plan (Continued)

(i)  Rate of employment termination
(1) Death rate

The 5th life table as adopted by the insurance industry
in Taiwan was used in the actuarial valuation.

(2)  Resignation rate

The resignation rate used in the actuarial valuation was
decided with reference to the past resignation records
of the Group and the database of the Actuary.

(3)  Retirement rate

Based on the past retirement rate of the Group, the
employee movements as published by the Directorate —
General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive
Yuan of Taiwan, and the database of the Actuary, the
following retirement rates were adopted in the actuarial
valuation:

It was assumed that Z was the earliest retirement age
of the relevant employees. It was also assumed that
employees who did not retire upon reaching 65 years
old would retire when they reach 68 years old.

Age Retirement rate
Z 15%
Z+1to64 3%
65 100%

o Annual Report 2021 £
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30 HithEHRIERESTER 30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(48) (CONTINUED)
(@ BERBEF—TEEEEFE (@ (a) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit

31

plan (Continued)

(i) 1EFFIFEALIEE (4B) (i)  Rate of employment termination (Continued)
@) FEEE (4)  Disability rate
WHERMANBEXAIETEDN The disability rate being 10% of the death rate was
10%° adopted.
BEXRBEBROTE The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
2021 2020
RRIRE Discount rate 0.65% 0.27%
BHTEERE= Expected rate of salary increase 2.00% 2.00%
R 31 BORROWINGS
2021 2020
ARBTFTT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DHARITIEE - BmIER Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 112,300 487,072
KEBZEEBER —FREIE- The Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.
BEZRAERARNGEEH ZAFE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated
HE MR N7 EHEHE their fair values as at the balance sheet dates, and were
denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
ARETFT ARH¥FTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 112,300 487,072

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 209
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31 &8 (8 31 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
REEEH ZMEFLEEERERNEHIH The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
(I balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2021 2020
RITEE  BIKT Bank borrowings, unsecured
— AR - RMB 3.48% 3.52%
KREFBHE THRENZRITEERE The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing
B facilities:
2021 2020
AREFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EH I At floating rate:
——F RN EH — Expiring within one year 4,567,334 1,913,800
——F L EF|H - Expiring beyond one year 1,120,112 3,913,486
5,687,446 5,827,286

2,1 O H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2021 2020
ARMTT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRPRISIR AN & F) Profit before income tax 2,141,842 2,326,459
M SEEL ZHE . Adjustments for:
—UEmEARZ — Gains on investments accounted for

L EF)Z (FIEE18) using equity method (Note 18) (34,970) (45,772)
—ME-BEK — Depreciation of property,

SEITE (YsE14) plant and equipment (Note 14) 1,110,333 1,168,684
—FREEEITE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets

(BtsE15) (Note 15) 92,876 93,051
— K EMEITE (Wsk16) — Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 18,781 19,273
—mEESH (IsE17) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 7,096 10,562
—HEME- -BRELZHEN - Gains on disposal of property,

g (fFsE7) plant and equipment (Note 7) (6,735) (8,612)

—HEFREEEZFEZ — Gains on disposal of right-of-use
(H$5E7) assets (Note 7) (16,316) (48,681)
— B AFEFFAEBZMNEE - Gains on disposal of financial assets

EMEE ST (ET7) at FVPL (Note 7) (44,289) (38,789)
—FEMAERZIRFEEZ - Provision of inventories to net

B (5t22) realisable value (Note 22) 23,130 1,217
—fEREZ EE (W5E15) — Provision for right-of-use assets

(Note 15) - 13,000
— B E ZRFURE RS — Provision for impairment of trade

receivables 4,338 1,500
— B R EE AER — Change in value of financial assets

NEmMBEEZEE at FVPL (Note 7)

BE (5E7) (12,645) (18,831)
—FIE B (IEE10) — Interest expenses (Note 10) 31,550 56,441
—EREE (HE10) — Foreign exchange losses (Note 10) 165 771

3,315,156 3,530,273
HEESE . Changes in working capital:
—EWE F R R RE — Increase in trade and bills receivables

A (72,360) (12,945)
—FENRE ek — Increase in prepayments, deposits

EfhFE U R IE I D and other receivables (139,222) (87,997)
—HhIERNHAE I RRIE — Increase in other non-current

0 receivables (1,303) a7
— B - Increase in inventories (472,144) (205,748)
— BB ZRRFIE M — Increase in trade payables 238,321 156,311
—H B RIE R — (Decrease)/increase in

FESHE R CRiz) /HEm other payables and accruals (657,124) 177,867
—BHaEIEMm — Increase in contract liabilities 806,375 322,665
—HAhIERNHAFE S 7UIE — Increase in other

B0 non-current payables 30,922 5,121
— R PRBIERITERRAVIE A0 — Increase in restricted bank deposits (23) =

SEEL RS Cash generated from operations 3,048,598 3,885,530

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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32 EEEEZHE (&) 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
RIREREXRT > LEVE -BERH In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
B REVME - FRARBEERDEARR property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-
EHEBEZMEREBEEE of-use assets and assets classified as held for sale comprise:
2021 2020
ARBTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
fREEE Net book amount 21,564 75,875
HEMZE BB KRHEE Gains on disposal of property, plant and
EREEEFIE (P5E7)  equipment, right-of-use assets
(Note 7) 23,051 57,293
HEa®ERHD Decrease in lease liabilities (288) (961)
FETRIE s R E M Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
[ SRR I R other receivables - 176,089
HhFE R IE R D Decrease in other payables (12,000) -
HEWME- -HERERE Proceeds from disposal of property,
THIE R EREEE plant and equipment, land use rights
ZPRiRIA and right-of-use assets 32,327 308,296

2/1 2 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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32 EEEEZRE (8)

AEHIIEEFENE L 7IBR%

(CONTINUED)

32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net

DA debt for each of the periods presented.
HEAE Y- 4t
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
AREFIT AREFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
122019%12831H As at 31 December 2019 44,241 1,162,867 1,207,108
RERE * Cash flows:
REZFREAA Inflow from financing activities - 12,313,727 12,313,727
MEEFREMH Outflow from financing activities (39,315) (12,989,345) (13,028,660)
REAEEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 41,351 - 41,351
BUSMHERERESE Derecognition of right-of-use assets (961) - (961)
B R Currency translations - (177 a77)
2020F12831H As at 31 December 2020 45,316 487,072 532,388
REMRE Cash flows:
BEFERESRA Inflow from financing activities - 8,078,799 8,078,799
REZFREN Outflow from financing activities (44,961) (8,453,571) (8,498,532)
SEREEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 37,352 - 37,352
EUERFRREEE Derecognition of
right-of-use assets (288) - (288)
2021512831H As at 31 December 2021 37,419 112,300 149,719

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 KiE 33 COMMITMENTS
(a) BAREIE (a) Capital commitments
AEEERFRENT : The Group’s capital commitments are as follows:
2021 2020
AREFT ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
LY EN =YL Property, plant and equipment
— B AEREE —Contracted but not provided for 464,887 392,418
(b) RZFHERIE (b) Operating lease commitments
EEFEABAMN . The Group is the lessee:
AEBRRER=ZBEE+FARE The Group leases various offices and warehouses
MZ AR ERERE 2 E under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
MRERBE ZEHEEWAEFL 3 months to 10 years. The leases have varying terms,
FHARR ~ A AR IE R M B 491 - 4R escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
Mg ENEEHEER- terms of the leases are renegotiated.
AEBECMZEHERIDEAE The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
EECEIADEEHEKEEER leases, except for short-term and low-value leases, see
B E—PENBERMNE15 Note 15 for further information.
MEZRSHEERENT ! The operating lease commitments for properties are as
follows:
2021 2020
ARBTT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
LY ES Properties
——FERNERZEE - Lease expiring within one year 4,865 5,538

214
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33 &I (BB 33 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) RZEFHEXRE B (b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
FEFEHBLHFN © The Group is the lessor:
AEERBEATHENCERES The Group leases out investment properties, plant
HiE FHEREME - BE MR and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
HBomEMRNBEITRNFIRRE agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
A EARITHBENESHE D rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
ETAEBERREVNRERS under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
MERUH follows:

2021 2020

ARBTTT ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BB —F Not later than 1 year 112,648 117,953
B —F Later than 1 year and

EBERBEAF not later than 5 years 62,174 94,271

HBiEaE Later than 5 years 31,116 33,044

205,938 245,268

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3 2/1 5
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34 FBAER S

FEBZREERABDSFE—EER
PABERRE (ME—®%)) - HReE
AMBRIEREEESFRZMARA
B EHZRAB - FARABDEERH/H—
TEEZNBRAEKRAERZEERE

210

KB

(a)

HENBRARERIRE T o

BIRAE S ETTHR S ¢

z

/

HRFE D ETHRZUT ¢

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate holding company of the Group is #— 12 &5
BBRAB (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (“‘UPE”),
a company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation. The directors of the Company
are of the view that the subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures
and associates of the Group are regarded as related parties.

(@) Transactions with related parties:

The following transactions are carried out with related

parties:
2021 2020
=S AR®T AR¥TFx
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEM R R Bl GREEE - Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
—#—EZHEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 172,713 104,824
—REEREEMER - Joint ventures and associates of
YN the Group 7,239 10,178
179,952 115,002
R4 R A% SR R ES Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
—m—1hE - UPE 14,785 15,863
——EZHEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 4,389,328 3,625,647
—KREBZEEMER - Joint ventures and associates of
BERE the Group 589,438 514,868
4,993,551 4,156,378
MIRRFREX Logistics service expense:
—#—1EZHEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE () 320 =

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
BIRAB S EITHR S | (B) (@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2021 2020
B = ARBFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARSI Consultation service income: (i)
—m—1hE - UPE - 47
—H—1¥EZHMBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 62,885 56,839
—REFEZESPERE - Joint ventures and associates of
& AT the Group 7,687 3,137
70,572 60,023
FEUA - Rental income: (ii)
—#H—1EZHEBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 72,707 65,379
—KREBZEETLER - Joint ventures and associates of
= /NCI| the Group 1,647 1,647
74,354 67,026

* BXLBHAADEERESR
DR BB ESE -

() LS ERFBERME RN
BRYRRE R HEHRS
Th IR AR B 15 58 2 IR R T o

(i) HEEHEEYWEZWA LR
BRI S FRE] L aE 2 IR

W ER ©

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

*

Notes:

(i)

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

with the terms of the underlying agreements.

of agreements made between the parties.

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese

The above sales and purchases of raw materials and
finished goods, receipt of logistics service and provision
of consultation service are carried out in accordance

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
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34 RAlkAERSZ (88 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) ELRREGTSASER (b) Balances with related parties:
R2021F12B31H  AEEHEE The Group has the following significant balances with its
RIEE 5 B U T ERAR related parties as at 31 December 2021:

2021 2020
AREFT ARFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ST R Bt 75 BRER - Balances due from related parties:
e & 7 BRFR Trade receivables (Note 23):
(M$5%23) -
—R—1EZWB/AE - Subsidiaries of UPE 17,331 13,110
AT FRIB R H A Prepayments and other receivables
FE U =RIE (Note 24):
(HFzE24) :
—F—1EZWBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 117,959 95,418
—NEBZEEMER - Joint ventures and associates
i —L/N] of the Group 17,024 3,303
134,983 98,721
152,314 111,831
e RE Bt /5 B R Balances due to related parties:
BT B IR Trade payables (Note 29):
(Mf5£29) -
— i —1 - UPE 1,674 2,073
—F—1EZWBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 420,187 383,549
—RNEBZEEMER - Joint ventures and associates
= L/NS| of the Group 40,071 38,455
461,932 424,077

2’] 8 H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
SIRARG S 45ER - (B (b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)
2021 2020
AR¥TT AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HAn e B & Other payables and accruals (Note 30):
FESTE A (Mf5E30)
—#—1EZHBAB - Subsidiaries of UPE 38,301 27,734
—REENGERE - Joint ventures and associates of
KEE AT the Group 5,428 _
505,661 451,811

RO SRS BRI 2B R
RARERER-

FE WS R P A BB 75 A5 BR BV BRI 1B
HERNEEBRZATERS

The balance with related parties are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the balances due from and
due to related parties approximated their fair value as at

balance sheet dates.

FEEEABHM : (c) Key management compensation:
2021 2020
ARBTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e {EAL R EMEF  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 19,604 19,601

H— ¥ hEERAERAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &3
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35 AAEIEEEBBEREH#ESE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

220

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
KABEEBER (@) Balance sheet of the Company
2021 2020
AREEFT AEB®TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—RIB AT ZIKE Investment in a subsidiary 7,976,325 7,976,325
R—REE AT 2 M Interest in an associated company 1,512 1,454
BAFESAEMEE Financial assets at fair value through
WHEMEE other comprehensive income 2,546
LY EN =Y Property, plant and equipment 6
7,977,841 7,980,331
REBEE Current assets
B RIBR Prepayments and other receivables
HAE W RIE 382 378
ANy =YNSIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 112,829 29,088
RERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,706 2,644
114,917 32,110
BELE Total assets 8,092,758 8,012,441

H— ¥R FEZERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2021 &%
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥ EQUITY
[N Share capital 39,764 39,764
1R imERR Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
HhEE Other reserves 1,381,076 1,356,194
REBF Retained earnings 1,836,545 1,785,841
N Total equity 8,087,284 8,011,698
aE LIABILITIES
mENaRE Current liabilities
HMEHRIER Other payables and accruals
Est &R 1,474 743
i Borrowings 4,000 _
5,474 743
FEN =R Total liabilities 5,474 743
EnkaEia%E Total equity and liabilities 8,092,758 8,012,441

KRNBEEBBEREN202253
BrAEES=gitE wHMUT
BEEREEE-

‘E%
LO Chih-Hsien
HITEE

Executive Director

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by

the Board of Directors on 7 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf by the following Directors.

BHREE
LIU Xinhua
HITEF

Executive Director

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§
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35

222

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

g’z}ﬁﬁéﬁ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ@

(%

p—

(b) EREHEES

(b) Reserve movements of the Company

BARER

ATEHE

BERA

[=N-]
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202018182  Balance at 1 January 2020
7er 1,381,078 (24,820) 1,806,924 3,163,182
EEEAN Profit for the year - - 1,350,953 1,350,953
BRTERA Fair value losses on financial assets
Hitt2EWE at FVOCl
ZRATERE - (3,099) - (3,099)
ERHERATE  Transfer of loss on disposal
SPAEMEEWE  of equity investments at
NEMBEEZ fair value through other
= comprehensive income
BRERERF to retained earnings - 3,035 (3,035) -
BEXJ2019F 2R E  Dividends relating to 2019, paid = = (1,369,001) (1,369,001)
#202012831H 2 Balance at 31 December 2020
R 1,381,078 (24,884) 1,785,841 3,142,035
FEHT Profit for the year - - 1,697,876 1,697,876
BATERA Fair value losses on financial assets
Hit2mbs at FVOC
ZATERE - 23 - 23
ERHERATE  Transfer of loss on disposal
SPAEMZEKE  of equity investments at
JERREZ fair value through other
BEERERT comprehensive income
to retained earnings - 24,859 (24,859 -
B J2020F 228 Dividends relating to 2020, paid - - (1,622,313) (1,622,313)
#2021512A31H 2 Balance at 31 December 2021
R 1,381,078 @ 1,836,545 3,217,621

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 EFEMNnED

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS
(@ EFEkEETBRAEZMNE (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
BEEAESTHRABZHME The remuneration of every director and the chief
Ul executive is set out below:
RIKER
HEZ
Exiy ik e WBETEL EREEE O HRE  EIMEX st
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance allowance scheme Total
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT AREFTT AR®TR ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 2021
RITES Executive directors
BEEEE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(BE%) 51 414 3,993 - 10 - 4,468
ZIFELE Mr Liu Xinhua
(GakEa) 44 1,344 2,309 240 - 57 3,994
JEHITEE  Non-executive directors
BE85%E Mr SuTsung-Ming
(BH=8) 44 - - - - - 44
BEE%E  Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui
(RElE) 44 - - - - - 44
BRI Independent
= non-executive directors
BREE%E M. Chen Sun-Te
(REfE) 230 - - - 23 - 253
SBCELE M FanRen-Da,
Anthony (B{%2) 230 - - - 23 - 253
BEELE M LoPeter (BEE) 230 - - - 23 - 253
BERLE M Chen Johnny
(BESE) 230 - - - 13 - 243
1,103 1,758 6,302 240 92 57 9,552

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 EEFEH RiEmx ()

224

(a)

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEREEBTBRAEZMNE (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
=) (Continued)
BEERRBITEHAB ZFHME The remuneration of every director and the chief
FIA0F executive is set out below:
RIRER
HElz
EE e ik '  BBETL  RBEER  HMER  BIFEXR st
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance  allowance scheme Total
ARETT AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 2020
HiTES Executive directors
BELEE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(&B%) 52 424 4,361 - 10 = 4,847
BIFELE M Lu Xinhua (21372 46 1,344 2,498 240 = 51 4,179
JFEHITEZ  Non-executive directors
BEMEE M SuTsung-Ming
(EB=3) 46 - - - - - 46
BEIE%E M. CHEN Kuo-Hui
(ENE) 46 - - - - = 46
BUIEHT  Independent
Ex non-executive directors
BEEE%E M Chen Sun-Te
(EfE) 235 - - - 23 = 258
BIELE M FanRen-Da,
Anthony (BZ3) 235 - - - 23 - 258
BREELE  MrLoPeter (BEE) 235 - - - 23 - 258
EEKE M Chen Johnny
(BER) 235 - - - 13 = 248
1,130 1,768 6,859 240 92 51 10,140
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36 EFEA M= () 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@ EFREETHRAEZME (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

#® (Continued)
REE2021F 2020F 12831 For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
HEFE BMELAABDEERE no arrangement was in place under which a director
HEARREEAMEZHE & of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
NERLEEEEANEEZCNE emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
ERMBAEBRNNMBRF 22 Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
B EAREREE- join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.
KABM M AER 2 =577 No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
KANBIBEEREFHBEEAER in relation to the Group's business to which the
(TwmAaEREIMERE) »BRA Company was a party and in which a director of the
F B 45 R B o A F B T AT B RS Company had a material interest, whether directly or
MAERZEARZ L KRG indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

# o during the year.
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37 MEBAT 37 SUBSIDIARIES

TXHHA AT R2021FE12831H 2

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

FEWBARFEE of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
FAMAIER,
ARLTE R R A BREITREERSE iRt FTEEY TS
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
BEEEE Directly owned
F-DHERBRAT HEHE 923,180,000% 7t 100% 100%  BREER/HEHE
2006568290
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD923,180,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
HiEEs Indirectly owned
F—1% (FE) REBRAS FE LR 1,103,770,000% 7t 100% 100%  REEE/TE
199843F10H
Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,108,770,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.* 10 March 1998
MER—CERRBRAH FESEARE 37,500,000%7¢ 100% 100%  AERHEEEK
1992414130 B&/HE
Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumgj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.* 13 January 1992 beverages and food/PRC
R —CEERBRAT R AR B 65,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEEK
1993445140 'R/ HFE
Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. 14 April 1993 beverages and food/PRC
ELS—CERRERRAR FEIEL 96,000,000 7T 100% 100%  FERBEESRHK
1993455146 'R/ HFE
Kunshan President Enterprises Food ~ Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 14 May 1993 beverages and food/PRC
REF—CEERERAT hEEE 59,600,000% 7 100% 100%  HERBEHRK
1993%7A78 86/ HE
Wuhan President Enterprises Food Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. * 7 July 1993 beverages and food/PRC
BMNA—GERRAF Bl E M 75,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEEK
1994412350 B&/HE
Guangzhou President Enterprises Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Corp.* 5 December 1994 beverages and food/PRC

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AMAEIER,
AR 2K B8 BREITRARRE Frfsie e TEEE TEE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
BER—ERRAE HEER 39,900,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEHEEK
199556H15H 'R/ HE
Shenyang President Enterprises Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 15 June 1995 beverages and food/PRC
ARG—CERRAT HEEE 60,000,000 75 100% 100%  HERHEHEK
19984E2F23H B&/HE
Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 23 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
ARG —LEERAT FERTE 29,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
199852H26H B/ HE
Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 26 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
TRGE—RNRBERAT REIER 52,900,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERBEHEK
2001223208 B&/HE
Beijing President Enterprises Drinks  Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HESR—GERRAT HEREE 44,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERBEHHEEK
2001558188 'R/ HE
Nanchang President Enterprises Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 18 May 2001 beverages and food/PRC
BNG—CERRAT LM 20,000,000% 7t 100% 100%  FERBEHHEK
2001578198 Bh/HE
Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 19 July 2001 beverages and food/PRC
NG —EEBRAT LN 37,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
2002£6A25H B/ HE
Zhengzhou President Enterprises Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 25 June 2002 beverages and food/PRC
Hi— (LB mEERAT FELE 8,600,000%7¢ 100% 100% HBHKRERES/TE
2005F10817H
President (Shanghai) Trading Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages and
Co., Ltd.* 17 October 2005 food products/PRC
RCBERGBRAT =] 1,000,00037 & 100% 100% ANBEREER/ 84
20065 12528H
Tong Ren Corp. Limited.” Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 MEAR () 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FAMAIER,
ARLTE R R A BREITREERSE FrisietE TEEY LB
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
ERg—CEERERAT FE EH 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERHEHREK
20074611 B8H B&/HE
Kunming President Enterprises Food ~ Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.¥ 8 November 2007 beverages and food/PRC
SEEFBERAT 55 1,711,920 7% 100% 100% REER/EB
2008F655H
Champ Green Capital Co., Limited. Hong Kong USD1,711,920 Investment holding/Hong
5 June 2008 Kong
BES—BRKERAT FEES 4,150,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHREK
200925208 Bih/H
Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
R EEEERBRAE &8 5,065,435,6007 7T 100% 100% RELRKRES
2009448301
Uni-President Hong Kong Holdings ~ Hong Kong HKD5,065,435,600 Investment holding and
Co., Ltd. 30 April 2009 trading
SERCEEETH (LS HE EE 150,000 7T 100% 100%  EBEAH
BRATF 2009458 12H
Champ Green (Shanghai) Consulting  Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.* 12 May 2009
ROVGE—CEBRAT REED 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEEK
2010%9A1H 'R/ HFE
Changsha President Enterprises Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 1 September 2010 beverages and food/PRC
PR — IR AR (b HE R AR #1,000,0007 100% 100%  BERE/TE
BRAF 2010%8H24H
Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Noodle  Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Restaurant Dining Culture Limited 24 August 2010
Company*
IR —EERAE HEET 25,000,000 75 100% 100% EERBERRR
201046108 28H B&/HE
Zhanjiang President Enterprises Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.¥ 28 October 2010 beverages and food/PRC
HAER—CERRAT FEmEmE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHEK
2010£11816H 'R/ FE
Nanning President Enterprises Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 16 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAEIER,
AR R R A BEETREERE Frfsie e TEERTEn
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
REG—GEBRAT HEEE 20,000,000%75 100% 100%  FERBEHEEK
2010512828 'R/ HE
Changchun President Enterprises Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.” 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
HRgf—CEBRAT R o] 5 B 20,000,000% 75 100% 100% BRI RAERHLERE
20106128150
Akesu President Enterprises Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Co., Ltd.* 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
FNFE—EEBRAT FElZ N 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
2011514288 B/ HE
Taizhou President Enterprises Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 28 January 2011 beverages and food/PRC
BER—EBRAE TREE 33,600,000E 7T 100% 100% FEEEREAEERL
2011528168 BEREBE/HE
Chongging President Enterprises Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Co., Ltd.* 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
HRF—CEERAT HE HR 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEHHEK
2011523248 Bh/HE
Baiyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 24 February 2011 beverages and food/PRC
LEG—BERRABLERAR  FELE AR #60,000,0007¢ 100% 100%  BEEHR/TE
20038815
Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd. * 1 August 2003
ARG EEEHAS TELE AE#20,000,0007c 100% 100% REZK,/TE
BERAF 2003%7H18H
Uni-President Shanghai Management ~ Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Consulting Co., Ltd. * 18 July 2003
BEA—CERRAT HEEE 22,000,000%7T 100% 100%  HERBEHHEK
201143481 'R/ HE
Hainan President Enterprises Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
BRER—CEERAT HEARKE 35,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHEK
2010£118150 B&/HE
Shijiazhuang President Enterprises Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 15 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 MEAR () 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FAMAIER,
ARLTE R B BETREERE FrisietE TEEY LB
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
EEA—CERRAT HEE R 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERHEHREK
2011445188 B&/HE
Jinan President Enterprises Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 18 April 2011 beverages and food/PRC
BREA—CERRAT FEER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEK
20117568 'R/ HFE
Guiyang President Enterprises Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 6 July 2011 beverages and food/PRC
BRAB—CEBRAERAR FREER 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEBRK/HFE
20117H6H
Wuxue President Enterprises Mineral ~ Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Water Co.Ltd.* 6 July 2011 water/PRC
LEREERESZERAT FE LR 950,000% 7T 100% 100% ARRRRLEERM
201146R288 &/ HE
President (Shanghai) Private Label Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd.* 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
PRC
MMNGE—CERRAT RN 85,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEEK
201156F218 'R/ HFE
Hangzhou President Enterprises Hangzhou, PRC. USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 21 June 2011 beverages and food/PRC
ENE—CEBRAR FEITRM 33,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHREK
201149528 'R/ FE
Xuzhou President Enterprises Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
%—BE (BL) BRAF HEEL 10,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  BEEERRHE/TE
201243828H
President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.* 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
AEA—CERRAT FEA 43,100,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHRK
201263598 B&/HE
Henan President Enterprises Henan,PRC. USD43,100,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
RER—EERRAT IR ES 50,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHEK
201267H6H 'R/ FE
Shaanxi President Enterprises Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 6 July 2012 beverages and food/PRC
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AMAEIER,
AR R R A BEETREERE Frfsie e TEERTEn
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
LEG—EEBRAT FEBER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% FERBERRR
2012511858 'R/ HE
Jiangsu President Enterprises Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 5 November 2012 beverages and food/PRC
EALG—0% (S BRK FEIE AR 180,000,0007T 100% 100% FERRK/PE
BRAH 2013435 15H
Changbaishan Mountain President Jilin,PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
Enterprises (Jilin) Mineral Water 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Co., Ltd."
m—1% (B BEXMHEH FEEREL A E60,000,0007T 100% 100% BHE/FE
BRAH 201354598
President Enterprises (Kunshan) Real  Kunshan,PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 9 April 2013
ERA—EERAF HEIER)I| 16,000,000 7T 100% 100% FERBERRR
2013544228 'R/ HE
Ningxia President Enterprises Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
ARER—EEBRAT RIS 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEHHEK
201355498 Bh/HE
Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.* 9 May 2013 beverages and food/PRC
LRS- CEFRAT FEEH 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
201359458 B/ HE
Shanxi President Enterprises Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.* 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
FERFE—CEBRRAT TELE 40,000,000 7T 100% 100% BRERRIE TE
2001108140
Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co.,Ltd* 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
WEES -t EERRLER BT B8 30,000,000%7T 100% 100%  HERBEHHEK
BRAT 2013511818 'R/ HE
Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Tomato Products Technology 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC

Co., Ltd.") Co. Ltd.*

H—1 R EEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

o Annual Report 2021 £ #§

231



=Rk e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 MEBATE (&) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FAMAIER,
ARLTE R R A BREITREERSE FrisietE FTEEY TSN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2021 2020
LER—G 2R ERERAR HEEE 80,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FEREEHHK
(Uni-President Enterprises 2014558150 B&R/H
(Shanghai) Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.")
Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.* 15 May 2014 beverages and food/PRC
KEF—TCEBRAS FEXE 12,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FERBEEHREK
2014585158 'R/ HFE
Uni-President Enterprises (TianJin) Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co. Ltd* 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
HER—CERRAR FEIHE 6,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHRRK
2015637108 B&/HE
Uni-President Enterprises (Hunan) Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd" 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
ERFFBH TEERAE FEIES A #100,000,0007¢ 100% 100%  FEREEHHK
20096H9H B&/HE
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries VYantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd* 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
F—% (B sl FEEL 1,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEREEAKNFE
ERAT 1995%12827H

President Enterprises (Kunshan)
Food Products Technology
Co., Ltd.*

PR A (L5 o B K B

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

C 8 E KRB BN

BRAEESARETER -RNHAEH
EEMRIZ —KMBRATHERR
ZEREEAB -FIARFERILZ
MBABHARIIEEERE

. BNBBHARBEEBENIRPX

LBIRE

#hi—1 % hE PG A PR /A 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

UsD1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of
seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the Mainland China, Taiwan and

Hong Kong are limited liability entities. One subsidiary

incorporated in the Cayman Islands is an exempted company
with limited liability. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are
wholly foreign owned enterprises.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of

the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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